T™ILLINGDON

LONDON

North Planning

Committee

Date: THURSDAY, 3 MARCH 2016

Time: 7.30 PM

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 -
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH
STREET, UXBRIDGE,
uB8 1UW

Meeting Members of the Public and

Details: Press are welcome to attend

this meeting

This Agenda is available online at:
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Cld=116&Year=0

Public Document Pack

To Councillors on the Committee

Eddie Lavery (Chairman)
John Morgan

Peter Curling (Labour Lead)
Jem Duducu

Duncan Flynn

Raymond Graham

Henry Higgins

John Morse

John Oswell

Published: Tuesday, 23 February 2016

Contact: Alex Quayle
Tel: 01895 250692
Email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk

Lloyd White

Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

www. hillingdon.gov.uk

Putting our residents first



Useful information for
residents and visitors

Watching & recording this meetin .

g g g Watch a [E]73 broadcast of this
You can watch the public (Part 1) part of this meeting meeting on the Council's YouTube
on the Council's YouTube channel, live or archived Channel: Hillingdon London
after the meeting. Residents and the media are also
welcome to attend in person, and if they wish, report Zhose Tttél:\gilng shguld bea aware t*;e}t the

H H H s ouncil will Titm ana recor roceeqaings

on the‘ pu_bllc part of the mee_tmg' Any mghwdual or for both official record and rzsident digital
organisation may record or film proceedings as long engagement in democracy.
as it does not disrupt proceedings.

It is recommended to give advance notice of filming to ensure any particular requirements can be
met. The Council will provide seating areas for residents/public, high speed WiFi access to all
attending and an area for the media to report. The officer shown on the front of this agenda should
be contacted for further information and will be available to assist.

When present in the room, silent mode should be enabled for all mobile devices.

Travel and parking i ]

Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, with

0
the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a short wa \,)/>
away. Limited parking is available at the Civic 1 Unbridg

Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at the %&Ega ﬁ

Centre. For details on availability and how to book rube and b

. . . Paviligns ™
parking space, please contact Democratic Service shogging sagions <
Please enter from the Council’s main reception Centre / r—LJ Intu =

where you will be directed to the Committee Roon

Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda
please contact Democratic Services. For those
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is
available for use.

Mizinning

car park

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarn
EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt.
Fire Marshal or Security Officer. In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs,
should make their way to the signed refuge locations.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings

Security and Safety information

Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the
fire alarm will sound continuously. If there is a
BOMB ALERT the alarm sounds intermittently.
Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.

Mobile telephones - Please switch off any mobile
telephones and BlackBerries before the meeting.

Petitions and Councillors

Petitions - Those who have organised a petition of
20 or more borough residents can speak at a
Planning Committee in support of or against an
application. Petitions must be submitted in
writing to the Council in advance of the meeting.
Where there is a petition opposing a planning
application there is also the right for the
applicant or their agent to address the meeting
for up to 5 minutes.

Ward Councillors - There is a right for local
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about
applications in their Ward.

Committee Members - The planning committee is
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet
in public every three weeks to make decisions on
applications.

How the Committee meeting works

The Planning Committees consider the most
complex and controversial proposals for
development or enforcement action.

Applications for smaller developments such as
householder extensions are generally dealt with
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated
powers.

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which
comprises reports on each application

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at
the beginning of the meeting.

The procedure will be as follows:-
1. The Chairman will announce the report;

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a
presentation of plans and photographs;
3. If there is a petition(s), the petition
organiser will speak, followed by the
agent/applicant followed by any Ward
Councillors;

4. The Committee may ask questions of the
petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek
clarification from officers;

6. The Committee will vote on the
recommendation in the report, or on an
alternative recommendation put forward by a
Member of the Committee, which has been
seconded.

About the Committee’s decision

The Committee must make its decisions by
having regard to legislation, policies laid down
by National Government, by the Greater London
Authority - under ‘The London Plan’ and
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and
supporting guidance. The Committee must also
make its decision based on material planning
considerations and case law and material
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s
report and any representations received.

Guidance on how Members of the Committee
must conduct themselves when dealing with
planning matters and when making their
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s
Constitution.

When making their decision, the Committee
cannot take into account issues which are not
planning considerations such a the effect of a
development upon the value of surrounding
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself
is not sufficient ground for refusal of
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to
the design of the property. When making a
decision to refuse an application, the Committee
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for
refusal based on material planning
considerations.

If a decision is made to refuse an application,
the applicant has the right of appeal against the
decision. A Planning Inspector appointed by the
Government will then consider the appeal.
There is no third party right of appeal, although
a third party can apply to the High Court for
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3
months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

Chairman's Announcements

1
2
3

Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

To sign and receive the minutes of the meetings held 5 January 2016

and 20 January 2016

Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

To confirm that the items of business marked Part 1 will be considered
in public and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private

PART | - Members, Public and Press

ltems are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the

1-10

Chairman may vary this. The name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the
address of the premises or land concerned.

Applications with a Petition

363/APP/2015/3827

floor level with associated parking
and 6 x 2-bed and 3 x 1-bed self
contained flats over the three
floors with associated parking in
basement and installation of
vehicular crossover to front.

Recommendation: Refusal

Address Ward Description & Page
Recommendation
6 | 81 Field End Road, Eastcote & | Erection of three storey, detached 11-34
Eastcote, Pinner East building to contain doctors
Ruislip surgery and pharmacy at ground 169 -195




7 | 12A Northwood Road, | Harefield Change of use from dwelling 35-52
Harefield house (Use Class C3) to dental
clinic (Use Class D1) with 196 - 208
45363/APP/2015/3363 associated car parking in the rear
garden.
Recommendation: Approval
8 | Land at junction of Ickenham | Installation of a 12.5m monopole 53 - 64
Warren Road & supporting 6 shrouded antennas
Swakeleys Drive, (Application under Part 16 of 209 - 216
Ickenham schedule 2 to the Town and
Country Planning (General
65862/APP/2016/261 Permitted Development)
(England) Order 2015 for
determination as to whether prior
approval is required for siting and
appearance).
Recommendation: Approval
9 | 11 Sandy Lodge Way, | Northwood | Two x two storey, 4-bed, 65 - 80
Northwood detached dwellings to include
habitable roofspace and 217 - 226
16948/APP/2015/4658 basement with associated parking
and amenity space and
installation of 1 vehicular
crossover.
Recommendation: Approval
10| 51 Hilliard Road, Northwood | Change of use from a 3-bed end 81-92
Northwood Hills of terrace dwelling to 1 x 1-bed
and 1 x 2 bed self contained flats | 227 - 233
70450/APP/2015/4598 with associated parking and

amenity space.

Recommendation: Refusal




Applications without a Petition

Address

Ward

Description &
Recommendation

Page

11

Langley Farm,
Breakspear Road
North, Harefield

30836/APP/2014/2107

Harefield

Two storey, 4-bed, detached
dwelling with car port to side and
alterations to site entrance to
include gates, involving
demolition of existing farmhouse.
Single storey outbuilding for
ancillary use involving part
demolition of existing outbuilding
and conversion of existing barn to
habitable use to include
installation of mezzanine level,
alterations to elevations and
associated restoration works.

Recommendation: Approval

93-114

234 - 242

12

Langley Farm,
Breakspear Road
North, Harefield

30836/APP/2014/2109

Harefield

Conversion of existing barn to
habitable use to include
installation of mezzanine level,
installation of 1 x rooflight to
south roof, 1 x rooflight to north
roof installation of new doors and
window to south elevation, and
new door to west elevation with
associated restoration works
(Listed Building Application).

Recommendation: Approval

115-124

243 - 250

13

37 The Drive,
Ickenham

24043/APP/2015/3509

Ickenham

Erection of two storey building
with habitable roofspace and
basement to create 5 x 2-bed and
1 x 3-bed self contained flats with
associated parking and
landscaping works, including a
new shed (works involve the
demolition of existing dwelling
house).

Recommendation: Approval

125 - 1562

251 - 266




PART Il - Members Only

The reports listed below are not made public because they contain confidential or
exempt information under paragraph 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

14 ENFORCEMENT REPORT 153 - 160
15 ENFORCEMENT REPORT 161 - 168

PART | - Plans for North Planning Committee 169 - 266



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes

NORTH PLANNING COMMITTEE

Agenda ltem 3
.

5 January 2016 HILLINGDON

LONDON

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre,
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

Committee Members Present:
Councillors Eddie Lavery (Chairman)
John Morgan (Vice-Chairman)

Peter Curling (Labour Lead)

Jem Duducu

Duncan Flynn

Raymond Graham

Carol Melvin

John Morse

John Oswell

LBH Officers Present:
James Rodger, Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture, Mandip Malhotra,
Planning, Tim Brown, Legal

114.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda ltem 1)

None.

115.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE
THIS MEETING (Agenda ltem 2)

None.

116.

TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS
MEETING 28 OCTOBER 2015 AND 18 NOVEMBER 2015 (Agenda
Item 3)

Were agreed as an accurate record.

117.

MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR
URGENT (Agenda Iltem 4)

None.

118.

TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART 1
WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS
MARKED PART 2 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE

(Agenda ltem 5)

119.

150 EASTCOTE ROAD, RUISLIP 71162/APP/2015/3138
(Agenda ltem 6)

150 Eastcote Road, Ruislip - 71162/APP/2015/3138

Page 1



The application is for the Installation of fencing (Part
Retrospective).

The application related to a detached bungalow on Eastcote Road. The
external walls of the property were covered by a hipped roof. The
property also consisted of a detached garage at the rear.

Officers introduced the report and highlighted the changes in the
addendum which included the painting of the steel fences to green.

It was noted that there was an outstanding enforcement investigation
regarding the fencing.

The main issues for consideration in determining this application
related to the impact of the fence and proposed fence which would
have on the character and appearance of the original dwelling, the
impact on the visual amenities of the surrounding area, and the impact
on the residential amenity of the neighbouring dwellings.

The Ward Councillor made the following points:

That they represented all three Ward Councillors.

That the application was retrospective.

That the fence was inside a fence, therefore a double fence.

It was noted that the material and the height of the fence was
inappropriate.

e Support had been given by the Ruislip Resident's Association.

RESOLVED:

That the application be approved as per the Officers report and
addendum subject to the additional condition relating to colour
finish listed in the tabled addendum.

120.

NORTHWOOD CRICKET CLUB, RICKMANSWORTH ROAD,
NORTHWOOD 45817/APP/2015/3697 (Agenda ltem 7)

Northwood Cricket Club, Rickmansworth Road, Northwood -
45817/APP/2015/3697

A Single storey side extension to existing pavilion building with roof
space for use as storage space.

Officers introduced the report and provided an overview of the
application. This application related to the site of the Northwood Cricket Club
grounds, which has an expansive area of 1.76 hectares. The site is located
off the western corner of the junction between Rickmansworth Road and
Duck's Hill Road.

The site is within the Green Belt and is adjacent to a Countryside
Conservation Area.

Access into the site is via an access drive to the eastern boundary, off the
western side Duck's Hill Road (very close to the northern end and its junction
with Rickmansworth Road). The site is generally well screened by tall trees
and hedges/shrubbery on all its boundaries. An informal concrete driveway
weaves around the site's southern boundary and terminates at an unmade
vehicular hard standing adjacent to the south-western boundary.

Page 2




The Cricket club has doubled its membership and needed larger
facilities therefore it sought permission for a single storey extension to
the northern side of the existing pavilion.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved as per the Officers
report and addendum.

121. | 38 ELGOOD AVENUE, NORTHWOOD 8469/APP/2015/3883
(Agenda Item 8)
Withdrawn.

122. | 45 WIELAND ROAD, NORTHWOOD 41908/APP/2015/3822 (Agenda

Item 9)

45 Wieland Road, Northwood - 41908/APP/2015/3822

Part two storey, part single storey side/rear extension, single
storey side extension and raising and extension of roof to create
additional habitable roof space (Resubmission).

Officers introduced the report and highlighted the changes set out in
the addendum.

It was noted that the application site was in the Gatehill Farm Estate
which was part of the green belt. The application is for the erection of a
part two storey, part single storey side / rear extension, a single storey
side extension and the raising and extension of the roof to create
additional habitual roofspace.

The main issues for consideration in determining this application was to
relate to the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of
the original dwelling, the impact on the visual amenities of the
surrounding area, the impact on residential amenity of the neighbouring
dwellings and provision of acceptable residential amenity for the
application property. The existing dwelling has a single storey flat
roofed extension (a garage conversion) on the north western side
elevation. It was proposed to replace this with a two storey side
extension which measures 2.45m wide by 12.6m deep which included
a 3m deep projection beyond the rear elevation. The two storey
element then continued across the whole of the rear elevation.

This also included alterations to the roof, increasing the height from
8.6m to 9.5m and incorporating a rear dormer window measuring
2.85m wide by 3.6m deep with a gable end roof detail of 2.65m high.
On the south eastern side elevation it was proposed to erect a single
storey side extension set back from the front elevation by 5.85m and
measuring 2.6m wide by 8.35m in depth including a 4m projection
beyond the rear elevation. A 1m deep single storey element then
extends across the whole of the rear elevation behind the proposed
two storey side and rear extension. The side extension has a flat roof
detail with a parapet edge, which measured 3m in height (3.1m
including the parapet) and returned along the rear extension.

The Applicant raised the following paints:

Page 3




e The Applicant spoke to Members and informed them that they
had moved to Northwood to be close to family and friends and
had planned to make a long term home.

e The Applicant had spoken to local residents and 46 people,
majority of who lived on the Gatehill Estate had signed a petition
in support of the application. The proposed change would be
made to ensure that the house was more energy efficient, space
efficient and enhance the character of the house. Before the
application was made the Applicant showed it to neighbours and
the Resident's Association initially all that saw it supported it on
the second application one neighbour objected to it.

e The Applicant has dealt with concerns over fencing and
respected privacy. The Applicant has tried to contact Ward
Councillors but was unsuccessful.

The Agent raised the following points:

e The Agent spoke stating that the proposed changes would
complement the character of the local area and improve the
property.

e Adjacent properties were not to be overlooked.

e The extension was not on the boundary and it was agreed that
the roof was to be flat not pitched.

e The property was on a slope and the neighbours had a hedge
so it the extension would not be contentious.

RESOLVED - That the application be approved as per the Officers
report, subject to the amendment to condition 5 listed in the
tabled addendum.

123.

ENFORCEMENT REPORT (Agenda ltem 10)

1. That the enforcement action as recommended in the officer’s
report was agreed.

2. That the Committee resolved to release their decision and the
reasons for it outlined in this report into the public domain, solely
for the purposes of issuing the formal breach of condition notice
to the individual concerned.

This item is included in Part Il as it contains information which a) is
likely to reveal the identity of an individual and b) contains information
which reveals that the authority proposes to give, under an enactment,
a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed on a
person. The authority believes that the public interest in withholding the
Information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it (exempt
information under paragraphs 2 and 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended).

The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 8.00 pm.

Page 4




These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Kiran Grover Democratic Services Officer on 01895 250693.

Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the
Pubilic.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Minutes @g,

NORTH PLANNING COMMITTEE

R

©

20 January 2016 <HILI GDON

LONDON

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre,
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

Committee Members Present:

Councillors Eddie Lavery (Chairman), John Morgan (Vice-Chairman), Peter Curling
(Labour Lead), Jem Duducu, Duncan Flynn, Raymond Graham, Henry Higgins,
John Morse, John Oswell

LBH Officers Present:

Alex Chrusciak (Planning Service Manager), Mandip Malhotra (Interim Major
Applications Manager), Nicole Cameron (Legal Advisor), Manmohan Ranger
(Transport Consultant), Alex Quayle (Democratic Services Officer)

124.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda ltem 1)

None.

125.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING
(Agenda ltem 2)

None.

126.

TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 8 DECEMBER
2015 (Agenda Item 3)

The minutes of the meeting held 8 December 2015 were approved.

127.

MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda ltem
4)

None.

128.

TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART 1 WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART 2 WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 5)

All items were considered in Part 1.

129.

29 COPSE WOOD WAY, NORTHWOOD - 12537/APP/2015/3396
(Agenda Item 6)

This application was withdrawn.

130.

51 WIELAND ROAD, NORTHWOOD - 17990/APP/2015/4176
(Agenda ltem 7)

This application was withdrawn.

Page 7




131. | LAND AT JUNCTION OF FIELD END ROAD, EASTCOTE -
59310/APP/2015/4125 (Agenda Item 8)
Officers introduced the report and provided an overview of the
application, noting the addendum, and that comments had been
received from the Eastcote Conservation Panel.
A representative of the Eastcote Conservation Panel attended the
meeting and addressing the Committee made the following points:

e The Committee should uphold the officer recommendation for
refusal.

e The land in question had a long history of refusal and appeals.

e The footpath is currently narrow due to cabinets, and difficult to
navigate with a pushchair.

e It should be expected that the applicants will appeal, and the
current single condition may not be sufficient. An additional point
of rejection should be that no test for alternative sites was
carried out.

In their discussions, councillors raised the following points:

e Members enquired whether alternative siting could be
encouraged, to which officers drew attention to informative BE37
in relation to the location of the application.

e Members enquired as to whether the objection regarding height
of the mast would be robust enough if taken to appeal. In
response, officers clarified that the previous permission for the
mast had established this as an acceptable location, but the
additional height would take the mast above the tree line. The
grounds for refusal were considered sufficiently robust should
there be an appeal.

e Members agreed that the present grounds for refusal were
strong and did not require additions.

The motion for refusal was moved, seconded and upon being put to a
vote was unanimously agreed.
RESOLVED:
- That the application be refused.
132. | 34 BURWOOD AVENUE, EASTCOTE - 63119/APP/2015/3763

(Agenda ltem 9)

Officers introduced the report and provided an overview of the
application, noting that the application was within the Eastcote Park
Estate conservation area and that it was before the Committee at the
request of a Ward Councillor.

The motion for refusal was moved, seconded and upon being put to a
vote was unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED:

Page 8




- That the application be refused.

133. | S106 QUARTERLY MONITORING REPORT (Agenda Item 10)
RESOLVED:

- That the contents of the report be noted.

The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 7.23 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Alex Quayle on 01895 250692. Circulation of these minutes
is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

Page 9




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Agenda ltem 6

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 81 FIELD END ROAD EASTCOTE PINNER

Development: Erection of three storey, detached building to contain Doctors surgery and
pharmacy at ground floor level with associated parking and 6 x 2-bedroom
and 3 x 1-bedroom self contained flats over the three floors with two roof
terraces, associated parking in basement and installation of vehicular
crossover to front.

LBH Ref Nos: 363/APP/2015/3827

Drawing Nos: 239:06 Rev A
239:12
239:02 Rev A
239:04 Rev A
Design and Access Statement
Tree Survey
Planning Statement
239:00
P1003-S150 Rev A
239:05
239:03
239:07
239:08
239:V1
239:v2
239:V3
239:v4
239:V5
239:V6
239:v7
239:vV8
239:V8
239:V10
239:11 Rev B
239:21 (Urban Grain of Local Area
239:22 (Urban Grain of Wider Context’

239:01 Rev B
Date Plans Received: 14/10/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 27/10/2015
Date Application Valid: 28/10/2015 14/10/2015

16/12/2015
1. SUMMARY

This application proposes the demolition of the existing single storey flat-roofed building on
the site (which houses the Eastcote Surgery Medical Centre), and erection of a three
storey detached building, which would consist of a Doctors surgery and pharmacy at
ground floor level with associated parking, 6 x 2-bedroom and 3 x 1-bedroom self-
contained flats over the three floors with two roof terraces, associated parking in a new
basement and installation of a new vehicular crossover off the Deane Croft Road frontage.

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 11



The application had been referred to the Planning Committee because of a call-in from a
Ward Councillor, the receipt of two petitions objecting to the application and one petition in
support of the application from local residents. The applicant was given opportunities to
make representations in response to initial and additional consultation comments from the
Council's Conservation Officers, before and after the expiration of the application on 23
December 2015. The applicant was also given the opportunity to provide information in
respect of a site investigation to establish groundwater levels in the site. The information
was required to enable the Council's Drainage/Flood Officers assess whether the
development, particularly the basement element, would have any adverse implications for
localised flood risk in the area. However, the applicant did not provide the requested
information, nor did they respond to the additional comments from the Conservation
Officers. The  applicant  subsequently lodged an appeal (reference
APP/R5510/W/16/3143034) on 15 February 2016 against the non-determination of the
application. As a result, this Committee report sets out Officers assessment of, and
recommendation for the proposal, if the Council had the opportunity to make a formal
decision.

It is considered that the proposed development, by reason of its contrived and
unacceptable design, height, scale, form and excessive footprint, would constitute over-
development and loss of a prominent open-space characteristic of the site, thereby
resulting in a detrimental impact on the setting of the nearby Grade Il listed buildings at
Field End Farmhouse (No. 86 Field End Road) and the Barn House (No. 38 Meadow
Way), and the character, appearance and visual amenities of the streetscene and the
surrounding area.

The extensive projection of the proposed development beyond the front and rear building
lines of Walsh Lodge is such that it would result in an overbearing and unduly dominating
impact on that neighbouring property, with a resultant loss of visual and residential
amenities.

It is considered that in the absence of a site investigation to establish groundwater levels
for the the basement element, the applicant has not demonstrated whether the proposed
development would result in additional surface water run-off and generation of localised
flood risk in the surrounding area. In the absence of such information, it is therefore
considered that the proposed development would form a potential adverse risk for
localised flooding in the area.

As such, the proposal is considered to be contrary to the objectives of Policies BE13,
BE19, BE21, BE22, BE24, EM6 and OES8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012), Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One -
Strategic Policies (November 2012) and the adopted HDAS SPD: Residential Layouts
(July 2006).

Accordingly, the application is recommended for refusal.
2, RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development, by reason of its contrived and unacceptable design, storey
height, scale, form and excessive footprint, would constitute over-development and loss of
a prominent open-space characteristic of the site, thereby resulting in a detrimental
impact on the setting of the nearby Grade Il listed buildings at Field End Farmhouse (No.
86 Field End Road) and the Barn House (No. 38 Meadow Way), and the character,

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 12



appearance and visual amenities of the streetscene and the surrounding area. The
proposed development would therefore not accord with the design objectives of Policy
BE1 of Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies
BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and the adopted HDAS SPD: Residential Layouts (July 2006).

2 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development would feature an extensive projection beyond the front and
rear building lines of the neighbouring property to the east, Walsh Lodge (1A Deane Croft
Road). This would result in an overbearing and unduly dominating impact on that
neighbouring property, with a resultant loss of visual and residential amenities, contrary to
Policy BE1 of Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012),
Policies BE21, BE22 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and the adopted HDAS SPD: Residential Layouts (July 2006).

3 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

Sufficient information in the form of a site investigation to establish groundwater levels for
the the basement element has not been provided to the Council, to demonstrate whether
the proposed development would result in additional surface water run-off and generation
of localised flood risk in the surrounding area. In the absence of such information, the
proposed development would form a potential adverse risk for localised flooding in the
area, contrary to the objectives of Policies EM6 and OES8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), and Policy 5.12 of The London Plan (2015).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where
appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 13



BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

EM6 (2012) Flood Risk Management

H4 Mix of housing units

H8 Change of use from non-residential to residential

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures

OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.3 (2015) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2015) Housing Choice

LPP 5.12 (2015) Flood risk management

LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), the London Plan Policies (2015).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

4

Under the terms of the Planning Act 2008 (as amended) and Community Infrastructure
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended), should an application for appeal be allowed, the
proposed development would be deemed as 'chargeable development' and therefore
liable to pay the London Borough of Hillingdon Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and
the Mayor of London's Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). This would be calculated in
accordance with the London Borough of Hillingdon CIL Charging Schedule 2014 and the
Mayor of London's CIL Charging Schedule 2012.

For more information on CIL matters please visit the planning portal page at:
www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/applications/howtoapply/whattosubmit/cil

3. CONSIDERATIONS

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 14



3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is a prominent triangular-shaped plot on the eastern corner of the
junction between Field End Road and Deane Croft Road. To the western corner of the
junction is Meadow Way, and to the south, adjacent to the site on the opposite side of
Deane Croft Road, is the boundary of the Secondary Shopping Area of the Eastcote Town
Centre.

The site is currently occupied by a single storey flat-roofed building, which is set back
approximately 15m from the front boundary with Deane Croft Road. The building houses
the Eastcote Surgery Medical Centre and is served by a central hardsurfaced car park with
8 parking bays, and which is accessed from a vehicle crossover off Dean Croft Road.
There is a pedestrian access to the site off Deane Croft Road.

There is a thin strip of grass verge and line of established trees along the western side
boundary with Field End Road, which partly screen the site from the streetscene. On the
opposite side of the site to the west are two Grade Il Listed properties, Field End
Farmhouse at No. 86 Field End Road and the Barn House at No. 38 Meadow Way. The site
is bounded to the north by the Eastcote War Memorial, associated memorial garden and
mature trees.

Immediately adjacent to the eastern side of the site is a two storey residential property,
Walsh Lodge - 1A Deane Croft Road, which comprises five apartments. The application
site building and the adjacent property at Walsh Lodge have similar front building lines, and
both buildings are significantly set back from the established front building line of the
neighbouring two storey residential dwellings farther to the northern side of Deane Croft
Road.

Field End Road is a Local Distributor road and the immediate locality has a moderate
Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) score of 3. The adjacent Town Centre to the
south is mainly characterised by terraced three storey properties in the 'Metroland' style,
and which mainly comprise mixed use developments with retail/lcommercial units at
ground floor level and residential units above.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application proposes the demolition of the existing single storey flat-roofed building on
the site (which houses the Eastcote Surgery Medical Centre), and erection of a three
storey detached building, which would consist of a Doctors Surgery and Pharmacy at
ground floor level with associated parking, 6 x 2-bedroom and 3 x 1-bedroom self-
contained flats over the three floors with two roof terraces, associated parking in a new
basement and installation of a new vehicular crossover off the Deane Croft Road frontage.

The proposed building would have a triangular shape incorporating three elevations
(western, southern and eastern) which would mirror the shape of the site. The proposed
building, which would have bricked facings, a sedum green flat roof and deeper angled
front projection to the eastern side of the southern elevation (fronting Deane Croft Road),
would consist of two blocks linked by a central glazed atrium. The atrium, which consists
of a projecting lift/stair core, would project above the flat roof at a width of 5.7m and height
of 2m, and provide access to two enclosed roof terraces.

Due to the triangular shape of the building, the proposed building would have a width that
varies between 4.7m at the northern end to 24.5m at the stepped southern elevation. The
building would be 22.3m deep along the western and eastern elevations. The building

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 15



3.3

would be 9m high and comprise three upper floor projecting bays to the eastern elevation. It
would also comprise projecting external balconies (to form private amenity areas) to the
southwestern, southeastern and northeastern elevations for the 8 flats across the first and
second floors. The Doctor's Surgery and Pharmacy would have separate glazed
accesses, and there would be a 1-bedroom flat positioned to the rearmost part of the
ground floor. The ground floor flat would have a projecting external balcony for private
amenity and would be accessed from a separate entrance to the northwestern elevation of
the building. This would also form the main access for the upper floor flats. A new
pedestrian access would be provided from thr western side boundary.

Revised site layout and basement plans show the provision of a repositioned car park
adjacent to the existing crossover off Deane Croft Road, which would consist of 7 parking
spaces (including 2 wheelchair accessible spaces). These spaces would service the
parking needs of the Doctor's Surgery and Pharmacy. The proposed basement would be
accessed from a new 4.1m wide crossover to the eastern side of the frontage off Deane
Croft Road, and it would comprise of 14 parking spaces for the residential flats (including 2
wheelchair accessible spaces).

Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History
There is no relevant planning history for the site.

Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1

Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people witt
disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(i) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.
BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.
BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016

PART 1

- MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 16



BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

EM6 (2012) Flood Risk Management

H4 Mix of housing units

H8 Change of use from non-residential to residential

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

OE8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.3 (2015) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2015) Housing Choice

LPP 5.12 (2015) Flood risk management

LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

10 neighbouring properties (Nos. 83 x 2, 83A & 86 Field End Road; Barn House - Nos. 38 Meadow
Way; Flats 1, 2, 3, 4 & 5 Walsh Lodge, 1A Deane Croft Road), the Eastcote Residents Association
and the Eastcote Village Conservation Panel were consulted by letter on 30/10/2015. A site notice
was also displayed in the area on 10/11/2015.

A petition from the Eastcote Conservation Panel containing 35 signatures and objecting to the
application proposal has been received.

A petition from the Eastcote Residents Association containing 20 signatures and objecting to the
proposal has also been received. The grounds of objection are summarised below:

- Over-development of the site and out of keeping with the adjacent war memorial and properties.

- Purports to be a development to improve the medical centre but the increase in size is very
marginal. No need for a pharmacy as the adjacent Eastcote shopping centre has several
pharmacies and also unfortunately empty shops.

- A smaller, more sensible development would likely be acceptable.

A petition containing 65 signatures and supporting the application proposal has been received. The
grounds of support are summarised below:

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 17



- Redevelopment of the surgery. The new building will be up to date with increased internal space for
staff, provision of increased clinical services and patient access.
- Improved surgery will benefit local community and help area with additional housing.

An objection from the Eastcote and East Ruislip Ward Councillors and 9 objection letters from
neighbouring residents have also been received, the grounds of which are summarised below:

- The proposed three-storey building will be at odds with the streetscene, over-dominant, visually
intrusive and out of keeping with the architecture in the local area

- The proposed building will be out of keeping with the two storey pitched roof buildings on Deane
Croft Road and Meadow Way.

- The building would overshadow and endanger both nearby listed buildings.

- The building would dominate the view of those who visit Eastcote's War Memorial.

- Loss of open aspect of the corner site.

- Proposed balconies will overlook the bedrooms of houses in Deane Croft Road including adjacent
Walsh Lodge to the east.

- The building will block out sunlight to side windows at adjacent Walsh Lodge.

- It will result in over-concentration of Pharmacies in the area.

- It will reduce parking space for patients and they cannot park in surrounding roads

- Increase in car traffic and noise and danger to pedestrian's safety.

- The application does not supply any form of documentation to show that the underground water
flows of the area in respect of the underground car park have been considered.

- The construction of basement for parking will cause various bad effects to the neighbours and
instability of the ground.

EASTCOTE CONSERVATION PANEL:

81, Field End Road is a triangular plot situated at the cross road junction of Field End Road with
Deane Croft Road and Field End Road with Meadow Way. The appearance of this area is an open,
tree lined space the focal point being the Grade Il listed buildings and the War Memorial Garden.

It is adjacent to the Eastcote War Memorial Garden, which is surrounded by a yew hedge. This
hedge is now nearly 100 years old and will need protection during any building works on this site.
Eastcote Town centre is classed a Metroland development, mostly built between the two World
Wars. The architecture being based on the original 1920s Arts & Crafts development [Eastcote
Conservation Area - Morford Way]. One small area, which includes Eastcote Library on the corner of
Field End Road/Meadow Way, being built post WWII, but retaining the same style as the rest of the
Town. The cut off point for these three storey pitched roof buildings is this cross road.

Opposite to the proposed development site stand two Grade Il listed buildings. The Barn and Field
End Farm. Both timber framed buildings of considerable note. Each set back from the road with
complimentary landscaping. The status of these buildings is not acknowledged within the
application.

The two storey pitched roof buildings on Deane Croft Road and Meadow Way are again inter war
development architecturally in keeping with the town centre. Walsh House, recently built, follows the
general architectural style of the area, being two storey with a pitched roof. The dwellings on Deane
Croft Road are next to Walsh House, not further down the road as stated in the D&AS.

This proposal will be over dominant and totally out of keeping with the street scene. In fact it could be
described as a carbuncle on the face of Eastcote. The proposal is for a three storey flat roof block.
On top of the third storey is a building to house the lift. Equivalent in height to another storey. The
roof garden will intrude into the privacy of the surrounding dwellings.

The large protruding balconies will be intrusive into the street scene.

The amount of parking for the Doctor's surgery will be reduced from 8 spaces to three. There are
three Doctors registered, so there is no parking for patients. This is not acceptable as the

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 18



surrounding roads have Residents parking schemes in place. The Pharmacy will require deliveries,
no provision has been made for deliveries within the parking layout. The drawing showing access to
the underground car park does not show any gradients to prove that this idea is feasible. The D&AS
refers to the waste storage area being hidden from view. It is so well hidden that it does not appear
on any of the drawings. A bat survey has not been carried out. The area has many large trees that
could provide roosts for bats, especially those near to the War Memorial Garden, a wild life survey
should be carried out before any determination is made. Hillingdon's Local Plan acknowledges the
'Metroland' developments as important to the Borough. It must also be noted that Hillingdon will more
than fulfill its housing quota during the next 15 years. This area is not included in the Local Plan's
Site Allocations. This proposal is an over development of the site, by it's size, height and mass it will
be totally out of keeping with this part of Eastcote.

We ask that the application be refused.
RUISLIP, NORTHWOOD & EASTCOTE LOCAL HISTORY SOCIETY

The Society has many concerns about this application to demolish an existing surgery and replace it
with a much larger three storey building.

The site is on the corner of Field End Road and Deane Croft Road. It is located at the end of
Eastcote town centre which is an excellent example of a small scale Metroland shopping area with
attractive brickwork buildings all with pitched roofs. It is also at the end of a residential road where all
the properties are two storey houses of a suburban character in the Arts and Crafts style. The
nearby new building Walsh House complements these architectural styles.

But the proposed development will not be in sympathy with these surroundings. It will be too high
and bulky and obtrusive. The flat roof and the over prominent lift equipment on the top will be
detrimental to the suburban character of the area.

On the opposite side of Field End Road are two listed timber framed buildings; Field End Farm and
The Barn. These will be compromised by having such an unsuitable development just across the
road. The site is adjacent to the war memorial and a three storey building with a roof garden will be
over dominant and inappropriate.

The Society is not against a like for like replacement of the doctor's surgery. But this proposal
represents an over development of the site and is totally unsuitable and we request that it be
refused.

Internal Consultees
CONSERVATION OFFICER:

Recommendation: Unacceptable.

The site is located on the corner of Field End Road and Deane Croft Road. It is a prominent corner
plot situated opposite two, Grade |l Listed properties, Field End Farm House and the Barn to the
south. Adjacent to this is the Eastcote War Memorial and associated memorial garden. The site
currently comprises of a small single storey building situated to the rear of the site. Whilst there are
no objections to the demolition of this building, any new building must respect the scale, character
and architectural style of the surrounding buildings in the area. The site itself has a modest area of
hard standing for use as a car park, however the bulk of the site is characterised by significant
grassed areas, which provide a sense of openness. The site boundary facing directly towards Field
End Road and the War Memorial is bounded by mature trees. The greenery allows the space to act
as a transition/ gateway from the character of the High Street, to a well defined residential area
beyond. Access to the site is via Deane Croft Road; however the site is visible from both Deane

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 19



Croft Road and Field End Road.

COMMENTS: Whilst there is potential for development on the site, it is important any new building
appropriately respects the setting and significance of the adjacent War Memorial and the Grade Il
Listed properties opposite. As proposed the scheme would be considered in principle unacceptable.
Its overall height, bulk, scale, massing, materiality and form would be considered visually obtrusive; it
would not respect, relate or respond to the area's established local character or distinctiveness.

The plan form of the proposed building responds to the shape of the site; however the design of the
building should relate to the established street scene. The proposed building's positioning on the site
and general form does not follow the defined front building line of Deane Croft Road. It would project
considerably forward of the neighbouring building, Walsh Lodge, making it highly visible and
dominant in the streetscene. Therefore it would be considered in principle unacceptable. It is
recommended that the overall footprint of the building is significantly reduced and the proposed
building follows the front building of neighbouring properties.

The close proximity of the building to the site's boundary, between the site and Walsh Lodge would
be considered in principle unacceptable, particularly at first and second floor. The proposed building
would need to be further set in for its full height to ensure a significant gap is maintained between the
buildings.

The overall bulk and height of the building would be considered out of scale in relation to the
surrounding buildings. The proposed 3 storey building would significantly dwarf the neighbouring 2
storey building. Whilst the mature trees provide some screening the proposed building would still be
highly visible from Field End Road.

Taking into account the orientation, bulk, massing and height of the building and site, the rear flank
elevation of the proposed building would be highly visible from Field End Road and the War
Memorial, which would have a detrimental impact on the wider setting of the War Memorial and
context of the Grade Il listed buildings.

Taking into account the visible nature of the site and the plot size, the proposed building would not be
considered proportionate or appropriately positioned on the general site.

Significant revisions to the design of the development are required, which should incorporate the
following:

- The building would need to appropriately address the existing pedestrian paths/ access routes.

- The assortment of fenestration styles creates complicated, cluttered elevations. The fenestration
pattern would need to be cohesively designed relating to the surrounding styles. This may be
achieved by incorporating glazing bars to windows and creating a singular window style for the flats
to provide a clear distinction between the split use of the building (the doctor's surgery and
residential accommodation above).

- The proposed balconies are not a known feature to the area. The positioning of the balconies would
not be considered appropriate in relation to the street scene and surrounding vegetation.

- The flat roof form and overall height would be considered in principle unacceptable. Whilst the
building heights along the main shopping parade are 3 storeys, the neighbouring building is 2 storeys
in height. The character of the area takes a significant change at this point along Field End Road to
be predominantly residential; therefore the proposed building would need to be designed to respond
to such a change. The neighbouring building is relatively low in height therefore it is recommended
the proposed building is reduced to 2 storeys in height ideally with a pitched roof form. This would
significantly reduce the bulk and height of the overall building.

Case Officer comments:
In response to the initial comments of the Conservation Officer, the applicant provided two Urban
Grain drawings of the local and wider contexts of the surrounding area, as well as a rebuttal letter.

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 20



The Conservation Officer provided additional comments to address the representation in the
applicant's rebuttal letter. The comments are outlined below in the 'Impact on the character and
appearance of the area' section of this report.

HIGHWAYS OFFICER:

a.The site has moderate public transport accessibility (PTAL=3).

b. The ramp to the underground car park should include a central separation strip between inbound
and outbound lanes. In addition, vehicular swept paths with 300mm error margins are required to
demonstrate adequacy of lane widths along the ramp.

c. The layout of car park bays at the base of the ramp would be amended to allow each bay to
operate independently when other bays are occupied.

d. The headroom should be confirmed to be a minimum of 2.1m.

e. Location of Cycle parking should be clearly shown on plans.

f. Location of proposed refuse storage / collection arrangements should be provided.

g. The applicant will be responsible for cost of making good any redundant / amended and
construction of proposed new vehicular crossovers.

h. Pedestrian visibility splays 1.5m x 1.5m and vehicular sightlines measuring 2.4m x 43m should be
provided with no obstruction over 0.6m high, at each vehicular access.

i. Car parking should include 20% active and 20% passive provision for electric vehicles.

Subject to resolution of the above comments, there are no highway objections.

Case Officer comments:

The applicant submitted revised site layout and basement level drawings to address the issues
raised by the Highways Officer. The Highways Officer has been re-consulted on the revised
drawings, and their comments will be reported in the Addendum to follow this report.

DRAINAGE OFFICER:

Any basement proposal should have a site investigation accompanying it. The Drainage Officers
should be consulted if there are findings that show groundwater.

A site investigation for the site is required and the investigation should include boreholes to establish
groundwater levels in the site.

Case Officer comments:

The applicant was contacted by Officers to provide information in respect of a site investigation to
establish groundwater levels in the site. However, at the time of writing this report and the lodging of
the appeal, the applicant had not provided the requested information.

TREES OFFICER:

The site is a prominent corner plot at the junction of Field End Road and Deane Croft Avenue, at the
north end of the Field End Road shopping parade.

The site is currently occupied a by a single-storey flat-roofed building in the north corner, which
houses Eastcote Surgery Medical Centre. The centre of the site is occupied by a car park for visitors
to the surgery, accessed from Dean Croft Road. The site benefits from a soft landscaped strip of
grass verge along the west boundary (with Field End Road) with a line of established trees which
partly screen the site. It is noted that the above tree screen has recently been thinned, with selected
trees removed. This has significantly reduced the quality of the tree screen - and left some very poor
specimens. There are no Tree Preservation Orders and no Conservation Area designations
affecting trees within the site.

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 21



The Design & Access Statement (D&AS) refers to the landscape and in particular the existing trees.
It states that 'very careful consideration has been given to the established trees on the site'.

- However, no tree survey or analysis (to BS5837:2012) has been submitted. Trees of some stature
have recently been removed and some of the remaining trees are not worthy of retention.

- There is little supporting information regarding a landscape masterplan. The belt of trees along the
west boundary should be properly surveyed and assessed, in accordance with BS5837:2012. It is
likely that further tree removal will be necessary.

- The landscape plan should ensure that appropriate planting (including replacement trees) is
provided along the west boundary, facing Field End Road.

- The Deane Croft Road frontage will also require landscaping along the front boundary of the site.

- According to the D&AS there will be an accessible hard-surfaced roof garden for the benefit of
residents with a sedum roof strip around the edges. It is unlikely that a paved area will provide an
attractive amenity space for residents. These areas tend to be bleak and draughty.

- If the roof is to be used as a roof garden it should be carefully designed to accommodate large
shrubs / small trees, hedges and ornamental plants to provide sheltered and usable areas for
seating and passive recreation.

- If the application is recommended for approval, landscape conditions should be imposed to ensure
that the proposals preserve and enhance the character and local distinctiveness of the surrounding
natural and built environment.

RECOMMENDATIONS: No objection, subject to the above observations and the submission and
approval of soft / hard landscape schemes, replacement tree planting scheme and tree protection
measures - tree protection will need to be informed by a tree survey (Condition codes RES6, RES7,
RES8, RES9 (parts 1,2,3,4,5, and 6) and RES10).

ACCESS OFFICER:

The Design & Access Statement makes no specific reference to accessibility standards, however
one unit is said to have been designed to be accessible with an enlarged bathroom and wide
doorways. The D & A Statement further states that level access would be achieved to each
apartment via lift access to every storey.

In assessing this application, reference has been made to the Minor Alterations to the London Plan
2015, Policies 3.8 (Housing Choice), and Approved Document M to the Building Regulations 2015
(ADM 2015). The proposal is required to meet the standards for a Category 2 M4(2) dwelling -
accessible and adaptable, as set out in ADM 2015.

The following access observations are provided:

- To comply with the above policy requirements and the relevant Technical Housing Standards as
prescribed in M4(2) Approved Document M to the Building Regulations 2015, a minimum of one
bathroom in every flat should comply with dimensions as per diagram 2.7 in Approved Document M
(2015, Volume 1).

Conclusion: revised plans should be submitted to demonstrate that an appropriate bathroom layout
can be incorporated into every flat.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) emphasises the role of the planning
system in enabling the provision of homes and buildings which are consistent with the
principles of sustainable development.

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 22



Policy 3.4 of The London Plan (2015) promotes the optimisation of housing output within
different types of location. Policy 3.8 of The London Plan also encourages the Council to
provide a range of housing choices in order to take account of the various different groups
who require different types of housing. Consideration will also be given to the accessibility
of the site to services and amenities.

Policy H4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
also seeks to encourage additional housing in and adjacent to Town Centres. The
supporting text states:

"The Council recognises the importance of residential accommodation in and adjacent to
town centres as a part of the overall mix of uses, which is necessary to ensure their vitality
and attractiveness. Such housing offers particular advantages in terms of accessibility to
town centre facilities, employment opportunities and public transport. In order to maximise
the residential potential of town centre sites, residential development within them should
comprise predominantly of one or two-bedroom units".

The site is located within a 'Developed Area' and primarily residential area, as defined in the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012). Whilst general
policies are supportive of residential development in principle, this is subject to compliance
with a number of detailed criteria, including the consideration of the loss of any existing use
of the site.

The objection received from the residents in respect of the proposed Pharmacy and over-
concentration in the area is noted. The site comprises an existing long standing and
established Use Class D1 Doctor's Surgery, so there is no material objection to the
provision of a new larger ground floor Surgery in the proposed three storey building on the
site. The Pharmacy would fall within Use Class A1 and it is considered that it would be
related and complementary to the Doctor's Surgery use. The Doctor's Surgery would have
a floor area of 111 sq.m and the Pharmacy would have a floor area of 54 sq.m. Both uses
would have a dedicated parking area and a turning area for servicing in the forecourt. There
would therefore be no unreasonable impact to the residential character of the immediate
locality and the retail frontage of the adjacent Eastcote Town Centre as a result of the
operation of the uses.

Having regard to The London Plan and the Council's policies and guidelines, it is
considered that in general, there is no objection to the principle of the proposed mixed use
on the site incorporating retail/commercial and residential uses. It is considered that the
proposal would provide an increase in smaller housing stock within the Borough and is
acceptable in principle, as it would provide additional housing within an area of moderate
public transport accessibility.

The proposal is therefore considered to be in compliance with the outlined policies above.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

Paragraph 4.1 of the Residential Layouts HDAS SPD specifies that in new developments,
numerical densities are considered to be more appropriate to larger sites and will not be
used in the assessment of schemes of less than 10 units, such as this proposal. The key
consideration is therefore whether the development sits comfortably within its environment
rather than a consideration of the density of the proposal.

The application site is located within an area with a Public Transport Accessibility Level
(PTAL) of 3 (PTAL has a range between 1 and 6, with 1 being low levels of public transport
accessibility and 6 being high).

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 23



Policy 3.4 of The London Plan (2015) stipulates that for such urban areas with moderate
PTAL scores, a range of residential units between 45 and 120 units per hectare would be
appropriate. The application site is approximately 0.0894 ha (894 sg.m) in area, and with 9
residential units proposed, this represents approximately 64 Units per hectare.

As such, the density is considered appropriate given the location.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The application site is not sited within a Conservation Area, Area of Special Local
Character and/or Archaeological Priority Zone.

However, the site is within 20m (across Field End Road) of two Grade Il Listed properties,
Field End Farmhouse at No. 86 Field End Road and the Barn House at No. 38 Meadow
Way. These listed buildings are directly opposite the site across the Field End Road
highway to the west. The distance is such that the application site is within the setting of
these listed buildings.

It is considered that the proposed development, by reason of its contrived and
unacceptable flat-roof design, three storey height, scale, massing, form and excessive
footprint, would constitute an obtrusive and unsympathetic addition on the site, which would
have a detrimental impact on the preservation of the setting of the nearby Grade Il listed
buildings.

The discussion in respect of the detrimental impact of the proposed development on the
setting of the nearby Grade Il listed buildings is provided in the 'Impact on the character and
appearance of the area' section below.

7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application as the site is not situated within the Green Belt.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design and the preservation/enhancement of sites with heritage
assets such as listed buildings.

Furthermore, Policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) seek to ensure that new development
complements, improves and/or harmonises with the character and visual amenity of a
streetscene and surrounding residential area in which it is situated.

Paragraph 4.14 of the Council's adopted HDAS SPD: Residential Layouts (July 2006)
specifies that developments should incorporate usable, attractively laid out and private
garden space conveniently located in relation to the property or properties it serves. It
should be of an appropriate size, having regard to the size of the dwelling and character of
the area. Paragraph 4.27 of the HDAS SPD gives advice that building lines within a new
development should relate to the street pattern of the surroundings whilst the height of the
development is best determined by reference to the proportions, siting and lines of
surrounding buildings.

The objection from local residents in respect of the visual impact of the proposed
development on the streetscene and general visual amenities of the locality is noted. The

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 24



initial Conservation Officer's comments recommended enhancements and improvements
to ensure that the proposed development relates to the established character and
distinctiveness of the wider Eastcote area. This is because it is important that the
proposed building becomes a positive asset within the area's townscape, and contribute to
the unique and defined streetscape of both Field End Road and Deane Croft Road.

Whilst there are no objections to the principle of re-developing the site, it is considered that
the proposed development would have a considerable impact on the general streetscape
and townscape of Eastcote, as the application site is prominently positioned at the northern
end of the Secondary Shopping Area of the Eastcote Town Centre, and on a visible corner
plot. The existing building on the site is significantly set back (15m) from the Deane Croft
frontage, and as such, the site comprises a distinctive open space characteristic. The
Conservation Officer has advised that it is therefore important that any new development
on the site does not become an overly dominant structure and detract from the existing
streetscape and adjacent townscape. It is instructive to note that the recent removal of
some mature trees on the site has increased the visibility of the site from the Field End
Road streetscene.

The Conservation Officer has provided a character analysis and development of Eastcote.
The individual character of Eastcote as a place and how it has developed overtime. The
immediate surroundings of the site are characterised by a suburban setting. The nearby
Grade Il Listed Buildings to the west, Field End Farmhouse and the Barn House are notable
reminders of Eastcote's agricultural, rural past; it is imperative that new development on
this site should not detract from their significance and respect their setting. The
surrounding residential areas and the shopping parade form part of the 'Metroland'
development that occurred during the 1920s/1930s, developing into present day Eastcote.
The Conservation Officer has commented that the suburban nature of the Eastcote
townscape and streetscape should be enhanced through new development; it should aim
to relate to established local character and distinctiveness.

The adjacent War Memorial to the north was built in the 1920s, prior to the 'Metroland'
development. The surrounding memorial garden forms the context for the War Memorial
monument. It is instructive to note that the War Memorial is a significant, locally important
feature, and comprises of more than just the monument itself. The principle of
Remembrance is respected by the open nature of the site and distance to the surrounding
buildings. Historically, the area of the War Memorial was a pond associated to the Listed
Building (Field End Farmhouse). In this regard, the Conservation officer has commented
that the sensitive nature of the War Memorial in relation to its position and the impact of
developing the application site should be considered, and that the development of the
application site should aim to be an extension of the public realm, thereby maintaining a
sense of openness.

It should be noted that historically, on the adjacent site to where the closest residential
property to the east - Walsh Lodge (1A Deane Croft Road) is now positioned, there was
previously an individual building, prior to the 1930s development of Eastcote. Therefore the
design of Walsh Lodge may relate to the previous building. Whilst Walsh Lodge
predominantly comprises flats, its design replicates a detached dwelling, which relates to
the rest of the residential character of Deane Croft Road.

In relation to the consideration of footprint of the proposed development, the Conservation
Officer has commented that the Urban grain studies submitted by the applicant cannot be
interpreted inclusively. The studies take into account the spatial arrangement of the

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 25



buildings, the density of the area's development and building footprints. The footprint of a
building should take into account the size of the site and in turn be proportionate to the
space available and fit within the wider grain of the area. Even though the submitted urban
grain study shows the residential area of Eastcote (north, east and west of the site), it does
not however explore the southern end of Field End Road (comprising the shopping parade
in the Town Centre). The application site can be defined as a transition gateway between
Eastcote's Town Centre and its residential area(s). The application site is unique in its
distinctiveness, as there are no other triangular formed sites within the surrounding area. In
this instance, it would be wrong to assume that it is in character with the surrounding area
based on this approach. The footprint of the proposed building as noted in the initial
Conservation Officer comments follows the triangular shape of the site. The proposed
building would not be considered proportionate to the size and nature of the site. The
existing building on the site has a footprint of 110 sq.m and the proposed building would
have an approximate footprint of 546 sq.m. The proposed footprint is overly excessive and
unacceptable as it represents an increase on the existing by almost 500%. Furthermore,
the depth and width of the proposed building would be more than double the 11m width and
10m depth of the existing building on the site. As such, the proposed building would result
in an unacceptable over-development, unduly excessive scale and massing. Even though
the building appears to have a roof height that is similar to the adjacent buildings to the
east, its three storey height and flat roof, combined with the excessive scale, are such that
it would result in a significant loss of the sense of openness already established on the site.

With regards to the positioning and set-in of the proposed building from the Field End Road
and Deane Croft Road front boundaries, the building line along the Deane Croft Road
frontage is almost in line with the building line established by the residential houses farther
to the east. However, the Conservation officer has commented that ideally, the proposed
front building line should follow that set by the existing building or the adjacent building,
Walsh Lodge, or a positioning in between the 2 notable building lines. There is no defined
orientation to the application site and whilst the applicant indicates the 'primary frontage' as
Field End Road, the proposal does not address the road as such. The proposed building
does not adequately respond to the sense of openness currently characterising this
frontage, and it predominantly addresses the 'secondary frontage', Deane Croft Road with
the presence of the main entrance to the building and access to the site situated off this
road. The proposed building features a projecting element to the eastern end of the
frontage along Deane Croft Road, which is set-in 4.5m from that front boundary. The
projecting element would contain the proposed Pharmacy element, and it would create a
book end effect along Deane Croft Road, thereby creating a flank elevation facing onto the
adjacent Walsh Lodge, and obscuring the view of that neighbouring property from the
junction of Field End Road and Deane Croft Road.

The western elevation of the building facing Field End Road, would look out towards the
War Memorial, and it would be a long stark elevation with a dominant negative
characteristic. As such, the overall substantial bulk would not be in keeping with the
streetscene. The residential flats located in Winslow Close to the north (after the War
memorial), are not clearly visible from the site and/or from the streetscene. Winslow Close
is a 'set piece' development. The buildings are appropriately located within an enclosed site
within a spacious plot, so therefore they are proportionate to the size of that neighbouring
site. The height of the Winslow Close development is well screened by mature vegetation,
so it would not be appropriate in this instance use it as a precedent and compare the
openness of the application site to this precedent. The three storey height of the proposed
building, with attached central 2m high atrium would dominate the streetscape of the area.
It is instructive to note that the Conservation Officer recommended that the building should

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 26



be significantly reduced in height, and that a two and a half storey building would respect
the established two storey height of the residential area and three storey height of the
adjacent Town Centre shopping parades, thereby contributing to the transitional character
of this site. The Conservation Officer also commented that an alternative roof form would
allow the building to relate to an established hipped/pitched roofscape style evident along
the existing streetscene.

Taking into account the orientation, design, excessive bulk, massing, footprint, storey
height and coverage of the proposed building, the proposed building would be prominently
visible from the Field End Road streetscene and the War Memorial, and would constitute a
visually intrusive, obtrusive and unduly dominating addition on the site, which would have a
detrimental impact on the wider setting of the War Memorial and context of the nearby
Grade Il listed buildings to the west.

If the application proposal had been considered acceptable in all aspects, suitable
conditions would have been recommended in respect of the submission of suitable soft
and hard landscape schemes, as well as the submission of details for protective
measures for the established mature trees on the site.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development, by reason of its contrived and
unacceptable design, storey height, scale, form and excessive footprint, would constitute
over-development and loss of a prominent open-space characteristic of the site, thereby
resulting in a detrimental impact on the setting of the nearby Grade Il listed buildings at
Field End Farmhouse (No. 86 Field End Road) and the Barn House (No. 38 Meadow Way),
and the character, appearance and visual amenities of the streetscene and the
surrounding area. The proposed development would therefore not accord with the design
objectives of Policy BE1 of Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November
2012), Policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and the adopted HDAS SPD: Residential Layouts (July 2006).
7.08 Impact on neighbours

Paragraph 4.11 of the Council's adopted HDAS SPD: Residential Layouts (July 2006) gives
advice that the 45 degree line of sight principle will be applied to new development, to
ensure the amenity of adjoining occupiers and future occupiers are protected.

Paragraph 4.9 of the HDAS SPD specifies that a minimum acceptable distance to
minimise the negative impact of overbearing and overshadowing is 15m. Paragraph 4.12 of
the HDAS SPD requires a minimum of 21m distance between facing habitable room
windows to prevent overlooking and loss of privacy.

Policy BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
specifies that planning permission will not be granted for new buildings, which by reason of
their siting, bulk and proximity would result in a significant loss of residential amenity.

The objection from residents in respect of the intensification of use of the site as a result of
the proposed Pharmacy and Doctor's Surgery is noted. It is acknowledged that the
Pharmacy use would result in a number of comings and goings of persons who may not
necessarily want to access the Surgery. There are no records of any opening hours for the
established existing Surgery on the site, and the applicant has not provided any details of
opening hours for both proposed uses. The proposed Pharmacy use is a retail use that
falls within Use Class A1, and such uses would normally not have opening hours
restrictions. It is considered that both the uses would have closing hours before the start of
the conventional resting hour of 2300 for residential occupiers. Nevertheless, if the

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 27



application had been considered acceptable in all aspects, a condition would have been
recommended to restrict the daily closing hour of the Doctor Surgery and Pharmacy uses
to 2100 hours.

The closest adjacent residential property to the application site is the two-storey Walsh
Lodge (1A Deane Croft Road), which is sited adjacent to the eastern side boundary. The
submitted plans show that the proposed building would have a height that is similar to that
of Walsh Lodge. The existing building on the site has similar front and rear building lines
with Walsh Lodge. However, the eastern flank of the proposed building would be set in
from the western flank wall of walsh Lodge by approximately 3.3m, and it would project
beyond the rear building line of Walsh Lodge by 1m, and project beyond the front building
line by 11m. Even though the applicant has indicated on the submitted plans that the
proposed building would not intersect 45 degree lines of sight taken from the nearest edges
of the front and rear walls of Walsh Lodge, this is a tool used to help assess the impacts
on light. The 11m front projection and associated height of the building in relation to Walsh
Lodge in particular is considered unduly excessive. Notwithstanding that it wouldn't dissect
the 45 degree line, it would be a prominent feature in the outlook available and it would
result in the building having an overbearing and unduly dominating impact on that
neighbouring property with a resultant loss of visual amenities for the occupiers of that
property.

The external upper level balconies to the rear of the building would project 3.3m beyond the
rear wall of Walsh Lodge, and the orientation of the building in relation to that neighbouring
property is such that the roof terraces and external balconies would offer direct and oblique
views of the rear garden of that property. However, it is recognised that the this is a
communal garden area which is already overlooked by the windows of the different flats.
As a consequence the proposed development would not result in a significant change of a
loss of privacy to the rear garden at Walsh Lodge.

As such, the proposal is considered to be contrary to the objectives of Policies BE21,
BE22 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012), Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November
2012) and the adopted HDAS SPD: Residential Layouts (July 2006).

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise of new additional 'optional' Building Regulations on water and
access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015. The
Mayor of London intends to adopt the new national technical standards through a minor
alteration to The London Plan. This alteration is in the form of the Housing Standards Policy
Transition Statement and it sets out how the existing policies relating to Housing Standards
in The London Plan should be applied from October 2015. Appendix 1 of the Transition
Statement sets out how the standards stemming from the policy specified in the 2012
Housing SPG should be interpreted in relation to the national standards.

Policy 3.5 and Table 3.3 of The London Plan (March 2015), which is substituted by Table 1
of the nationally described space standard, specify that the minimum internal floor space
area/standard for a two-bedroom, four person flat should be 70 sq.m, and a one-bedroom,
two person flat should be 50 sq.m. The nationally described space standards define the
Gross Internal Area (GIA) or internal floor space area of a dwelling as 'the total floor space
measured between the internal faces of perimeter walls that enclose a dwelling. This
includes partitions, structural elements, cupboards, ducts, flights of stairs and voids above

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 28



stairs.

The proposed 9 flats would all have internal floor areas that exceed the minimum required
areas. It is therefore considered that the proposed flats would result in the provision of
satisfactory internal accommodation of adequate sizes for future occupiers. All 9 flats
would have double sized bedrooms with areas that exceed the minimum required
nationally described space standard of 11.5 sq.m for a double bedroom. The living and
kitchen/dining area on the ground floors would have combined areas that exceed the
minimum required space standards specified in The London Plan. However, it should be
specified and noted here that the new nationally described standards have removed the
standards for combined living/kitchen and dining areas in residential developments. The
new nationally described space standards specify that plans for new dwellings should
demonstrate that all homes are provided with adequate space and services to be able to
work from home. Given that the proposed flats in the new building would have adequate
widths and areas for living areas, it is considered that there would be adequate scope for
the provision of services to enable occupiers to work from home.

It is considered that the habitable rooms to the front and rear elevations of the proposed
building would have adequate and acceptable levels of outlook and entry of
daylight/sunlight. A low-level planter would be provided in front of the rear-facing ground
floor flat, which would constitute an adequate defensible buffer for that flat. As a result, the
proposal would be complaint with the related guidance contained in The London Plan
(2015), Policy BE20 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and the Residential Layouts HDAS SPD (July 2006).

With regards to the provision of adequate usable external communal amenity space,
paragraph 4.17 of the HDAS SPD requires a minimum of 25 sq.m for a two bedroom flat
and 20 sg.m for a one bedroom flat. As a result, the required minimum for the proposed 9
flats is 210 sq.m. The proposed communal amenity area in the roof terraces on top of the
building would have an area of 185 sq.m, and the combined area of the external balconies
and ground floor private terrace would be 48 sq.m. The total communal area to be provided
would therefore be 233 sq.m, which would significantly exceed the required minimum. As
such, the proposed amenity spaces would be adequate to provide satisfactory standards
of amenity for the future occupiers of the proposed flats, thereby compliant with Policy
BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies and the guidance
contained in the HDAS SPD: Residential Layouts (July 2006).
7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The Highways Officer has not raised any objection to the proposed number of parking
spaces to serve the ground floor Surgery and Pharmacy uses and the residential flats.

As stated above in the 'Internal Consultees' section, the applicant has submitted revised
site layout and basement level plans that show indicative refuse and cycle storage areas,
and which contain details to address concerns of the Highways officer in respect of the
ramp to the basement car park, vehicular swept paths, the layout of the basement car
park, headroom height, pedestrian visibility splays and active/passive provision for electric
vehicles.

The Highways Officer has been re-consulted on the revised drawings, and their comments
will be reported in the Addendum to follow this report.
7.11 Urban design, access and security

It has been considered that the proposed development would not represent a high quality of
design and would have a detrimental impact on the character, appearance and visual

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 29



amenities of the streetscene and surrounding area.

In terms of access and security, the proposed building would be accessed from vantage
points from the Field End Road and Deane Croft, which act as natural surveillance points
for the building and site.

7.12 Disabled access

Policy 3.5(c) of The London Plan requires all new homes to be built to Lifetime Homes
standards. However, the new national standards, which comprise of new additional
'optional' Building Regulations on water and access, substitute this Lifetime Homes
requirement. From October 2015, the new national standards specifies that the
requirement should be interpreted as 90% of homes to meet Building Regulation M4(2) -
'accessible and adaptable dwellings'.

The Access Officer has recommended that revised plans should be submitted to
demonstrate that an appropriate bathroom layout can be incorporated into every flat. If the
application had been considered acceptable in all aspects, a condition would have been
recommended to that effect, to ensure that the proposed development is designed to Part
M4(2), as set out in Approved Document M to the Building Regulations 2015, and to comply
with the requirements of Policy AM13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and Policies 3.5 and 3.8 of The London Plan (March 2015).
7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
7.14 Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

The Trees Officer has not raised any objection to the proposed development, and has
commented that in the event of an approval recommendation, suitable landscape
conditions should be imposed with any approval to ensure the protection of the TPO birch
and copper beach trees on the site. In this respect, additional landscape conditions are
recommended to be imposed, requiring the submission and approval of soft and hard
landscape details in the front and rear gardens. It is expected that any hardsurfacing
materials for the parking area and turning space should be of traditional and permeable
form, to ensure they complement the landscaped setting of the site and wider conservation
area.
7.15 Sustainable waste management

Although it is considered that the proposed ground floor Pharmacy/Doctor's Surgery and
upper floor residential uses would not generate significant quantities of clinical and other
associated waste, it is important that the Hazardous Waste Regulations 2005 are complied
with.

If the application was considered acceptable in all aspects, an informative to that effect
would have been recommended.
7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

With regards to the generation of the additional surface water run-off on the site as a result
of the creation of the basement parking area, it is instructive to note that the adjacent War
Memorial Garden to the north was until the 1920s a pond. It is also instructive to note that
there are working wells within the curtilage of the Grade Il listed building (Field End Farm)
opposite the site to the west.

The Drainage Officer has commented that in the absence of a site investigation to

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 30



7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

establish groundwater levels for the the basement element, the applicant has not
demonstrated whether the proposed development would result in additional surface water
run-off and generation of localised flood risk in the surrounding area. In the absence of
such information, it is therefore considered that the proposed development would form a
potential adverse risk for localised flooding in the area.

As such, the proposal is considered to be contrary to the objectives of Policies EM6 and
OES8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).
Noise or Air Quality Issues

There are no adverse noise or air quality issues to address as part of this application
proposal.
Comments on Public Consultations

The representations (objection and support petitions) from local residents, Eastcote
Residents Association, Eastcote Conservation Panel and ward Councillors, in respect of
the traffic implications, impact of the proposed use on neighbouring residential amenity and
visual impact on the surrounding area and heritage assets have been discussed in the
main section of this report above.

Planning Obligations

Not applicable to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

None.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 31



agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

It is considered that the proposed development, by reason of its contrived and
unacceptable design, height, scale, form and excessive footprint, would constitute over-
development and loss of a prominent open-space characteristic of the site, thereby
resulting in a detrimental impact on the setting of the nearby Grade Il listed buildings at
Field End Farmhouse (No. 86 Field End Road) and the Barn House (No. 38 Meadow Way),
and the character, appearance and visual amenities of the streetscene and the
surrounding area.

The extensive projection of the proposed development beyond the front and rear building
lines of Walsh Lodge is such that it would result in an overbearing and unduly dominating
impact on that neighbouring property, with a resultant loss of visual and residential
amenities.

It is considered that in the absence of a site investigation to establish groundwater levels
for the the basement element, the applicant has not demonstrated whether the proposed
development would result in additional surface water run-off and generation of localised
flood risk in the surrounding area. In the absence of such information, it is therefore
considered that the proposed development would form a potential adverse risk for localised
flooding in the area.

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 32



As such, the proposal is considered to be contrary to the objectives of Policies BE13,
BE19, BE21, BE22, BE24, EM6 and OES8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012), Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One -
Strategic Policies (November 2012) and the adopted HDAS SPD: Residential Layouts (July
2006).

11. Reference Documents

The London Plan (2015)

Hillingdon Local Plan Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

Mayor of London's Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (November 2012)
Mayor of London's Housing Standards Policy Transition Statement (October 2015)
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts (July 2006)
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Extensions (December 2008)
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Accessible Hillingdon (January 2010)
National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)

Contact Officer: Victor Unuigbe Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 33



4 4
i s Bt
\\‘\ »
v War i
i ' Memorfal', )
s . -
e ey

Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

81 Field End Road

Eastcote
Pinner

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref:
363/APP/2015/3827

Scale:

1:1,250

Planning Committee:

North Page 34

Date:
March 2016

LONDON




Agenda ltem 7

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 12A NORTHWOOD ROAD HAREFIELD

Development: Change of use from dwelling house (Use Class C3) to dental clinic (Use
Class D1) with associated car parking in the rear garden

LBH Ref Nos: 45363/APP/2015/3363

Drawing Nos: P01 Rev R03
P02 Rev R03
P03 Rev R03
P04 Rev R03
P05 Rev R03
P06 Rev R03
P07 Rev R0O3
P08 Rev R03
P09 Rev R03
Amended Design & Access Statement
Location Plan

Block Plan
Date Plans Received: 07/09/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 04/02/2016

1. SUMMARY

This application seeks planning permission for the change of use of the subject property
from a single family dwellinghouse (Use Class C3) to a Dental Clinic (Use Class D1),
which is proposed to be operated under the auspices of the National Health Service
(NHS). The proposed use would incorporate the provision of off-street parking spaces with
replacement 2m high acoustic fences in the front and rear gardens.

The application has been referred to the Planning Committee because of the receipt of a
petition and representations from local residents.

The site is situated on the eastern side of Northwood Road and is located just outside the
Harefield Local Centre. The site is situated within the Harefield Village Conservation Area,
as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012).

It has been demonstrated by the applicant that there are no available suitable alternative
premises in the locality (including the adjacent Local Centre) to accommodate the
proposed use, and that there is a proven need for an NHS dental clinic in the locality,
without it leading to an over-concentration of dental clinics in the locality.

Other than the provision of the replacement acoustic fencing on the side boundaries and
off-street parking spaces to the rear of the site, the proposal would not involve any external
alterations or extensions to the property. There is no Article 4 Direction in place to restrict
the hardsurfacing of the rear garden to provide parking spaces and provision of fencing or
boundary treatments on the side boundaries of the site in its Conservation Area location,
in and of themselves. As such, permission would not be required for the hardsurfacing of
the rear garden for parking and the replacement 2m high acoustic fences. The proposal

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 35



would therefore not have any detrimental impact on the appearance and/or setting of the
Harefield Village Conservation Area.

It has been considered that the proposal would not harm the amenity of neighbouring
occupiers, and the Council's Highways Officers have advised that the off-street car
parking provision to the front and rear of the site would comply with the Council's adopted
car parking standards, and that the parking can be accommodated without detriment to
pedestrian safety and/or the free flow of traffic. The nature and required level of occupancy
(for staff and patients/visitors) for the proposed use across both floors of the property are
such that it is impracticable for a residential unit to be maintained within the property.

This application seeks permission only for the change of use of the property. Any likely
display of advertisements or signs would require separate consent.

Accordingly, the application is recommended for approval.
2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subiject to the following:

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 COoM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers P02 Rev R03, P04
Rev R03, P06 Rev R03, P08 Rev R03, P09 Rev R0O3 and P10 Rev R03 (revised and
received on 21/12/2015), and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the
development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2015).

3 COM8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height
of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 36



The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

4 COM9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Cycle Storage

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.d Hard Surfacing Materials

2.e External Lighting

2.f Other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE4, BE13 and
BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

5 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Prior to the commencement of the Dental Clinic use hereby permitted, the car park in the
rear garden and acoustic fencing on the side boundaries shall be laid out and installed in

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 37



accordance with the approved details. The car park and acoustic fencing shall then be
retained for as long as the permitted use is implemented on the site.

REASON:

To mitigate the impact of noise generation and to safeguard the amenities of adjacent
residential occupiers in accordance with Policies BE21, OE1 and OE3 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

6 COM22 Operating Hours

The use hereby permitted shall not be used except between the hours of:-
[0800 and 1900], Mondays - Fridays
[0800 to 1300] Saturdays

The use shall have no opening on Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays.

REASON

To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties in
accordance with Policies BE24, OE1 and OE3 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures

R15 Use of residential accommodation for medical/health care facilities

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 38



LPP 3.17 (2015) Health and social care facilities
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2015).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

4 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

5 12 Encroachment

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by either
its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will have to
be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results in any
form of encroachment.

6 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 39



61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

7

The applicant is hereby advised that this permission does not authorise the display of
advertisements or signs, separate consent for which may be required under the Town and
Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) Regulations 1992. [To display an
advertisement without the necessary consent is an offence that can lead to prosecution].
For further information and advice, contact - Residents Services, 3N/04, Civic Centre,
High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250574).

8

The applicant's attention is drawn to the need to comply with the Hazardous Waste
Regulations 2005.

9

The Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and services
from direct discrimination on the basis of a 'protected characteristic', which includes those
with a disability. As part of the Act, service providers are obliged to improve access to and
within the structure of their building, particularly in situations where reasonable adjustment
can be incorporated with relative ease. The Act states that service providers should think
ahead to take steps to address barriers that impede disabled people.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the eastern side of Northwood Road, Harefield and
comprises a vacant two-storey detached property, which has established use as a single-
family dwelling and comprises four bedrooms.

The property has a gable end roof, front porch and yellow-brick external finish. The property
has a single storey extension recessed to the northern side and rear, and which abuts its
northern side boundary. The northern boundary adjoins an access road that leads to a
garage building and the detached property at No. 12B Northwood Road farther to the rear in
a 'backland' position.

The site is covered by Tree Preservation Order (TPO) number 579 and comprises a
number of protected trees (Birch and Copper Beech) in the front and rear gardens. The
front garden is enclosed by a brick boundary wall and comprises a vehicular access and
driveway to its northern end. The side and rear boundaries are enclosed by close-boarded
and wire-mesh fencing.

The application site/property is situated within the Harefield Village Conservation Area and
lies just outside of the Harefield Local Centre. The site also lies within the 'Developed Area'’
as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application proposes the change of use of the property from a single family
dwellinghouse (Use Class C3) to a Dental Clinic (Use Class D1).

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 40



The proposed Dental Clinic use would comprise surgery, consulting and staff rooms
across both floors of the property, and revised plans have been submitted, which show the
provision of three off-street parking spaces in the rear garden. The parking spaces would
be enclosed by 2m high acoustic fencing on the side boundaries, and which would be clad
with Rockwool sheet panels. The existing parking space in the front garden would be
retained.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
45363/90/1891 Adjoining 14 & 14a Northwood Road Harefield
Erection of a three-bedroom detached house and garage (outline application)

Decision: 23-08-1991  Approved

45363/APP/1999/2104 12a Northwood Road Harefield

ERECTION OF A TWO STOREY SIDE AND REAR EXTENSION AND PART SINGLE STORE
REAR EXTENSION

Decision: 04-01-2000 Refused

45363/APP/2000/436 12a Northwood Road Harefield

ERECTION OF A SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION (APPLICATION FOR A CERTIFICATE
OF LAWFULNESS FOR A PROPOSED USE OR DEVELOPMENT)

Decision: 14-08-2000 GPD

Comment on Relevant Planning History

45363/APP/2000/436 - Erection of a Single Storey Rear Extension (Application for a
Certificate of Lawfulness for a Proposed Use or Development)
Decision: Approved On 14/08/2000.

45363/APP/1999/2104 - Erection of a Two Storey Side and Rear Extension and Part Single
Storey Rear Extension
Decision: Refused on 04/01/2000.

45363/90/1891 - Erection of a three-bedroom detached house and garage (outline

application)
Decision: Approved on 23/08/1991.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 41



Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

R15 Use of residential accommodation for medical/health care facilities

LPP 3.17 (2015) Health and social care facilities

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 7th October 2015

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

6 neighbouring owner/occupiers (Nos. 11, 12, 12b, 12¢, 14 and 15 Northwood Road), the Harefield
Tenants and Residents Association and the Harefield Village Conservation Area Panel were
consulted by letter on 09/09/2015. A site notice was also displayed in the area on 03/10/2015.

A petition consisting of 40 signatories and objecting to the application proposal has been received.
The grounds of the objection are summarised below:

- Inappropriate change of use from residential to commercial use.

- Unsustainable loss of a dwelling suitable for residential use.

- The proposal is not in keeping with the residential character of the area.

- The driveway along the side of the property to form access for rear car parking is not a public
driveway but a private access driveway for No.12b Northwood Road.

- Use of private driveway to side will generate additional vehicle movements.

- Additional noise and disturbance from vehicles would harm the amenity and living conditions of
neighbouring residential occupiers.

- There are commercial units on the High Street, which should be considered first.

- There are two dental practices in Harefield (High Street and Park Lane).

7 further letters of objections have also been received from neighbours and the Residents
Association, the grounds of which are summarised below:

- The application property is in a falls under conservation area and has tree preservation order.
- There is no provision for patient car parking and insufficient parking for staff.
- There are two dental clinics/surgeries in Harefield (High Street and Park Lane) without a need for a

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 42



third dental clinic.

- This property is in Green Belt and should not be changed from a home into a dental practice.
- Loss of a home in the locality.

- Sewage blockage as a result of disposal of clinical waste.

3 letters of support were received from neighbours, the grounds of which are summarised below:

- There is a local need for an NHS dental practice in the area as the other clinics are private.

Internal Consultees
Highways Officer:

Following the receipt of revised drawings from the applicants showing the provision of cycle storage
spaces and three off-street car parking spaces to the rear garden, the Highways Officer has
provided revised comments:

a. The revised layout of the car parking to the front and rear gardens is acceptable.

b.Subject to confirmation of the rights of vehicular/pedestrian access via the private driveway, there
are no highway objections.

Conservation Officer:
No objection in conservation terms.
Trees Officer:

The site is occupied by a two-storey detached house on the east side of Northwood Road in
Harefield. It is situated at the interface between a residential area and the small cluster of retail units
at the junction with Breakspear Road on the edge of Harefield Village centre. Access to the rear was
not gained, but there are two silver birch trees within the front garden. The site lies within the area
covered by Tree Preservation Order No. 579. The two birch trees in the front gardens are protected
(T10 and T11 on the schedule), as is a copper beech in the rear garden (T2 on the schedule). The
site also lies within the Harefield Village Conservation Area, a designation which protects trees.

The proposal is to change the use from Use Class C3 (dwelling house) to Use Class D1 (Non-
Residential Institutions) for use as a dentist clinic. According to the planning questionnaire (Q15)
there are no trees on the site. This statement is evidently inaccurate. Q15 and the Design & Access
Statement (see Landscaping) confirm that no alterations to the landscape are proposed and no new
landscape is proposed.

If the application is recommended for approval, landscape conditions should be added to protect the
trees. Furthermore, an informative should be added to ensure that the applicant is aware that the
trees on the site are protected and permitted development of the front garden (for example) may be
restricted to ensure that the proposals preserve and enhance the character and local distinctiveness
of the surrounding natural and built environment.

RECOMMENDATIONS: No objection, subject to the above comments and addition of conditions in
respect of the submission and approval of a method statement (outlining the sequence of
development on the site including demolition, building works and tree protection measures prior to
site clearance or construction work, and in respect of the submission and approval of a hard/soft
landscaping scheme before any development takes place.

Case Officer comments: Following the Trees Officer's comments about the inaccurate information

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 43



in the application forms about the absence of trees on the site, the applicant has submitted
amended forms and Design and Access statement, which correctly specify the presence of
protected trees on the site. The applicant has also submitted a revised Block Plan that shows the
positioning of the protected trees in relation to the location of the proposed parking spaces.

Environmental Protection Unit (EPU) Officer:
No objection.

It is recommended that double glazed windows and self closing acoustic doors are provided. Gaps
around the four sides of a door leaf are essential, so doors can open and close. But these gaps
allow sound to pass through. Constant low-level noise can be as disruptive as louder sounds. In
some cases, confidential conversations may be overheard. Approved Document E to the Building
Regulations gives specific acoustic performance requirements for doors in certain buildings,
including schools, care homes, dental surgery and hotels.

Access Officer:

The supporting documentation for the proposed Change of Use from a detached dwelling house into
a dental practice refers to the installation accessible toilet facility. Entry into the premises would
remain unchanged and it is unclear whether access for wheelchair users would be possible.

Conclusion: acceptable in principle. However, any planning approval should convey to the applicant
an informative as set out below:

The Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and services from direct
discrimination on the basis of a 'protected characteristic', which includes those with a disability. As
part of the Act, service providers are obliged to improve access to and within the structure of their
building, particularly in situations where reasonable adjustment can be incorporated with relative
ease. The Act states that service providers should think ahead to take steps to address barriers that
impede disabled people.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

Policy R15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
specifies that for proposals incorporating change of use from residential accommodation to
medical/healthcare facilities, they will only be acceptable where:

(i) there is a proven need for the facility in the locality and no suitable alternative premises
are available;

(i) the development is in sympathy with the character and style of the existing street scene,
and does not harm the amenity of neighbouring occupiers;

(iii) the council's adopted car parking standards can be met and where appropriate leave a
reasonable garden area;

(iv) any on-street parking that may be generated can be accommodated without detriment
to pedestrian safety and/or the free flow of traffic; and

(v) a residential unit is maintained within the building, unless it can be demonstrated to the
satisfaction of the local planning authority that it is impracticable.

Where such premises are no longer needed the local planning authority is unlikely to permit
uses other than residential.

The objection from neighbours in respect of the existence of two other Dental surgeries in

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 44



the locality is noted. It is instructive to note that the neighbouring property approximately
13m to the north at No.14A Northwood Road used to be in occupation as a Dental Clinic up
until March/April 2011. The applicant has provided a supporting letter from NHS England
confirming that both floors of the property would be required to facilitate a Dental Clinic use
to be operated under the auspices of the NHS, and that an additional clinic is required in the
locality in order to meet the needs of the local population. The letter from NHS England
asserts that dental decay rates in Hillingdon are amongst the worst in London and there
has been a high demand for NHS Dental Services in the Harefield area since the previous
provider vacated the premises at No. 14A Northwood Road in March/April 2011.

Following on from the submission of the letter from NHS England, the applicant has also
submitted marketing evidence from local estate agents, detailing that no suitable alternative
commercial premises are available in the area and nearby Local Centre, which has a low
vacancy rate. Even though information has not been provided to demonstrate how long the
application property has been vacant for, it has nevertheless been demonstrated that
attempts have been made to find suitable alternative premises elsewhere, and in this
instance, the loss of the application property as a single family dwellinghouse can be
justified. Given that evidence has been provided to demonstrate a proven need for the
proposed use in the locality, it is considered that the Dental Clinic would not lead to an
over-concentration of Dental Clinics in the locality.

As will be discussed in sections below, other than the provision of replacement acoustic
fencing on the side boundaries and off-street parking spaces to the rear of the site, the
proposal would not involve any external alterations or extensions to the property. As such,
the proposal would not have any detrimental impact on the appearance or setting of the
Harefield Village Conservation Area. It will be discussed below that the proposal would not
harm the amenity of neighbouring occupiers, and the Council's Highways Officers have
advised that the off-street car parking provision to the front and rear of the site would
comply with the Council's adopted car parking standards, and that the parking can be
accommodated without detriment to pedestrian safety or the free flow of traffic. The nature
and required level of occupancy (for staff and patients/visitors) for the proposed use across
both floors of the property are such that it is impracticable for a residential unit to be
maintained within the property.

Given the above considerations, the proposal would therefore comply with the criteria listed
in Policy R15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012), and is acceptable in principle.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Not applicable as this application proposal does not constitute a residential development.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The application property is not statutorily listed, and the site is not situated within any
Archaeological Priority Area or Area of Special Local Character.

The site is however situated within the Harefield Village Conservation Area, but the
application proposal would preserve the character and appearance of the conservation
area. The proposal does not incorporate any alterations or extensions to the external
surfaces of the property occupying the site.

Suitable landscape conditions are recommended to be imposed, which require the
submission and approval of details for the hardsurfacing materials for the paving/hard
surfacing of the rear garden to facilitate a car parkproposed car park. The Council's Trees
Officer has advised that permeable and traditional materials will be required, to help ensure

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 45



that they are complementary to the soft landscaping in the site. It is instructive to note that
there is no Article 4 Direction in place to restrict the hardsurfacing or paving of the rear
garden of the site in its Conservation Area location. As such, permission would not be
required for the hardsurfacing of the rear garden in and of itself.

The proposed replacement 2m high acoustic fences on the side boundaries would be clad
with Rockwool sheet panels. The Conservation Officer has not expressed any objection to
the proposed Rockwool sheet panel material, which is not a significant departure from the
timber material of the existing fencing. There is also no Article 4 Direction in place to
restrict the provision of fencing or boundary treatments on the side boundaries of the site in
its Conservation Area location. As such, permission would not be required for the
replacement 2m high acoustic fences in and of themselves.

The proposal would therefore not have any detrimental impact on the appearance and/or
setting of the Harefield Village Conservation Area.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

Not applicable as the application site is not situated within or adjacent to the Green Belt.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policies BE1 and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies
(November 2012) require all new development to maintain the quality of the built
environment including providing high quality urban design and the preservation or
enhancement of sites with heritage assets such as Conservation Areas.

Policy BE4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies specify that new
development within or on the fringes of conservation areas will be expected to preserve or
enhance those features which contribute to their special architectural and visual qualities;
development should avoid the demolition or loss of such features.

Policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (Part Two) seek to ensure that
new development complements, improves and or harmonises with the character and
visual amenity of a streetscene and surrounding residential area in which it is situated.

The objection in respect of the conservation area location of the site and pressures to cut
down trees as a result of the TPO status of the site is noted. The application property is
sited within the Harefield Village Conservation Area. It is however instructive to note that
this application proposal only seeks permission for the change of use of the property and
does not include any proposal for extensions or alterations to the property. As such, the
proposal would preserve the appearance of the conservation area.

There is no Article 4 Direction in place to restrict the hardsurfacing of the rear garden and
provision of fencing or boundary treatments on the side boundaries of the site in this
conservation area location. As such, permission would not be required for the
hardsurfaced parking spaces and replacement 2m high acoustic fences on the side
boundaries with No.12 and the access road to the east. It is however considered that the
design and texture of the acoustic fences are such that they would visually complement the
landscaped setting of the site's rear garden.

In relation to the TPO status of the site, the applicant has proposed the provision of
hardstanding in the rear garden to facilitate the creation of three parking spaces and

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 46



associated turning space. The Trees Officer has commented that suitable landscape
conditions should be imposed with any approval to ensure the protection of the TPO birch
and copper beach trees on the site. In this respect, additional landscape conditions are
recommended to be imposed, requiring the submission and approval of soft and hard
landscape details in the front and rear gardens.

It is expected that any hardsurfacing materials for the parking area and turning space
should be of traditional and permeable form, to ensure they complement the landscaped
setting of the site and wider conservation area.

It is expected that any future application for the likely display of associated signage and
advertisements would be assessed to ensure it preserves the character and appearance
of the property and the setting of the conservation area.

Given the above considerations and subject to the imposition of suitable landscape
conditions, the application in its present form would preserve the character and
appearance of the property, streetscene and the wider Harefield Village Conservation Area,
compliant with Policies BE1 and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic
Policies (November 2012), and Policies BE4, BE13 and BE15, BE19 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policy BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
gives advice that new development in residential areas should protect the amenity of the
occupants of surrounding buildings, as well as protecting their privacy.

Policy OE1 of the Local Plan (Part Two) specifies that permission will not be granted for
uses that are likely to be detrimental to the character or amenities of surrounding
properties. Policy OE3 of the Local Plan (Part Two) refers to developments with the
potential to cause noise annoyance.

The objection in respect of noise and disturbance to neighbours is noted. The proposed
change of use to a Dental Clinic would not result in any increase of the internal floor
space/area of the application property, and it is considered that the use, scale and nature
of the proposed Clinic are such that it would not be a significant noise-generating activity,
and it would not result in any adverse noise nuisance to the adjacent neighbouring
properties. The applicants have submitted that in terms of the frequency of visitors to the
site in relation to the Dental Clinic use, it is expected that on average, two visitors/patients
would visit on an hourly basis. The applicants submit that the visits would mainly be on an
appointment basis.

The applicant has indicated in the submitted application forms that the intended opening
hours are 0800 to 1900 Mondays to Fridays, 0900 to 1300 Saturdays and no opening on
Sundays and Bank Holidays. The proposed hours of opening are considered acceptable,
particularly as the closing hours on Mondays to Fridays would be four hours before the
start of the conventional resting hour of 2300 for residential occupiers. However, even
though the site is located just outside of the Harefield Local Centre, it is in a primarily
residential area, with the adjacent properties to both sides and rear of the application
property in use as single family dwellinghouses. It is therefore considered expedient to
impose a condition, which restricts the operation of the proposed use to the proposed
hours of opening.

It is acknowledged that the provision of an off-street parking area in the rear garden could

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 47



introduce an element of noise intrusion to the adjacent dwellings at Nos. 12 and 12b
Northwood Road to the rear. It is instructive to note that three car parking spaces would be
provided in the rear garden, and one of these spaces would be dedicated for the use of an
employee on the site. Two spaces would therefore be allocated for visitors/patients. The
two spaces, coupled with the proposed average frequency of two visitors on an hourly
basis, would constitute low frequency and numbers of trips being made to and from the
site. As such, the comings and goings of visitors and related car movements would not
result in significant noise generation throughout the opening hours, and would not have a
detrimental impact on the residential amenity of adjacent occupiers by reason of noise and
disturbance. Furthermore, the applicant has proposed the replacement of the existing
close-boarded fencing on the side boundaries with No.12 and the adjoining access road to
the east with 2m high acoustic fences, to prevent the transmission of noise across to the
neighbouring properties at Nos. 12 and 12b. It is considered that this provision is
acceptable, and a condition is recommended to be imposed with this decision, to ensure
the acoustic fences are erected before the commencement of the proposed Dental Clinic
and use of the rear garden parking area. It is considered that the intensification and use of
the rear garden as a hardsurfaced car park is acceptable, as the rear garden can be
hardsurfaced as a permitted development, without the need for planning permission.

With regards to the objection in respect of the use of the private access road to the east,
which the applicants propose to use to facilitate access to the rear garden car park, it is
instructive to note that the applicants have submitted revised site location and Block plans,
which show the edging of red lines around the access road. The applicants submit that
they have rights of easement passage on the road and would privately and legally contest
any restrictions from the neighbours to prevent them using the access road.

Given the above considerations and subject to the imposition of the recommended
conditions, the proposal would have no detrimental impact on the residential amenity of the
adjacent neighbouring occupiers, in compliance with Policies BE24, OE1 and OE3 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable as this application proposal does not constitute a residential development.
7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
considers whether the traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms
of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway
or pedestrian safety.

Policy AM14 of the Local Plan specifies that new development will only be permitted where
it is in accordance with the Councils adopted Car Parking Standards.

Northwood Road is a designated Borough secondary distributor road and the site has a
very poor Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) score of 1b. The objection from
neighbours in relation to parking provision, parking problems and traffic problems on an
already busy road is noted. The applicant has submitted that the proposed use would
involve the employment of 8 full-time and 2 part-time staff, and that between 2 to 3
patients/visitors are expected to visit the site on an hourly basis. Even though the applicant
submits that most of the staff and patients would utilise public transport to visit the site, it is
instructive to note that the site has a poor Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL)
score of 1b. However, the Council's Highways Officers have advised that the provision of
four off-street car parking spaces (three in the rear garden and 1 in the front garden) is
adequate to service the car parking needs of the proposed use, and that the proposed

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 48



7.11

7.12

713

714

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

cycle storage (incorporating a provision of 9 spaces) is acceptable. The Highways Officer
has commented that this provision is such that it would comply with the Council's adopted
car parking standards, and that the parking arrangements are such that they can be
accommodated on the site without detriment to pedestrian safety and/or the free flow of
traffic.

Urban design, access and security

The site has an accessible location and there are no issues relating to design, access and
security.

The property would have two entrances at the front and rear to ensure surveillance of the
Northwood Road highway and adjoining access road to the northern boundary, and
incorporate the retention of a level threshold to the front entrance door, which would allow
for inclusive access for persons with limited mobility.

The proposal would therefore comply with Policy R16 of the Hillingdon Local Plan
(November 2012) and Policy 7.2 of The London Plan (2015).
Disabled access

The Access Officer has not expressed any objection to the proposal particularly as entry
into the property would remain unchanged. The Access Officer has recommended the
imposition of an informative reminding the applicants about their duty of care under the
Equality Act 2010.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable as this application proposal does not constitute a residential development.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

The Trees Officer has commented that suitable landscape conditions should be imposed
with any approval to ensure the protection of the TPO birch and copper beach trees on the
site. In this respect, additional landscape conditions are recommended to be imposed,
requiring the submission and approval of soft and hard landscape details in the front and
rear gardens. It is expected that any hardsurfacing materials for the parking area and
turning space should be of traditional and permeable form, to ensure they complement the
landscaped setting of the site and wider conservation area.

Sustainable waste management

Although it is considered that the proposed use would not generate significant quantities of
clinical and other associated waste, it is important that the Hazardous Waste Regulations
2005 are complied with. An informative is recommended regarding this point.

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

The application is not situated within any flood zone and the scale and nature of the
proposed development are such that it would not result in the generation of any localised
flooding on the site.

Noise or Air Quality Issues

There are no adverse noise or air quality issues to address as part of this application
proposal. The EPU Officer has raised no objection to the proposal in this regard.
Comments on Public Consultations

The representations (objection and support) from local residents in respect of the traffic
implications, impact of the proposed use on neighbouring residential amenity and visual
impact on the Harefield Village Conservation Area have been discussed in the main section
of this report above.

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 49



7.20 Planning Obligations

Not applicable to this application.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
7.22 Other Issues

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 50



proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

It has been demonstrated with the application that there are no available suitable alternative
premises in the locality (including the adjacent Local Centre) to accommodate the
proposed use, and that there is a proven need for an NHS dental clinic in the locality
without it leading to an over-concentration of dental clinics in the locality. Other than the
provision of replacement acoustic fencing on the side boundaries and off-street parking
spaces to the rear of the site, the proposal would not involve any external alterations or
extensions to the property. As such, the proposal would not have any detrimental impact on
the appearance and/or setting of the Harefield Village Conservation Area.

It has been considered that the proposal would not harm the amenity of neighbouring
occupiers, and the Council's Highways Officers have advised that the off-street car parking
provision to the front and rear of the site would comply with the Council's adopted car
parking standards, and that the parking can be accommodated without detriment to
pedestrian safety and/or the free flow of traffic. The nature and required level of occupancy
(for staff and patients/visitors) for the proposed use across both floors of the property are
such that it is impracticable for a residential unit to be maintained within the property.

11. Reference Documents

National Planning Policy Framework.

The London Plan (March 2015).

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012).
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Policies (November 2012).

Contact Officer: Victor Unuigbe Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 51



Little
Hammonds

Motes:

Site boundary

Fer identification purposes only

This copy has been made by or with
the suthority of the Head of Commities
Services pwrsuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Aot 1888 {the Act)

Unless the Act provides s relevant
exception o copyright.

& Crown copyright and database
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey
100018283

Site Address:

12a Northwood Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Harefield : -
Planning Section
Give Cenre, Lhbridge, Middx UB2 1UW
Telephone MNo.; Uiwidge 250111
Flanning Application Ref: Scale:
45363/APP/2015/3363 1:1,000

Flanning Committee: Date:

North Page52 | March2016 | 1 ON




Agenda Iltem 8

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LAND AT JUNCTION OF WARREN ROAD SWAKELEYS DRIVE ICKENHAN

Development: Installation of a 12.5m monopole supporting 6 shrouded antennas (Applicatior
under Part 16 of schedule 2 to the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 for determination as to
whether prior approval is required for siting and appearance)

LBH Ref Nos: 65862/APP/2016/261

Drawing Nos: Photomontage southeast from Swakeleys Drive
Photomontage southwest from Thornhill Road
Photomontage northwest from Swakeleys Drive
100 Rev C
200 Rev G
300 Rev G
Supplementary Information
CTIL ICNIRP compliance
General background information for telecommunications development
Health and Mobile phone base stations
Radio Planning and propagatior
CTIL consultation plan
Covering letter

Date Plans Received: 22/01/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 22/01/2016
1. SUMMARY

The applicant seeks prior approval for an upgrade to an existing telecommunication site
under Schedule 2, Part 16 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015. The proposed upgrade is required to improve 3G and 4G
services, coverage and improve capacity.

The proposed telecommunications installation has been revised from previous schemes
and proposes a slimmer column, 12.5m in height that will be painted in 'fir green'. It is
considered that the reduced bulk and finish of the column will ensure that this assimilates
with the verdant tree and vegetative backdrop, and does not appear unduly dominant,
visually intrusive or incongruous in the surrounding street scene. Given the location of the
mast and presence of other vertical infrastructure in the form of lampposts, it is not
considered to have a detrimental impact on the openness or character of the Green Belt.

It is therefore recommended that prior approval be required in this instance and that
permission is granted.

2. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby approved shall be begun before the expiration of five years from
the date of this approval.

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 53



REASON
To comply with the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development)
(England) Order 2015, Schedule 2, PART 16, Class A, Article A.3, (10), (a)

2 COomM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby approved shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the details shown on the submitted plans,

200 Rev G

300 Rev G

and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2015).

3 COM7 Colour of column and cabinet

Prior to its first use, the column and cabinet shall be painted in Fir Green (RAL6009) and
shall thereafter be maintained in this finish for as long as the development remains in
existence unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy OL5, BE4 and BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012)

4 NONSC Removal of apparatus

Any apparatus or structure provided in accordance with this approval shall be removed
from the land, as soon as reasonably practicable after it is no longer required for
electronic communications purposes, and such land, shall be restored to its condition
before the development took place, or to any other condition as may be agreed in writing
with the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that the development is removed as soon as it is no longer required in order to
protect the character and appearance of the area in accordance with Policies BE13 and
BE37 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT details of siting and design has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the
Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT details of siting and design has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 54



including the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE37 Telecommunications developments - siting and design
BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
OL5 Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
3 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

4

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We
have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from the 'Saved'
UDP 2007, Local Plan Part 1, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and
other informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service, in
order to ensure that the applicant has been given every opportunity to submit an
application which is likely to be considered favourably.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the grass verge at the junction of Warren Road and
Woodstock/Swakeleys Drive. The site is located within a predominantly residential area,
with 70 Woodstock Drive to the west, 82 Thornhill Road to the north and 81 Thornhill Road
to the east; there is a large woodland area on the eastern side of Warren Road, where
there are trees between 8-20m high. The site is located in an area designated a Nature
Conservation Site (Borough Grade Il or Local Importance) and lies within the Green Belt.
The application site is located approximately 48m west of Ickenham Village Conservation
Area.

The site is a triangular parcel of land separated into two sections by a footpath. The
installation is proposed on the land closest to the footpath, towards the road and existing
street furniture. Near to the site are a number of lampposts and street signs including a
road crossing with associated beacons and lampposts east of the site.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 55



The applicant seeks prior approval for an upgrade to an existing telecommunication site
under Schedule 2, Part 16 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015. The proposed upgrade is required to improve the existing 3G
and 4G coverage, services and improve capacity.

One equipment cabinet would be provided under Permitted Development Rights as they
would have a volume of less than 2.5 cubic metres. It should be noted that the equipment
cabinet, whilst being Permitted Development, would not be required without the proposed
mast.

The network requirements of the operators have been reviewed and the area revisited
following the most recent refusal. The site at the junction of Swakeleys Drive and Warren
Road remains the optimum available to the operators in terms of achieving the technical
requirement and limiting visual impact. The monopole is slimmer in diameter and will be
painted green to blend in with the backdrop.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

65862/APP/2012/982 Land At Junction Of Warren Road Swakeleys Drive Ickenham

Installation of a 15m high telecommunications pole, associated antenna, equipment cabinet and
ancillary developments works (Consultation Under Schedule 2, Part 24 of the Town and Countn
Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995) (as amended.) Application for prior
approval for siting and design.

Decision: 07-06-2012 PRQ

65862/APP/2015/3728 Land At Junction Of Warren Road/Swakeleys Drive Warren Road Icke

Installation of a 12.5m single stack telecommunications monopole supporting 3 shrouded
antennas (Application under Part 16 of schedule 2 to the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 for determination as to whether prior approval is
required for siting and appearance)

Decision: 26-11-2015 Refused

65862/APP/2015/867 Land At Junction Of Warren Road Swakeleys Drive Ickenham

Installation of a dual stack 15 metre high telecommunications monopole with associated
equipment cabinets

Decision: 28-04-2015 Refused

Comment on Relevant Planning History

65862/APP/2015/3728 - Refusal for the installation of a 12.5m single stack
telecommunications monopole supporting 3 shrouded antennas (Application under Part 16
of schedule 2 to the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development)
(England) Order 2015 for determination as to whether prior approval is required for siting
and appearance).

65862/APP/2015/867 - Refusal for the installation of a dual stack 15 metre high
telecommunications monopole with associated equipment cabinets.

65862/APP/2012/982 - Refusal for the installation of a 15m high telecommunications pole,

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 56



associated antenna, equipment cabinet and ancillary developments works (Consultation
Under Schedule 2, Part 24 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995) (as amended.) Application for prior approval for siting and
design.

The main differences between this current application and the two previous applications
are:

1. The number of cabinets have been reduced and only one is now proposed as opposed
to 4 and 2 within the previous applications.

2. The size of the mast has been reduced from 15 metres proposed within applications
65862/APP/2015/867 and 65862/APP/2012/982 to 12.5 metres (same as proposed within
application 65862/APP/2015/3728).

3. The diameter and design of the mast has altered from those previously proposed. The
proposal is for a column 300mm in diameter (100mm less than previously proposed)
supporting 6No. shrouded antennas. The column will be painted dark green, whereas the
previous proposals were for a grey finish.

The proposed siting remains the same as previously considered.

Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1

Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

PT1.EM2 (2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains

Part 2
AM7
BE4
BE13
BE37
BE38

oL5
NPPF
5.

Policies:
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Telecommunications developments - siting and design

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt
National Planning Policy Framework
Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 24th February 2016
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- 24th February 2016

Consultations

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016

PART 1

- MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 57



External Consultees

19 residents were notified of the application and a site notice erected at the site. Four letters were
received in response to this consultation which raised the following concerns:

1. Taller than any other structure in the road;

2. The deciduous trees mean that the structure will be visible throughout long times during the year;
3. The location is in a prominent position, on the edge of the conservation area and entrance to
Swakeleys Park;

4. Installation would be disruptive to the area;

5. The area is largely residential and the installation would add an industrial look, which would be
alien and visually at odds with its setting;

6. The proposal appears to be identical to the previous applications;

In addition a petition was received with 23 signatures. The main concerns of those signing were that
the mast would make an obtrusive and unsightly impact on the green space, and does not conform
with the principles of good siting.

Internal Consultees
Conservation: To be reported in committee addendum

Highways: To be reported in committee addendum
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

Policy BE37 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that telecommunications developments will be acceptable in principle provided that
any apparatus is sited and designed so as to minimise its effect on the appearance of the
surrounding areas. The policy also states that permission for large or prominent structures
will only be granted if:

(i) there is a need for the development in that location;
(i) no satisfactory alternative means of telecommunications is available;
(iii) there is no reasonable possibility of sharing existing facilities;

(iv) in the case of radio masts there is no reasonable possibility of erecting antennae on an
existing building or other structure; and

(v) the appearance of the townscape or landscape is not seriously harmed.

The application has also provided evidence to demonstrate the need for such development
in this area, through the coverage plots. The existing coverage shows that there is a
deficiency in coverage in this area and undertook a sequential approach to finding a new
area.

Following the most recent refusal, the applicant re-visited potential alternative sites and
found none to be more appropriate than that proposed. The alternatives considered
included, Vyners School, Warren Road, Wayfares Tennis Club Greenfield, Swakeleys
Drive, Nettleton Road Streetworks, Malcolm Road Streetworks, Shipton Road Streetworks,
Swakeleys Drive Streetworks, Enstone Road STreetworks, Camden Road Circular
Streetworks, Heythrop Drive/Woodstock Drive Streetworks, and Witney Close/Woodstock
Drive. These sites were rejected for a number of reasons related to the height of
surrounding trees, proximity to residential properties, and absence of consent of the

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 58



landowner. The Council are therefore satisfied that the applicant has demonstrated that no
preferable alternative locations are available or acceptable.

The revised design of the column will be considered in the relevant sections of the report.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The application site is located on a large area of green open space next to the junction of
Warren Road and Woodstock Drive/Swakeleys Drive. Although the application site is not
located within a Conservation Area, it is located approximately 48m west of Ickenham
Village Conservation Area.

Policy BE4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
seeks to protect Conservation Areas from inappropriate development. Policy BE13 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) requires
developments to harmonise with the existing street scene and other features of the area
that are considered desirable to retain or enhance.

Given the acceptable design, scale, siting and distance from the Conservation Area, the
application is not considered to have a detrimental impact on its character or appearance.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

There are no airport safeguarding issues.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

Paragraph 79 of the NPPF states that the fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to
prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open; the essential characteristics of
Green Belts are their openness and their permanence. Paragraph 88 of teh NPPF
continues to state that LPAs should ensure that substantial weight is given to any harm to
the Green Belt.

Paragraph 87 of the NPPF and Policy OL5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012) does not allow developments adjacent to or conspicuous
from the Green Belt that would injure the visual amenities of the Green Belt.

The application site is located on an area of Green Belt at the junction of Warren Road and
Woodstock Drive/Swakeleys Drive. The applicant has provided a detailed and
comprehensive alternative site investigation, establishing that there are no more suitable,
available sites outside the Green Belt.

The siting and proposed design of the column, as well as the characteristics of the nearby
street scene, with existing lampposts in the Green Belt, along with the backdrop provided
by the nearby trees, will ensure that it does not detract significantly from the openness or
character of the green belt.

7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Paragraph 43 of the NPPF states:

"In preparing Local Plans, local planning authorities should support the expansion of
electronic communications networks, including telecommunications and high speed
broadband. They should aim to keep the numbers of radio and telecommunications masts
and the sites for such installations to a minimum consistent with the efficient operation of
the network. Existing masts, buildings and other structures should be used, unless the
need for a new site has been justified. Where new sites are required, equipment should be

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 59



7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

713

714

sympathetically designed and camouflaged where appropriate.

Policy BE4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
seeks to protect Conservation Areas from inappropriate development. Policy BE13 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) requires
developments to harmonise with the existing street scene and other features of the area
that are considered desirable to retain or enhance.

The proposed design and bulk of the column has been altered from the previous
submissions. The height of 12.5m has been set in order to provide adequate coverage for
both networks, and is the minimum practicable height needed to provide the required level
of coverage. It is also proposed to paint the column in 'Fir green' so as to enable it to blend
into the green backdrop provided by the existing trees and vegetation. The NPPF
encourages the use of design techniques to camouflage apparatus where possible.
Officers therefore welcome the reduced bulk and proposed painting of the column, which it
is considered will help the apparatus integrate with the backdrop and not appear unduly
visually dominant or intrusive.

A suggestion was made to the applicant as to whether the column and cabinet could be
moved further back towards the central footpath, so as to be closer to the trees. The
applicant has explained that this would not be possible as it would require a pole height
which exceeds that of the trees (be in excess of 20m), in order to get adequate signal
coverage. It is considered that a mast more than 20m in height would have a far greater
impact on the surrounding street scene than the column proposed within this application.
The nearby street scene has existing lampposts and along with the backdrop provided by
the nearby trees, it is not considered on balance, that the proposal will have a detrimental
impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding area.

Impact on neighbours

The nearest residential properties are located opposite the application site. The
neighbouring properties do not face directly onto the proposed site with landscaped
boundary treatment providing screening of the site. It is therefore considered that the
telecommunications mast would not directly impact on neighbouring properties.

Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The telecommunications site is located on a grass verge at the junction of Warren Road
and Woodstock Drive/Swakeleys Drive. The proposed column would be located on the
edge of the grass verge next to the footpath along Swakeleys Drive and would have one
equipment cabinet. The column would not encroach onto the footpath. The proposed
telecommunications installation is sufficiently set back from the public highway and so
would not impact on visibility sightlines for vehicles approaching the junction. As such,
there would be no impact on pedestrian and highway safety.

Urban design, access and security

For comments relating to the design of the proposal see section 7.07.
Disabled access

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

The scheme will not impact on the trees within the surrounding area.

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 60



7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

Comments raised within the public consultation have been addressed within the main body
of the report.
Planning Obligations

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Other Issues

Health:

In terms of potential health concerns, the applicant has confirmed that the proposed
installation complies with the ICNIRP (International Commissions for Non lonising Radiation
Protection) guidelines. Accordingly, in terms of Government policy advice, there is not
considered to be any direct health impact. Therefore, further detailed technical information
about the proposed installation is not considered relevant to the Council's determination of
this application.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 61



Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
None.

10. CONCLUSION

The applicant seeks prior approval for an upgrade to an existing telecommunication site
under Schedule 2, Part 16 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015. The proposed upgrade is required to improve 3G and 4G
services, coverage and improve capacity.

The proposed telecommunications installation has been revised from previous schemes
and proposes a slimmer column, 12.5m in height that will be painted in 'fir green'. It is
considered that the reduced bulk and finish of the column will ensure that this assimilates
with the verdant tree and vegetative backdrop, and does not appear unduly dominant,
visually intrusive or incongruous in the surrounding street scene. Given the location of the
mast and presence of other vertical infrastructure in the form of lampposts, it is not
considered to have a detrimental impact on the openness or character of the Green Belt.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) Chapter 5

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 62



Contact Officer: Charlotte Goff Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 63



The Clump

Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Land at Warren Road & Swakeleys Road

Ickenham

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref:
65862/APP/2016/261

Scale:

1:1,000

Planning Committee:

North Page 64

Date:
March 2016

LONDON




Agenda ltem 9

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 11 SANDY LODGE WAY NORTHWOOD

Development: Erection of two x two storey, 4-bed, detached dwellings to include habitable
roofspace and basement with associated parking and amenity space and
installation of 1 vehicular crossover

LBH Ref Nos: 16948/APP/2015/4658

Drawing Nos: 01F
03l
02J
Planning and Design Statement
Arboricultural Survey
05A
04H
Location Plan
06

Date Plans Received: 21/12/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 22/12/2015
Date Application Valid: 23/12/2015
1. SUMMARY

Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) states that development will not be permitted if the layout and appearance fail to
harmonise with the existing street scene, and BE19 states the LPA will seek to ensure
that new development within residential areas compliments or improves the amenity and
the character of the area.

The proposal is not considered have a negative impact upon the visual amenity of the site
or the surrounding area, would not result in a loss of residential amenity to neighbouring
occupiers and would provide a satisfactory level of residential amenity to future occupiers.
It is considered that the provision of 2 off street parking spaces is acceptable in this
location and the proposed the crossover is not considered to detract from pedestrian or
highway safety.

As such the application is recommended for approval.
2, RECOMMENDATION

1. That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to
grant planning permission, subject to:

A) To the Council enters into an agreement with the applicant under Section 106 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or Section 278 of the
Highways Act 1980 (as amended) and/ or other appropriate legislation to secure:

1. To secure all necessary highway works

B) That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Council's reasonable costs in preparation of the Section 106 and 278

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 65



Agreements and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being
completed.

C) That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement and conditions of approval.

D) If the Legal Agreement/s have not been finalised by the 3/6/16 or any other date
that may be agreed by the Head of Planning and Enforcement, that delegated
authority be given to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to refuse planning
permission for the following reason:

'The applicant has failed to agree to provide a Legal Agreement to undertake all
necessary highway works. The proposal therefore conflicts with Policy AM7 and
AM14 of the Local Plan Part 1.

E) That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning and Enforcement under delegated powers, subject to the
completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant.

F) That if the application is approved, the following conditions be imposed subject
to any changes negotiated by the Head of Planning and Enforcement prior to
issuing the decision:

1 RES3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 03l; 02J and 04H and
shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2015).

3 RES7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces,
including details of balconies have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance with
the approved details and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 66



4 RES13 Obscure Glazing

The side windows at ground and first floor level of both new dwellings hereby approved
shall be glazed with permanently obscured glass and non-opening below a height of 1.8
metres taken from internal finished floor level for so long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

5 RES12 No additional windows or doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development)(England)Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with
or without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be
constructed in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved facing 9
Sandy Lodge Way, 11A Sandy Lodge Way and 11B Sandy Lodge Way.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

6 RES14 Outbuildings, extensions and roof alterations

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development)(England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with
or without modification); no garages, sheds or other outbuildings, nor extensions or roof
alterations to any dwellinghouses hereby approved, shall be erected without the grant of
further specific planning permission from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To protect the character and appearance of the area and amenity of residential occupiers
in accordance with policies BE13, BE21, BE23 and BE24 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

7 RES8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height
of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 67



2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

8 RES10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan(s) shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged
during (or after) construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying, another tree,
hedge or shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would
leave the new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a
position to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size
and species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in
the first planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of
the buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of
remedial works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or
groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting
should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and
Shrubs'

Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

9 RES15 Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

Prior to commencement, suitable ground investigations should be carried out that
demonstrate the basement will not effect local surface water or contribute to future issues
should climate change worsen. A report should be submitted to demonstrate an
understanding of what the risk is to the site and if it is found at risk, suitable mitigation
proposed. A scheme for the provision of sustainable water management shall also be
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall
clearly demonstrate how it:

a) Manages Water: The scheme shall demonstrate ways of controlling the surface water
on site by providing information on:

b) Suds features: incorporating sustainable urban drainage in accordance with the
hierarchy set out in Policy 5.15 of the London Plan. Where the proposal does not utilise
the most sustainable solution, justification must be provided,

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 68



Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development does not
increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy EM6 FloodRisk Management in Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (Nov 2012) Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management of
the London Plan (July 2011) and National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) and
the Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014). To be handled as close to its source as
possible in compliance with Policy 5.13 Sustainable Drainage of the London Plan (July
2011).

10 RES18 Lifetime Homes/Wheelchair Units

All residential units within the development hereby approved shall be built in accordance
with Part M4(2) of the Building regulation standards as set out in the Council's
Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'.

REASON
To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (2015) Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2

INFORMATIVES

1 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2015).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

2 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

3

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We
have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from the 'Saved'
UDP 2007, Local Plan Part 1, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and
other informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service, in
order to ensure that the applicant has been given every opportunity to submit an

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 69



3.1

3.2

3.3

application which is likely to be considered favourably.
CONSIDERATIONS

Site and Locality

The application site is a large sized corner plot, located on the western side of Sandy
Lodge Way at the junction with Grove Road. It currently comprises a large detached chalet
bungalow with an attached garage to the side. The front garden is mainly landscaped with
a driveway to one side leading to the garage which provides an additional parking space. It
also benefits from a good sized rear garden.

The street scene is residential in character with two storey properties to the southern side
and the rear as well as on the opposite corner of the junction. The properties on the
opposite side of Sandy Lodge Way are more modern 3 storey flatted developments.

The application site lies within the 'Developed Area' as identified in the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012). The site is also covered by TPO 746.

Proposed Scheme

The proposal is for the demolition of the existing dwelling and the erection of 2 x two storey,
4-bed, detached dwellings which include a habitable roofspace and basement with
associated parking to the front and the installation of 1 x vehicular crossover.

Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History
16948/PRC/2015/135 - Demolition of existing house and replace with 2 new houses

The pre application considered the principle of developing the site, which in principle is
acceptable. However there was a concern over the potential impact on the protected tree
to the rear of the property as a result of the proposed parking arrangements. That
assessment was based on the information provided, which did not include full details of the
proposal as submitted.

Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 70



BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE5 Siting of noise-sensitive developments

OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

LPP 3.3 (2015) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 5.13 (2015) Sustainable drainage
LPP 5.14 (2015) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure

HDAS-EXT  Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted December 2008

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- 28th January 2016

6. Consultations
External Consultees

15 neighbours were consulted for a period of 21 days expiring on the 19 January 2016. The site
notice was also erected on the parking notice directly in front of the existing dwelling. Five responses
were received from near by neighbours who raise the following points:

- Detrimental to the street scene

- Area characterised by spacious properties on large plots resulting in high property values.
Developing 2 properties where there is currently one will lower average house prices

- | object to the two garages on Grove Road in place of trees and greenery

- Increased noise and parking, as the garages will move commuter parking further into Grove Road
- Will effect future resale value of my property as it will be opposite 2 concrete monstrosities instead
of a beautiful garden

- The development is purely for financial gain

- The garage block will have a negative impact on my property and potential for future development
into a house, which would overlook my property

- Noise from construction vehicles

- No other houses with basements in the area, excavation could damage other houses

- Increased pressure on services

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 71



- The deeds for my property state one dwelling on a plot, | believe other houses have a similar
clause

- In addition to the garage an 8m crossover will change the streetscene

- The consultants report is misleading suggesting the Council Officer has somehow validated the
application then reveals in initial discussions neither the garages or basements were included

- Creates a blind spot when turning out of Grove Road

- The Lime trees on Grove Road are not shown

- Loss of daylight and sunlight, report identifies a transgression of BRE guidelines beyond the 20%
benchmark

- The two houses protrude significantly further into the garden than the existing dwelling, which will
result in overshadowing of out garden

- Loss of privacy as windows on the second and third floor directly face habitable rooms of our
property

- The replacement dwellings are excessive in terms of bulk, scale and massing

- Sets a precedent for other plots to be subdivided

- Over development

- The single storey garages are out of keeping with the three storey properties on Grove Road

- Could establish the principle of car parking garages as an acceptable for of 'infill' development

- Impact in the mature Oak tree from driving over the root protection area

- No information provided on potential impact of these structure with regard to drainage groundwater
conditions and structural stability, therefore unclear whether the basements will exacerbate this

- 'Right to Light' assessment identifies a significant impact on the kitchen, which is identified as
having only a window in the flank wall facing the proposed house. However it also recognises that
the kitchen is part of an open plan living arrangement with daylight available via the main rear
elevation. It further advises it would be inappropriate for planners to make a decision without the
benefit of a formal daylight and sunlight assessment. Failure to do so will result in the potential to
pursue a judicial review.

A petition against the proposal of 55 signatures was also received

Officer response: lIssues of property value are not material planning considerations in the
assessment of the proposal. If this proposal were deemed acceptable, it would not set a precedent
for other development as all applications are assessed on their own merit with regard to compliance
with planning policy. Also it is not considered that the increase of one residential unit would
significantly impact upon local services. It is acknowledged that the redevelopment of the site would
result in some disruption from construction works, however this would be for a limited time and
hours of the hours of construction works are restricted and controlled by other regulations (Building
Regulations) to offer residents protection from unneighbourly hours of working. Restrictions imposed
within the deeds are civil issues and any grant of planning approval would not override the need to
comply with any other form of legal agreement. Rights of Light are a civil matter and not a material
planning consideration. Loss of daylight and sunlight are material planning considerations which are
discussed within the report. Other planning issues raised from the responses will be addressed in
the main report.

Northwood Residents Association: The development includes basements for which no geotechnical
or hydrological surveys have been provided, so it is not possible to determine the potential impact on
drainage or flood risk in accordance with policy.

Internal Consultees

Environmental Protection - No objection
Access Officer - No response

Highways - off-street car parking should be reduced to no more than 2 spaces per unit (Officer

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 72



comment: this has been achieved through the removal of the Grove Road parking)

- Existing road markings and street trees should be shown on a plan to demonstrate how they are
affected (Officer comment: There are no street trees, therefore this is not considered a reasonable
request. There is an existing CPZ bay located outside the site, which would be lost and the applicant
has agreed to enter into a legal agreement to secure the consultation and removal of this bay)

- the proposed vehicular access on Sandy Lodge Way is too close to the junction of Sandy Lodge
Way and should be removed (Officer comment: Whilst the highways officer comment is noted, the
location of this new crossover would lead out onto the position of the existing permit holder bay, and
therefore the long term removal of the permit holder bay would improve visibility for road users and is
not considered to be a hazard on Sandy Lodge Way which does not have high volumes of vehicular
and pedestrian movement. It is not considered that the proposed crossover objection could be
substantiated in an appeal situation.)

Flood and Water Management - The site is in Flood zone 1, however the applicant has failed to
provide sufficient evidence that the basement will not effect local surface water or contribute to
future issues should climate change worsen. Also the applicants haven't submitted a suitable
scheme for the control of surface water.

The objection could be overcome if the applicants submit suitable ground investigations to
understand what the risk is to the site and if it is found at risk, suitable mitigation proposed and
appropriate sustainable drainage system controlling water on the site.

Trees/Landscaping - This site is covered by TPO 746. There is a very large, mature, protected Oak
(T1 on TPO 746) at the rear of the site. The tree has been surveyed by a consultant and a tree
report and tree protection plan have been provided to support the application; however | am not
convinced that a 'no dig' construction will work so close the Oak's stem because the ground around
the tree is slightly raised and there is also the issue of how to continue the new, raised level down
the existing level of the public highway.

Recommendations: In order to provide protection and long-term retention of valuable tree/s, the
following detail is required (in accordance with BS 5837:2012): An arboricultural method statement
to show how the points above will be addressed and details of how the tree protection measures will
be assessed before construction starts and how the tree protection (and any procedures described
within approved arboricultural method statements) will be supervised during construction.

Officer Response: The rear parking and garages have been removed from the proposal, ensuring
the protection of the tree.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The NPPF has a requirement to encourage the effective use of land by re-using land. This
is an existing residential unit set in a spacious corner plot, which is considered to be a
brownfield site.

The site lies within an established residential area where there would be no objection in
principle to the intensification of the residential use of the site, subject to all other material
planning considerations being acceptable, in accordance with all other planning policies.

Given the residential character of the surrounding area, there is no in principle objection to
the development of the site to provide additional residential accommodation, subject to an
appropriate density and design, and the proposal being in accordance with all of the
relevant planning policies and supplementary guidance.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 73



7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan seeks to ensure that the new development takes into account
local context and character, the design principles in Chapter 7 and public transport
capacity development should optimise housing output for different types of location within
the relative density range shown in Table 3.2. Development proposals which compromise
this policy should be resisted.

The site has a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 1b (very poor). The London
Plan range for sites with a PTAL of 0 to 1 in an urban area is 35-65 units per hectare.
Based on a total site area of 0.1169ha the site would have a residential density of 17 units
per hectare, which is significantly less than the London Plan range permissable.

The density matrix, however, is only of limited value when looking at small scale
development such as that proposed with this application. In such cases, it is often more
appropriate to consider how the development harmonises with its surroundings and its
impact on adjoining occupiers.

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
states that all new developments should achieve a high quality of design in all new
buildings and the public realm contributes to community cohesion and a sense of place.
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that the layout and appearance of new development should "harmonise with the
existing street scene or other features of the area." The NPPF (2011) notes the importance
of achieving design which is appropriate to its context stating that 'Permission should be
refused for development of poor design that fails to take the opportunities available for
improving the character and quality of an area and the way it functions.'

There are a diverse range of styles, designs and materials in the makeup of the existing
properties within the street scene. This comprises two storey detached dwellings on the
western side of Sandy Lodge Way and Grove Road and three storey modern flatted
properties opposite. The existing dwelling spans virtually the whole width of the plot, with
the garage extending to the side boundary with no. 9 and set back 1.75m from the
boundary with Grove Road.

The proposed dwellings are relatively simple in design, with a footprint of approximately
120sgm, slightly larger than nos. 29 - 33 Grove Road, on the opposite side of the site. The
proposed dwellings measure 11.5m deep by 7.5m wide, with a hipped roof detail of 8.05m,
similar in height to the adjacent property. The roof forms do include a small crown however
these are small in comparison to the overall roof form. Given the hipped nature of the
design and the angle of pitch, it is considered that the roofs would not appear unduly bulky
within the street scene.

There is a single storey flat roofed front bay window proposed, extending as a canopy over
the front door and a small front gable detail to one side of the roof, a feature not
uncharacteristic of the area. To the rear there is an additional single storey projection of
4.5m in depth with a flat roof of 2.8m in height, enclosed with a small parapet. Plot 11A

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 74



maintains the existing front building line and is set back from the side boundary with no. 9
by 1.65m. Plot 11B is set back 1.25m from the existing front building line and is set back
1.7m from the side boundary adjacent to Grove Road. The proposal also includes a
basement, but this will have no visual impact on the wider area.

The scheme originally included access from Grove Road and garages to the rear of the
properties, which had raised concerns from residents on the potential visual impact. This
element of the proposal has been removed from the scheme. As such in terms of design
the proposal is considered to be in keeping with the character and appearance of the
surrounding area. To maintain this control, and also in light of the protected tree on the site,
it is recommended that permitted development rights are removed from the plots.

Therefore the proposal reflects the architectural character and appearance of the wider
area and complies with the requirements of Policies BE13, BE15 & BE19 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan Part 2 Saved Policies (November 2012).

7.08 Impact on neighbours

With regard to the impact of the amenities on the adjoining occupiers, Sections 4.9 of the
SPD: New Residential Layouts, in relation to new dwellings, states all residential
developments and amenity space should receive adequate daylight and sunlight. The
daylight and sunlight available to adjoining properties should be adequately protected.
Where a two or more storey building abuts a property or its garden, adequate distance
should be maintained to overcome possible over-domination.

The main bulk of the proposed dwelling 11A is set in 1.6m from the side boundary and runs
parallel to the north facing flank wall of no. 9, which is also set inapproximately 1.6m (total
separation of 3.2m). To the rear the proposed dwelling extends approximately 0.5m beyond
the rear elevation of the neighbouring property at first floor level with an additional 4.5m
projection at ground floor level only. It is acknowledged that this would exceed HDAS
guidance for an extension, however given the degree of separation, that the proposal is
situated to the north of the neighbouring property and that it would not compromise a 45
degree line of sight from the rear windows, it is not considered the proposed rear projection
would result in over dominance or loss of outlook to the neighbouring property. It is noted
that there are windows on the side elevation of no. 9 facing the application site and concern
has been raised regarding the loss of light as a result of the proposal. The proposal would
bring the main bulk of the dwelling slightly closer to the neighbouring property and be
slightly higher than the existing dwelling. However it would also remove the existing single
storey element currently situated adjacent to the boundary. It is also noted that the ground
floor window serves the kitchen area of an open plan living space with additional windows
on the rear elevation, the first floor window is a secondary window serving a dressing area
to a bedroom, with a primary window facing the rear elevation and the second floor window
serves the loft space. Therefore as none of these windows are primary windows serving
habitable rooms and are all north facing, it is not considered that the proposal would result
in the loss of sunlight or a significant loss of light or amenity to the adjacent property. The
proposal includes windows within the side elevations which at ground floor, serve
secondary windows to the kitchen/dining area and at first floor serve bathrooms and the
staircase, which could be conditioned to be obscure glazed and fixed shut below 1.8m.
Given the corner location of the proposal it is not considered there would be any potential
impact on neighbouring properties other than no.9, as there is a separation distance of over
40metres to properties to the rear of the site on Grove Road.

In order to protect privacy, the design of the dwelling should avoid creating significant
opportunities for direct overlooking from any upper floor windows into the private garden or

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 75



any habitable room windows of the neighbouring properties. It is not considered that the
proposed dwelling increases overlooking to that already experienced from the adjacent two
storey buildings. The impact on the amenities of the neighbouring properties is therefore
considered to be satisfactory.

As such it is not considered that the proposal is an un-neighbourly form of development
and complies with the requirements of Policies BE20, BE21 & BE24 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan Part 2 Saved Policies (November 2012).

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise of new additional 'optional' Building Regulations on water and
access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015. The
Mayor of London intends to adopt the new national technical standards through a minor
alteration to The London Plan. This alteration is in the form of the Housing Standards Policy
Transition Statement and it sets out how the existing policies relating to Housing Standards
in The London Plan should be applied from October 2015. Appendix 1 of the Transition
Statement sets out how the standards stemming from the policy specified in the 2012
Housing SPG should be interpreted in relation to the national standards.

The London Plan Transition Statement sets out the minimum internal floor spaces required
for developments in order to ensure that there is an adequate level of amenity for existing
and future occupants. The proposed dwelling has floor are of approximately 215sqm (not
including the basement) which is in excess of the minimum requirements and therefore is
considered acceptable. All bedrooms exceed the minimum area requirements.

It is considered that all the proposed habitable rooms, would have an adequate outlook and
source of natural light, and therefore comply with the SPD: New Residential Layouts:
Section 4.9.

The proposal provides 217sgm and 279sqm of usable private amenity space for plots A
and B respectively in excess of the Council's adopted standard. The proposal therefore
complies with policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Unitary Development Plan
Policies (November 2012) considers whether the traffic generated by the proposed
development is acceptable in terms of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows
and conditions of general highway or pedestrian safety.

Policy AM14 states that new development will only be permitted where it is in accordance
with the Council's adopted Car Parking Standards. These require a provision of 2 spaces
per dwelling.

The proposed dwellings are served by two parking spaces to the front and retain in excess
of 25% landscaping. The proposal incorporates the existing cross over and creates a
further separate identical crossover 4.5m to the north to serve plot 11B, in compliance with
the requirements of Policy AM14. Whilst there have been concerns raised about the
installation of this new crossover to serve Plot 11B, there is sufficient visibility to ensure
that the provision of this crossover would not impact on highway safety.

With regard to the creation of a blind spot when turning out of Grove Road, the proposed

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 76



711

7.12

713

714

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

dwellings maintain or are set back from the existing front building line and maintain a
similar level of set back from the boundary. It is therefore considered there will be no
material change in visibility into or out of the road to that currently existing.

Urban design, access and security

Secured by Design is now covered by Part Q of the Building Regulations which the
development will be required to accord with.
Disabled access

If the scheme is found acceptable a condition would be recommended to secure the
development was built to M4(2) in accordance with Policy 3.8 ¢ of the London Plan.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

The plans originally included parking and garages to the rear of the property, which could
have potentially impacted upon the mature protected Oak tree situated there. This element
of the proposal has now been removed and the Landscape/Tree Officer has no further
objections subject to condition to ensure adequate long term protection for the Oak.
Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to this application
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application
Flooding or Drainage Issues

The Drainage Officer has advised that the site is in Flood zone 1, however the applicant
has failed to provide sufficient evidence that the basement will not effect local surface
water or contribute to future issues should climate change worsen. Nor have they
submitted a suitable scheme for the control of surface water. This objection could be
overcome if the applicants submit suitable ground investigations to understand what the
risk is to the site and if it is found at risk, suitable mitigation proposed and appropriate
sustainable drainage system controlling water on the site. If all other aspects of the
proposal were acceptable this could be conditioned for submission prior to the
commencement of any works.

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application
Comments on Public Consultations

The issues raised have been addressed appropriately in the report.
Planning Obligations

The proposal would necessitate the provision of legal agreement to secure a scheme of
works to remove the resident permit bay located on Sandy Lodge Way. The applicants
have agreed to enter into such a legal agreement.

The scheme would also be liable for payments under the Community Infrastructure Levy.
Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues
None

Observations of the Borough Solicitor
General

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 77



Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 78



10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks planning permission for the demolition of the existing dwelling and
the erection of 2 x two storey, 4-bed, detached dwellings which include a habitable
roofspace and basement with associated parking to the front and the installation of 1 x
vehicular crossover.

The proposal is not considered have a negative impact upon the visual amenity of the site
or the surrounding area, would not result in a loss of residential amenity to neighbouring
occupiers and would provide a satisfactory level of residential amenity to future occupiers.
It is considered that the provision of 2 off street parking spaces is acceptable in this
location and the proposed additional crossover is not considered to detract from pedestrian
or highway safety.

As such the application is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

The London Plan (2015)

Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (November 2012
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon

National Planning Policy Framework

The London Plan Housing Policy Transition Statement (May 2015)

Contact Officer: Liz Arnold Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 79



Sandy Lodge

Motes:

Site boundary

Fer identification purposes only

This copy has been made by or with
the suthority of the Head of Commities
Services pwrsuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1888 {the Act),

Unless the Act provides s relevant
exception o copyright.

& Crown copyright and database
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey
100018283

Site Address:
11 Sandy Lodge Way

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services
Planning Section
Give Cenre, Lhbridge, Middx UB2 1UW
Telephone No.; Uxiwidge 25011

Northwood
Flanning Application Ref: Scale:
16948/APP/2015/4658 1:1,250
Flanning Committee: Date:
North Page80 | March 2016

LOKDOR




Agenda ltem 10

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 51 HILLIARD ROAD NORTHWOOD

Development: Change of use from a 3-bed end of terrace dwelling to 1 x 1-bed and 1 x 2 bec
self contained flats with associated parking and amenity space

LBH Ref Nos: 70450/APP/2015/4598

Drawing Nos: Design and Access Statement
Transport Assessment
Location Plan
15/2880/40
15/2880/43
15/2880/41 Rev B
15/2880/42 Rev B

Date Plans Received: 16/12/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 16/12/2015
1. SUMMARY

The property is located within the 'Developed Area' as identified in the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012). This proposal considers the
subdivision of the two storey semi-detached property into 2 separate residential units with
associated parking and amenity space.

There are no external alterations to the dwellings proposed but would utilise approved
certificate of lawfulness and prior approval developments comprising a single storey rear
extension and loft conversion to provide the floorspace for 2 flats. All extensions have
been implemented and completed on site.

It is considered that the development fails to provide satisfactory indoor living space and
amenities for future occupiers. Furthermore it has failed to demonstrate it can provide
usable parking provision for both properties, which would therefore result in the increased
demand for on street parking.

2. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal would result in the provision of a habitable room with a window looking
across a shared access onto the flank wall of the adjacent dwelling, resulting in a
habitable room with a lack of outlook and poor levels of natural light/sunlight, resulting in an
oppressive environment, which also fails to protect the privacy of the occupier to the
detriment of the residential amenity of future occupiers. The proposal is thus contrary to
Policies BE20 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies,
Policies 3.5 and 5.3 of the London Plan (2015) and the adopted Supplementary Planning
Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

2 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal
The proposal fails to demonstrate that it can achieve adequate provision for off street

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 81



parking through the clearing and maintenance of the vehicular access route in accordance
with the Council's adopted car parking standards. As such, the proposal is likely to give
rise to additional on-street parking on a heavily parked road and be prejudicial to highway
and pedestrian safety, contrary to policies AM7 and AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), the London Plan Policies (2015).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

2

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We
have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from the 'Saved'
UDP 2007, Local Plan Part 1,Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and
other informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site relates to a two storey end of terrace dwelling located on the western side of
Hilliard Road. It has a single storey bay window to the front and a two storey rear projection.
It has recently been extended with a loft conversion, with a change from hip to gable and a
rear dormer window and two separate single storey rear extensions. There is a small front
garden and an elongated rear garden with a shared 2.8m wide access to the rear running
between the application site and no.49.

Hilliard Road is residential in character and appearance comprises a mixture of terraced
and semi-detached period properties.

The site is located within the Old Northwood Area of Special Local Character and the
developed area as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part Two -UDP Saved Policies
(November 2012).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Planning permission is sought for a change of use from a single dwelling into 2 flats. There
are no external alterations to the dwelling proposed but the development would utilise the
approved and implemented certificate of lawfulness developments comprising two single
storey rear extensions and a loft conversion to provide the floorspace for the development,
2 no. 1 bed flats. However it is noted that in flat B there is a study room of a similar scale to
the proposed bedroom in flat A and was a bedroom in the original dwelling. The proposal is
therefore assessed on the basis of the provision of 1 x 1 bed and 1 x 2 bed flats

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 82



Flat A (ground floor flat) would have a floor area of 57sqgm and flat B (first floor and loft
space), 72sqm. The rear garden would be divided resulting in 35sgm for flat A and
38.8sgm of garden space for flat B.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

70450/APP/2014/4140 51 Hilliard Road Northwood

Erection of a single storey rear extension, which would extend beyond the rear wall of the origin
house by 4 metres, for which the maximum height would be 3.2 metres, and for which the heigh
of the eaves would be 2.7 metres

Decision: 31-12-2014  Approved

70450/APP/2014/4141 51 Hilliard Road Northwood

Conversion of roof space to habitable use to include a rear dormer, 2 front rooflights and
conversion of roof from hip to gable end (Application for a Certificate of Lawful Development for
Proposed Development)

Decision: 16-01-2015  Approved

70450/APP/2015/3266 51 Hilliard Road Northwood

Conversion of two storey dwelling into 2 self contained flats

Decision: 13-11-2015  Withdrawn

70450/APP/2015/565 51 Hilliard Road Northwood

Single storey rear extension and conversion of roof space to habitable use to include a rear
dormer, 2 front rooflights and conversion of roof from hip to gable end (Application for a Certifice
of Lawful Development for a Proposed Development)

Decision: 13-04-2015  Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

70450/APP/2015/3266 - Conversion of two storey dwelling into 2 self contained flats
(withdrawn)

70450/APP/2015/565 CLD - Single storey Rear Extension and conversion of roof space to
habitable use including a rear dormer (approved)

70450/APP/2014/4141 CLD - Conversion of roof space to habitable use to include a rear
dormer, 2 front rooflights and conversion of roof from hip to gable end (approved)
70076/APP/2014/2765 PAH - Single storey rear extension (approved)

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 83



PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

H4 Mix of housing units

H7 Conversion of residential properties into a number of units

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

LPP 3.3 (2015) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2015) Housing Choice

LPP 5.3 (2015) Sustainable design and construction

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- 20th January 2016

6. Consultations
External Consultees

9 neighbours were consulted for a period of 21 days expiring on the 11 January 2016. A site notice
was also erected to the front of the property expiring on the 20 January 2016. Six responses were
received raising the following issues:

- Set a precedent which is out of keeping with the character of the area, which is family
accommodation

- Parking in the area is always a problem, the proposal could lead to increased demand for on street
parking

- The proposed parking provision to the rear is impractical as the access between the buildings is

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 84



too narrow. The existing properties who have garages to the rear do not use them for this reason

- The area at the bottom of the garden is very small and turning is impossible without going onto
neighbouring land

- Potential damage to the adjacent property from cars using the narrow driveway

- Unsightly wheelie bins in the front garden

- Impact of access to the rear by building two garages. It will be difficult to manoeuvre in and out and
cars could be left blocking access to the rear

- Concerned the height of the rear patio would compromise our privacy

- The conversion of garden to parking should be discouraged. Too many areas of hard standing are
being created in front gardens, so should retain the rear gardens

- The patio area has been raised significantly, which means people using the patio will be able to
look into the garden and house of no.49

A petition against the proposal with 31 signatures was also submitted.
Officer response: The proposal is for two parking spaces to the rear, not garages.

Northwood Hills Residents Association - The description is misleading there will be 1 x 1 bed flat and
1 x 2 bed flat. In principle the change from a family home to a flatted development changes the
character of the area. Wheelie bins are shown in the front garden; this is not a characteristic or
common practise in Hillingdon. The layout of the dwellings will not be contusive to good living
conditions for the inhabitants of the ground floor flat, with the kitchen of flat B above the bedroom of
flat A. An unacceptable arrangement considering the amount of noise and vibration machines in a
kitchen can cause.

Northwood Residents Association - No response

Internal Consultees
Access Officer - No comments

EPU - No response to this application but commented on the previous proposal that due to poor
stacking would recommend improved sound insulation between floors to protect residents from
noise

Conservation and Urban Design - No Comments
Sustainability Officer - No comments

Highways - The revised layout is an improvement and given the consent granted for development at
81-93 Hilliard Road, it would be difficult to sustain a highway objection. The following requirements
should be secured via a condition/S106

- The new footpath should be 'made up' and maintained in a serviceable condition.

- The Area required for vehicles to manoeuvre in / out of the car parking spaces must be cleared and
maintained in a serviceable condition. The applicant should confirm (evidence) that they have rights
of access over the vehicular turning space

Officer response: Informed the agent in an email on the 2 February that with regard to the highways
issues (assuming all other aspects were acceptable) we may be able to apply a grampian condition
regarding the required works not within the applicants control, subject to written
evidence/confirmation that this would be achievable. At the time of writing the report, no response
had been received.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 85



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

The site lies within an established residential area where there would be no objection in
principle to the intensification of the residential use of the site, subject to all other material
planning considerations being acceptable, in accordance with Policy H7 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan (November 2012).

The Council's planning records show that a few former employment and workshops
located to the rear of the existing dwellings have been redeveloped to form additional
housing. These represent signifcantly less than 10% of the properties along Hilliard Road.
Therefore, after the conversion less than 10% of the original dwellings in this street would
have been converted, ensuring the development is in accordance with the HDAS:
Residential Layouts, in this respect.

Density of the proposed development

Paragraph 4.1 of HDAS Residential Layouts specifies that in new developments numerical
densities are considered to be more appropriate to larger sites and will not be used in the
assessment of schemes of less than 10 units, such as this proposal. The key
consideration is therefore whether the development sits comfortably within its environment
rather than a consideration of the density of the proposal.

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

With specific reference to the site location within an Area of Special Local Character,
Policy BE5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Unitary Development Plan
Policies (November 2012) states that new development should harmonise with the
materials, design features, architectural style and building heights predominant in such
areas.

There are no physical alterations proposed to the building as a result of this application.
The physical alterations have already been carried out under permitted development rights.
Airport safeguarding

No objections are raised to the scheme in terms of airport safeguarding.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable, the site is not located within the green belt.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. Furthermore Policies BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) resist any development
which would fail to harmonise with the existing street scene or would fail to safeguard the
design of existing and adjoining sites.

There are no external alterations to the property as a result of this proposal. The alterations
already carried out comprise of recently approved developments under prior approval and
permitted development to the rear of the property at ground floor and in the loft. It is
considered, in visual terms, that this proposal would not result in any harm to the visual
amenity of the area and that it would be in accordance with Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)and Policies BE13 and BE15 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Impact on neighbours

Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
that uses that become detrimental to the amenity of the adjoining occupiers or area will not
be approved.

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 86



The proposed development would not involve any extensions that have not already been
approved via the permitted development or the neighbour notification scheme and it is
noted that these would not breach the 45-degree line from any neighbouring occupiers.
There are no new windows in any elevation and the windows proposed to serve the
habitable rooms already serve habitable rooms and would result in no significant
overlooking of any neighbouring properties. Concern has been raised regarding the
potential overlooking from the patio, however the installation of the patio in the context of the
existing dwelling would be permitted development. It is noted the fences between the
properties are relatively low, with clear visibility over the fence to the neighbouring garden
and house. The situation would not be dissimilar to the relationship with the existing 3-
bedroom dwelling and the residential occupiers, and it is therefore considered to be a
reason for refusal that would not be upheld on this scheme.

The proposed development would not cause any undue visual intrusion, loss of daylight,
loss of sunlight or overlooking by virtue of the siting and massing of the proposed.
Therefore, it is considered that the proposed development would not an un-neighbourly
form of development in compliance with Policies BE20, BE24 and OE1 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two -Saved UDP Policies 2012).

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise of new additional 'optional' Building Regulations on water and
access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015. The
Mayor of London intends to adopt the new nation technical standards through a minor
alteration to The London Plan. This alteration is in the form of the Housing Standards Policy
Transition Statement and it sets out how the existing policies relating to Housing Standards
in The London Plan should be applied from October 2015. Appendix 1 of the Transition
Statement sets out how the standards stemming from the policy specified in the 2012
Housing SPG should be interpreted in relation to the national standards.

The London Plan Transition Statement sets out the minimum internal floor spaces required
for developments in order to ensure that there is an adequate level of amenity for existing
and future occupants. The statement requires a 1 bedroom (floor area 9.8sqm, 1 person)
dwelling to have a minimum internal floor area of 50sgm plus 1sgm of built in storage and a
2 bedroom (floor areas of 8.9sqm and 15sqm, 2 person) dwelling set over two storeys to
have a minimum floor area of 70sgm plus 2sgm of built in storage. The proposed flats
would have internal floor areas of approximately 57m2 (flat A) and 72m2 (flat B).

Therefore in terms of floor space the proposal is considered to result in an acceptable
standard of living environment for future occupants of the dwellings in accordance with
Policy 3.5 of the London Plan 2015.

However it is noted that the proposed bedroom window of flat A looks directly onto the
shared alleyway to the side of the property. This side window serves a non habitable room
in the current layout and had been conditioned to be obscure glazed and fixed shut below
1.8m. It is now proposed it will be clear glazed. The window faces the flank wall of the
adjacent property just 2.3m away and as a result there would be a constrained and
substandard outlook. It is also situated such that anyone using the shared alleyway will
have a direct view into the bedroom of this property. Policy BE20 requires that buildings be
laid out so that adequate daylight and sunlight can penetrate and policy BE24 advises the
design of new buildings should protect the privacy of the occupiers. Therefore the proposal
is considered to be substandard for use by future occupiers and provides inadequate visual

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 87



7.10

7.11

7.12

713

714

outlook or protection of privacy and is consequently unacceptable.
Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Unitary Development Plan
Policies (November 2012) considers whether the traffic generated by proposed
developments is acceptable in terms of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic
flows and conditions of general highway or pedestrian safety.

Policy AM14 states that new development will only be permitted where it is in accordance
with the Council's adopted Car Parking Standards. These require a maximum provision of
1.5 off-street parking spaces for each dwelling.

The submitted plans show the provision of 2 off street car parking spaces to the rear of the
dwelling, which are accessed using the side alleyway. The alleyway measures just 2.3m in
width running between the properties. Access into the alley from the road is extremely tight
and manoeuvring room to the rear is restricted. Two vehicles could not pass and reversing
would be very restricted. It is noted that the alleyway is very overgrown and not used; and
despite the on-street parking problems, the other properties that have access to the rear of
their houses and have either garages or parking spaces there are not using them.

However the Highways Officer has advised that, notwithstanding the above, given that an
approval for 2 dwelling to the rear of 81-93 Hilliard Road (64786/APP/2013/1434) was
granted with access identical to this proposed, it would be difficult to sustain a highway
objection on the access between the buildings alone. Revised plans have also been
submitted which provide a 0.9m wide pedestrian footpath, with lighting bollards along the
side of the rear garden. Therefore subject to a condition to ensure the area required for
vehicles to manoeuvre in and out of the car parking spaces is kept clear and maintained in
a serviceable condition they have no objections. The applicant has been asked to confirm
(evidence) that they have rights of access over the vehicular turning space and would be
able to comply with such a condition on land not within their ownership. No information has
been provided at the time of writing the report. Therefore, it is considered that the proposal
has failed to demonstrate that they could provide and maintain adequate parking and
turning provision therefore the development would be contrary to Policies AM14 of the
adopted Hillingdon Local Plan, 2012, Part 2.

If the proposal is otherwise acceptable it is considered that appropriate cycle parking can
be provided.
Urban design, access and security

Section 4 of the Council's HDAS: Residential Layouts states that developments should
incorporate usable attractively laid out and conveniently located garden space in relation to
the flats which they serve. It should be of an appropriate size, having regard to the size of
the flats and the character of the area. A minimum of 20m2 for a 1 bed flat and 25m2 for a
2 bed flat would be required. The submitted plans show that the flats would have separate
private gardens, divided by a close boarded fence at 1.8m, with areas of approximately
35m2 and 38.8m2 respectively. This is in accordance with Policy BE23 of the Local Plan
and HDAS guidance.

Disabled access

The Access Officer has not raised any concerns with relation to this application
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not relevant to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 88



7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Not relevant to this application.
Sustainable waste management

A bin storage area is identified in the front garden of the property. It is noted that concern
has been raised that the use and storage of wheelie bins in not common practise within
Hillingdon, however this could be done by the occupiers of the existing dwelling. It is
therefore considered this would be acceptable.

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not relevant to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not relevant to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Concern has been raised that the provision of a kitchen with associated machinery directly
above the bedroom of the ground floor flat would have a detrimental impact on the amenity
of the occupiers of that flat. No details have been submitted to demonstrate that adequate
sound insulation could be provided, however these details could be conditioned if all other
aspects of the development were considered acceptable.

Comments on Public Consultations

Most of the objections received to the scheme have been addressed within the body of the
report.

Concern has been raised that the proposal will set a precedent for other similar
developments. It has also been suggested that the flatted development would be out of
keeping with the character of the area, which is predominantly family accommodation.
Each application is assessed on its own merit with regard to Local Plan Policies. These
include policies which look at providing a suitable housing mix and optimising housing
provision, however there is also guidance which seeks to prevent an unacceptable level of
housing conversion. All of these issues would need to be considered on a case by case
basis.

Planning Obligations

Given that there would not result in an increase in the footprint of the buidling, there would
not be a requirement for a CiL payment.
Expediency of enforcement action

Not relevant to this application.
Other Issues

None

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 89



Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
N/A

10. CONCLUSION

The proposed subdivision of the two storey dwelling to provided 1 x 1 bed and 1 x 2 bed
flats fails to provide satisfactory indoor living space and amenities for future occupiers; and
sufficient parking provision, which will result in the increased demand for on street parking.

As such, the proposal is considered contrary to policies in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), the SPD HDAS: Residential Layouts: and The

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 90



London Plan (2015)

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012).
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2.

The London Plan (2015).

Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'.
National Planning Policy Framework.

Contact Officer: Liz Arnold Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 91



)ON

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGD

ON

NG D

ILLI

o
1
o (=]
o o
=
T | B
- ©
o o
i G 2 =
= 5] o
2% N
d.u - -} o}
L = H n%u
.mm -t ©
=5 |.s | ©
L = ot = o
o SN ¢
2Lk |2 o
S |E =2
% =i, § =
. = =]
& L 9 |
= o B |5
° £ |E
M E M~ |E
] ] m
[43] [l [
[i1]
si£
; = En o
S 2 afve 30
9 & plczd u 2¥
E 9 gEEd w35
L] m..:.:m =.IEE
TR | I TR B i
£ g ALEeTichs
= e
PRLE SR FL
o £ WmeBm.mnm
Bl |2 338588 %¢y
- WLl
= rm_m ﬁwnﬂana@r




Agenda ltem 11

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LANGLEY FARM BREAKSPEAR ROAD NORTH HAREFIELD

Development: Two storey, 4-bed, detached dwelling with car port to side and alterations to
site entrance to include gates, involving demolition of existing farmhouse.
Single storey outbuilding for ancillary use involving part demolition of existing
outbuilding and conversion of existing barn to habitable use to include
installation of mezzanine level, alterations to elevations and associated
restoration works.

LBH Ref Nos: 30836/APP/2014/2107

Drawing Nos: Location Plan
1690/5 REV E
Design and Access Statement
Protected Species Assessment reference 13-086-WA
Building Survey Repori
Statement of Significance
Covering Letter
1690/7 Rev A
1690/6 Rev B
1690/1
1690/4 REV D
2582/1 Topographical Survey
KDK Historic Building Appraisal
Outline Method Statement, Bat Mitigation and Compensation Repor
reference 13-086-BA
WML-CL21 Bat Licence
Bat Assessment dated July 2015 reference 13-086-BA

Date Plans Received: 16/06/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 12/10/2015
Date Application Valid: 26/06/2014 16/06/2014
21/10/2015

1. SUMMARY

The proposed replacement dwelling and alterations and conversion of the existing barn
and stables are considered to be of an appropriate design, size, scale and form that would
preserve and not detract from the historic character and setting of the listed building and
Conservation Area. The proposals are of an appropriate size and scale, and do not result
in disproportionate additions over and above the size of the existing buildings on the site,
and the scheme is therefore not considered to have a greater impact on the openness,
character and setting of the Green Belt.

Given the distance of the site from neighbouring residential properties, the scheme is not
deemed to have a detrimental impact on the amenities of nearby residences. Conditions
will ensure that the ecology and verdant character and nature of the site is maintained.

The scheme complies with the adopted policies and guidance and approval is
recommended.

2. RECOMMENDATION

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 93



APPROVAL subiject to the following:

1 RES3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 1690/4 REV D;
1690/6 Rev B; 1690/7 Rev A; 1690/5 REV E and shall thereafter be retained/maintained
for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2015).

3 RES5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

Bat Mitigation and Protection [Outline Method Statement, Bat Mitigation and Compensation
Report reference 13-086-BA dated October 2015]

Bat Assessment [Bat Assessment dated July 2015 reference 13-086-BA]

Protected Species [Protected Species Assessment reference 13-086-WA dated July
2015]

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2015).

4 NONSC Phasing of works

Prior to the commencement of any development, a detailed phasing and implementation
plan, including the order and timing of development of individual buildings, landscaped
areas and vehicular access ways, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

Thereafter and prior to occupation of each phase, the scheme shall be completed in strict
accordance with the approved details and thereafter maintained for the life of the
development.

REASON:

To ensure the development proceeds in a satisfactory manner, and to ensure the
preservation of the heritage asset, in accordance with policy HE1 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan Part 1, policies BE8, BE13 and BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012).

5 CA2 Demolition - requirement for development contract

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 94



The works of demolition, including partial demolition hereby approved shall not be
commenced before contract(s) for the carrying out of the completion of the entire scheme
of works approved under this permission, including the works contract, have been made
and evidence of such contract(s) has been submitted to and accepted in writing by the
Council as local planning authority.

REASON
To ensure that premature demolition does not occur in accordance with Policy BE4
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

6 CA6 Inspection of the buildings

Prior to any alteration or demolition, the buildings should be recorded to English Heritage
Level 1 and following agreement with LBH and where appropriate English Heritage, copies
of the document sent to the Uxbridge Local History Library archive and English Heritage
for inclusion in the London Heritage Environment Record.

REASON
To safeguard the historic interest of the building in accordance with Policy BE4 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

7 RES7 Materials (Submission)

No phase of the development shall take place until details of the following have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:

i)Details of the the materials, design and finish of the windows (including roof lights),
French doors and all other external doors;

ii)Details of the construction and external appearance at an appropriate scale of gables
and half dormer windows

Details should include drawings, cross-sections and samples or details of all external
materials (including colours and finishes).

Thereafter the relevant phase shall be constructed in accordance with the approved
details and be retained as such.

REASON

To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE9 and BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012)

8 LB9 Samples of materials

Prior to the construction of any plinth/walls, a sample panel shall be erected on site for
inspection by the Local Planning Authority, to show the pointing style, colour and texture of
the lime based pointing mix and brick bond. Details of this panel, shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the relevant part of the work is
begun.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in
accordance with Policy BE8 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012)

9 DIS5 Design to Lifetime Homes Standards & Wheelchair Standards

The dwelling hereby approved shall be constructed to meet the standards for a Category 2

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 95



M4(2) dwelling, as set out in Approved Document M to the Building Regulations (2010)
2015, and all such provisions shall remain in place for the life of the building.

REASON:
To ensure an appropriate standard of housing stock in accordance with London Plan
Policy 3.8 c, is achieved and maintained.

10 RES10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan(s) shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged
during (or after) construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying, another tree,
hedge or shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would
leave the new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a
position to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size
and species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in
the first planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of
the buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of
remedial works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or
groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting
should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and
Shrubs'.

Remedial work should be -carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

1 RES15 Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the
development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of
the London Plan and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed to
delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken to
prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development which
shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker
and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime.
The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 96



development.
Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OE8 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
London Plan (2015) Policy 5.12.

12 RES8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height
of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

13 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No phase of the development shall commence until a landscape scheme for the relevant
phase has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for
that phase. The scheme for each phase shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 97



2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Means of enclosure/boundary treatments
2.c Hard Surfacing Materials

2.d External Lighting

2.e Other structures

3. Schedule for Implementation

4. Other
4.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
4.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13 and BE38
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and 5.17 (refuse
storage) of the London Plan (2015).

INFORMATIVES

1 111 The Construction (Design and Management) Regulations
1994

The development hereby approved may be subject to the Construction (Design and
Management) Regulations 1994, which govern health and safety through all stages of a
construction project. The regulations require clients (ie. those, including developers, who
commision construction projects) to appoint a planning supervisor and principal contractor
who are competent and adequately resourced to carry out their health and safety
responsibilities. Further information is available from the Health and Safety Executive,
Rose Court, 2 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 9HS (telephone 020 7556 2100).

2 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 98



61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

3 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

4 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

BE10 Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

BE12 Proposals for alternative use (to original historic use) of statutorily
listed buildings

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE14 Development of sites in isolation

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 5.12 (2015) Flood risk management

LPP 5.13 (2015) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.3 (2015) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 7.16 (2015) Green Belt

LPP 7.19 (2015) Biodiversity and access to nature

LPP 7.21 (2015) Trees and woodland

LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character

LPP 7.5 (2015) Public realm

LPP 7.6 (2015) Architecture

LPP 7.8 (2015) Heritage assets and archaeology

LPP 7.9 (2015) Heritage-led regeneration

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties

and the local area

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 99



OL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development

OL2 Green Belt -landscaping improvements
OoL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings
OL13 Development associated with agricultural or forestry uses within or
affecting conservation areas, archaeological priority areas etc.
OL14 Change of use or conversion of redundant agricultural buildings
5 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2015).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

6

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We
have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from the 'Saved'
UDP 2007, Local Plan Part 1, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and
other informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service, in
order to ensure that the applicant has been given every opportunity to submit an
application which is likely to be considered favourably.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

Langley Farm is located on the western side of Breakspear Road North and consists of a
disused farmstead consisting of a farmhouse, large barn, small barn, attached stables and
a disused granary store. Whilst the farmhouse is not listed, the small barn to the north
west of the farmhouse, is Grade Il listed.

The existing original farmhouse on this site is a detached two storey building of simple form
with a two storey annexe at the rear. The original building had a single storey annexe to the
South which consisted of stores and sheds which has recently been taken down following
serious fire damage. It is understood that the original farmhouse dates from the later
1800's but is in very poor condition both internally and externally and is not locally or
Statutory Listed.

The detached outbuilding directly opposite the farmhouse consists of two building
elements; a reasonably sized timber frame barn structure and a long single storey annexe.
The Barn structure is believed to date from the mid 1800's and is Grade Il Listed whilst the
annexe is a much more recent addition comprising a mix of timber framing and masonry
with a tiled roof over.

The open ground surrounding the existing buildings lies mainly to the south east and the
overall site has an area of 0.58ha and consists of a large field area between the buildings
and Breakspear Road North. The southern and eastern boundaries of the site generally

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 100



follow the original building lines and are also demarcated with post and rail fences. The
northern boundary runs parallel to the existing access driveway and is also demarcated by
a post and rail fence.

The site is located within the Green Belt, Harefield Conservation Area and the Colne Valley
Regional Park.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks consent for the construction of a new two storey detached
dwellinghouse to replace the existing farmhouse building, and the refurbishment and part
rebuilding of an existing outbuilding for ancillary residential use together with associated
landscaping and external works.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

30836/APP/2006/1321 Langley Farm Breakspear Road North Harefield

DEMOLITION OF FARMHOUSE AND GARAGE (APPLICATION FOR CONSERVATION AREA
CONSENT).

Decision: 06-10-2006 Refused

30836/APP/2008/129 Langley Farm Breakspear Road North Harefield

DEMOLITION OF FARMHOUSE IN CONNECTION WITH THE ERECTION OF A NEW
DETACHED DWELLINGHOUSE (APPLICATION FOR CONSERVATION AREA CONSENT).

Decision: 07-05-2008 Refused Appeal: 28-05-2009 Dismissed

30836/APP/2008/78 Langley Farm Breakspear Road North Harefield

ERECTION OF A FOUR-BEDROOM DETACHED DWELLINGHOUSE WITH ASSOCIATED
GARAGE AND PARKING SPACES (INVOLVING DEMOLITION OF THE EXISTING DWELLINC(
HOUSE AND ATTACHED OUTBUILDINGS).

Decision: 07-05-2008 Refused Appeal: 28-05-2009 Dismissed

Comment on Relevant Planning History

The most relevant planning history is listed. Of relevance to the consideration of this
application is 30836/APP/2008/78 which refused consent for the demolition of the existing
farmhouse and construction of a larger dwelling. This application was refused by the
Council for the following reasons:

1. By reason of its overall size, bulk and scale, the building was considered to be materially
larger than the existing farmhouse and significantly increase the built up appearance of the
site, constituting inappropriate development in the green belt;

2. The design, bulk and scale of the proposed building was considered incongruous and
detrimental to the setting of the listed barn and conservation area;

3. No details were provided of the proposed detached garage, fencing, landscaping and
access arrangements. In the absence of these elements, the scheme was considered to
have a detrimental impact on the visual appearance and openness of the area;

4. No written justification was provided for the demolition of the farmhouse, barn or
cartshed. In the absence of any justification, their loss was considered to have a
detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the conservation area.

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 101



This decision was appealed and subsequently dismissed on appeal by the Planning
Inspectorate. The Inspector made the following conclusions:

1. The farmhouse and ancillary buildings were close to dereliction and whilst their loss
would be harmful to the character and appearance of the conservation area, that concern
could be addressed if a satisfactory new building were to replace it;

2. The replacement building was much larger and different in style to the existing building. It
was considered that the change in scale of the replacement building would be significant
and the new house would amount to "inappropriate" development in the Green Belt;

3. The design of any replacement building would need to be consistent with the layout of
the existing group of farm buildings.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

PT1.EM2 (2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains
PT1.EM7 (2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

BE10 Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

BE12 Proposals for alternative use (to original historic use) of statutorily listed buildings

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE14 Development of sites in isolation

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 5.12 (2015) Flood risk management
LPP 5.13 (2015) Sustainable drainage

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 102



LPP 5.3 (2015) Sustainable design and construction
LPP 7.16 (2015) Green Belt

LPP 7.19 (2015) Biodiversity and access to nature
LPP 7.21 (2015) Trees and woodland

LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character

LPP 7.5 (2015) Public realm

LPP 7.6 (2015) Architecture

LPP 7.8 (2015) Heritage assets and archaeology

LPP 7.9 (2015) Heritage-led regeneration

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OoL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development

OL2 Green Belt -landscaping improvements

OoL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

OL13 Development associated with agricultural or forestry uses within or affecting
conservation areas, archaeological priority areas etc.

OoL14 Change of use or conversion of redundant agricultural buildings

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2  Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

Two letters were sent to neighbouring properties, which addresses the consultee requirements of
Part 15(5) of the The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England)
Order 2015. Press adverts were also displayed in relation to this application.

One response was received to this consultation from Harefield Village Conservation Panel, who
raised no objection to the proposals and commented that they were welcomed as the proposals
would re-instate the character and scale of the farmstead.

EXTERNAL CONSULTEES

Denham Aerodrome

The site is located within Denham Aerdrome Traffic Zone. Any future occupants will hear and see
aircraft, and it is important that all concerned are aware of the juxtaposition.

Internal Consultees

TREES AND LANDSCAPE OFFICER

No objection to the scheme subject to conditions being attached to any consent to ensure that a tree
survey is carried out, adequate tree protection for the retained trees submitted and a hard/soft
landscape scheme secured to ensure that the proposals preserve and enhance the surrounding
area.

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 103



HIGHWAYS
No objection.

ECOLOGY

Following the submission of further surveys and reports, no objection is now raised to the proposal,
subject to the application being carried out in accordance with the recommendations within the
report.

CONSERVATION

Following a number of revisions to the submitted scheme, no objection is now raised to the
proposals. A number of conditions are recommended to secure the detailed design of the buildings,
external materials, details of all fenestration, hard and soft landscaping and details of any boundary
treatment.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The site consists of a disused farmstead consisting of a farmhouse, large barn, small
barn, attached stables and a disused granary store. The main issues for consideration in
relation to the principle of development are the loss of the agricultural buildings/use of the
land and impact on the openness and character of the Green Belt.

Loss of Agricultural use/buildings:

Policies OL13 and OL14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Policies state that
when agricultural or other rural buildings become redundant, proposals may be submitted
for conversion of or new uses. In determining the appropriateness of any proposals, the
Local Planning Authority will have particular regard to the effect of any proposed building or
works on the building and its setting. Any conversion scheme must be compatible with the
character of the building and capable of being achieved with minimum impact on the
landscape

The farm has been vacant for many years and the submitted statements highlight that in
general, the farmhouse buildings are in a very poor condition and beyond economic repair.
The site makes up part of an original group of buildings which were until relatively recently
in general use relating to the surrounding farmland and it is understood that the Farmhouse
building itself was last used to provide accommodation for farm workers. This use ceased
in 2004 when the majority of the surrounding lands were incorporated into the adjacent
Park Lodge Farm and the Farmhouse, the outbuilding opposite and the lands to the South
East were sold off separately to a private purchaser.

Since that time, these buildings, together with the large detached Barn to the South and the
storage buildings to the East have stood vacant and have suffered from extensive
vandalism.

It is considered that the proposed replacement farmhouse building, and refurbishment and
part rebuilding of the listed barn and stables to a size and scale to match the existing,
would be appropriate in terms of their design and scale, and not have a detrimental impact
on the character, appearance or setting of the buildings or surrounding area.

Principle of redevelopment in the Green Belt:

Policy EM2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012) states
that any proposals for development in Green Belt will be assessed against national and
London Plan policies, including the very special circumstances test.

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 104



Policy OL1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 defines the types of development considered
acceptable within the Green Belt. These are predominantly open land uses including
agriculture, horticulture, forestry, nature conservation, open air recreational activities and
cemeteries. It states that planning permission will not be granted for new buildings or
changes of use of existing land or buildings which do not fall within these uses.

Policy OL2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 states that, where development proposals
are acceptable within the Green Belt, in accordance with Policy OL1, the Local Planning
Authority will seek comprehensive landscaping improvements to enhance the visual
amenity of the Green Belt.

London Plan policy 7.16 reaffirms that the strongest protection should be given to London's
Green Belt, in accordance with national guidance, and emphasises that inappropriate
development should be refused, except in very special circumstances.

The NPPF reiterates that inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green
Belt and should not be approved except in very special circumstances. It states that:

'When considering any planning application, local planning authorities should ensure that
substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt. 'Very special circumstances' will
not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and
any other harm, is clearly outweighed by other considerations. A Local Authority should
regard the construction of new buildings as inappropriate in Green Belt. Exceptions to this
are, which are relevant to the consideration of this application are:

i) the extension or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in disproportionate
additions and above the size of the original dwelling.

ii) the replacement of a building, provided the new building is in the same use and not
materially larger that the one it replaces.

iii)Limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed sites
(brownfield land), whether redundant or in continuing use (excluding temporary buildings),
which would not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt and the purpose
of including land within it than the existing development.

Given the condition of the existing farmhouse, it is proposed to demolish this and
reconstruct it on the same footprint as the original building, and to a similar size and scale
as the existing. As this building was already in a residential use, and the proposed works
do not represent a significant enlargement over and above the existing building, the
principle of the replacement dwelling is considered to comply with both National and Local
planning policy.

In relation to the grade Il listed barn, it is proposed to part rebuild and refurbish the barn for
use as ancillary residential accommodation. Historic farm and timber framed buildings
represent a small proportion of Hillingdon's stock of listed buildings and their impact on the
historic environment and landscape is highly significant. This barn is particularly well
preserved in a farmstead setting and it is important that any alterations to the barn
conserve the building in a manner appropriate to its significance.

The proposed alterations to the barn are considered to conserve and enhance the
significance of the building and ensure that the listed building, which is in a poor state, is
retained. In terms of the impact of the proposed refurbishment on the Green Belt, it is
considered that as the scheme would involve the replacement and alteration to an existing
building, on a similar scale, such would be appropriate in the context of the Green Belt

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 105



setting. The alterations are therefore not considered to have a detrimental impact on the
openness or character of the Green Belt.

Overall, it is therefore considered that the principle of the redevelopment of this agricultural
site within the Green Belt is acceptable.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Listed Building:

Policy BE8 of the states that applications for planning permission to alter or extend
statutory listed buildings will normally only be permitted if no damage is caused to historic
structures. Any additions should be in keeping with other parts of the building and any new
external or internal features should harmonise with their surroundings. Policy BE9 states
that in the case of listed buildings, policy BE8 will apply to applications for listed building
consent as well as those for planning permission where, in any particular case, these
matters are related. Policy BE10 states that planning permission or listed building consent
will not normally be granted for proposals which are considered detrimental to the setting of
a listed building.

Policy BE12 states that statutory listed buildings and others of architectural or historic
interest such as those on the local list should, preferably remain in their historic use.
Where planning permission is required, an alternative use will be permitted if it is
appropriate to secure the renovation and subsequent preservation of the building, features
of architectural or historic interest and setting.

Policy 7.8 'Heritage Assets and archaeology' of the London Plan (2015) recommends that
development should identify, value, conserve, restore, re-use and incorporate heritage
assets, where appropriate and development affecting heritage assets and their settings
should conserve their significance, by being sympathetic to their form, scale, materials and
architectural detail.

Policy 7.9 'Heritage Led Regeneration' of the London Plan (2015) explains that the
significance of heritage assets should be assessed when development is proposed and
schemes designed so that the heritage significance is recognised both in their own right
and as catalysts for regeneration. Wherever possible heritage assets (including buildings
at risk) should be repaired, restored and put to a suitable and viable use that is consistent
with their conservation and the establishment and maintenance of sustainable
communities and economic vitality.

Paragraph 134 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2012) stipulates that where a
development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a
designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the
proposal, including securing its optimum viable use.

The proposals to both the farmhouse, barn and stables have been considered by the
Councils Conservation Officer and revised accordingly in order to ensure that the
proposals are appropriate to the appearance, scale, design, historic character and setting
of the area.

The farmhouse forms part of the wider setting of the farmstead group and listed barn, and
previous schemes have resisted the demolition of this building, due to insufficient

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 106



justification being provided as to structural integrity of this building. Whilst the demolition of
the existing farmhouse is regrettable, it is considered that sufficient evidence has been
provided through the building surveys, to demonstrate that the building is in such a severe
condition, that this is the most viable option to ensure that the historic setting is maintained.
The scheme has been significantly revised to ensure that the proposed replacement
dwelling respects the character, form, design, scale and proportions of the original and
does not detract from the setting of the adjacent listed barn. Overall, the proposals to the
farmhouse are considered acceptable.

In relation to the works to the barn and stables, it is proposed to convert this to ancillary
residential accommodation. A Heritage Statement has been received which discusses the
history and development of the listed building and its significance. The scheme has been
revised in accordance with the Conservation Officers comments, and the proposed
structural and external alterations to the building are considered appropriate and sensitive
to its historic character.

Overall, the proposals to both the barn and farmhouse are considered to preserve and
enhance the special historic character and setting of the listed barn.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

There are no airport safeguarding issues associated with this application.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

Section 7.01 of this report has considered the impact of the development on the Green
Belt. The proposed replacement dwelling and alterations to the existing barn and stables,
do not result in disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original dwelling.
Further the partial redevelopment of the barn and stables, would be on the same footprint
as the existing and is not considered to have a greater impact on the openness, character
and setting of the Green Belt. The scheme is therefore considered to comply with the
NPPF and policies EM2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic policies and OL1
and OL2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Policies.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

For the impact on the Green Belt and Listed Building please see the relevant sections of
this report.

Adopted policy BE1 of the Local Plan Part 1 (Nov 2012) requires all new development to
improve and maintain the quality of the built environment in order to create successful and
sustainable neighbourhoods. 'Saved' policies BE13 and BE19 of the Unitary Development
Plan (2007) seek to ensure that the new development complements or improves the
character and amenity of the area, whilst 'saved' policy BE38 seeks the retention of
topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting and landscaping in
development proposals.

Chapter 7 of the London Plan (2015) sets out a series of overarching design principles for
development in London and policy 7.6 seeks to promote world class, high quality design
and design led change in key locations.

It is considered that the redevelopment of this site offers a positive opportunity to achieve a
high quality scheme which would enhance the appearance of this part of Harefield
Conservation Area.

The design of the replacement building will be of a traditional appearance and appropriately
detailed to ensure that the character of the existing building is maintained. The design of

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 107



the replacement dwelling has sought to utilise some of the more unusual features of the
existing farmhouse, such as the porch, two tone brick chimneys and horizontal faded roof
tiles. The scheme also retailed the simple character of typical Victorian Farmhouses within
the Borough. A number of conditions are recommended on any approval to ensure that the
level of design is achieved for the site.

The development sits on a relatively isolated position in relation to neighbouring properties
and is not readily visible from any public highway and as such is considered acceptable in
townscape terms, particularly as the proposal is considered to be of a high quality standard
of architecture.

The proposed renovation works to the main Listed Building are well designed and will make
a positive contribution to the location and surrounding area, in accordance with local,
regional, and national policy.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) seeks to
safeguard the amenities of neighbouring residents in a number of ways. The effect of the
siting, bulk and proximity of a new building on the outlook and residential amenity of these
adjoining occupiers are considered under Policy BE20, whilst potential impacts on
daylight/sunlight (Policy BE21) and privacy (Policy BE24) are also assessed.

'‘Saved' policy OE1 of the Unitary Development Plan (2007) states that permission will not
normally be granted for uses and associated structures which are, or are likely to become,
detrimental to the character or amenities of surrounding properties or the area generally.

The nearest neighbouring properties are located approximately 150m to the north east and
230 metres to the south east. Given the distance between the application site and these
occupants, the proposal is not considered to have a detrimental impact on the amenities of
the adjacent occupiers.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

The Government's national space standards contained in the Technical Housing Standards
and policy 3.5 of the London Plan (2015) set out the minimum floor areas required for
proposed residential units in order to ensure that they provide an adequate standard of
living for future occupants.

Generous and spacious residential floor space provision would be provided which
significantly exceed the minimum standards of policy 3.5 of the London Plan (2015) and
Technical Housing Standards.

Policy BE23 of the Unitary Development Plan states that new residential buildings should
provide or maintain external amenity space which is sufficient to protect the amenity of
existing and future occupants which is useable in terms of its shape and siting.
Developments should incorporate usable, attractively laid out and conveniently located
garden space in relation to the flats they serve. It should be of an appropriate size, having
regard to the size of the flats and character of the area.

The private amenity space provided for the site, exceeds the Councils requirements.
7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
considers whether the traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms
of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 108



7.11

7.12

713

714

or pedestrian safety. Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seeks to ensure that all development is in accordance with the Council's
adopted Car Parking Standards.

Given the single residential use of the site, there is ample space within the curtilage of the
dwelling for parking. A new timber field gate is proposed at the access to the site, to which
no objection is raised on design or highways grounds. The gate has been set back a
sufficient distance from the boundary with the road to ensure that cars can wait for the
gates to be opened. The visibility splays have also been provided to the requirements of the
highways officer. The scheme has been reviewed by the highways team and no objection
is raised in this regard.

Urban design, access and security

For details of Urban Design, please see Section 7.03 and 7.07 and for details of access
please see Section 7.10 of this report.
Disabled access

In assessing this application, reference has been made to policy 3.8 'Housing Choice' of
the London Plan (2015); Approved Document M to the Building Regulations 2010 (2015
edition); and Accessible Hillingdon SPD adopted 2013.

The scheme has been reviewed by the Councils Access Officer and no objections are
raised.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Policy BE38 of the states that development proposals will be expected to retain and utilise
topographical and landscape features of merit and provide new planting and landscaping
wherever it is appropriate. Planning applicants for planning consent will be required to
provide an accurate tree survey showing the location, height, spread and species of all
trees where their proposals would affect any existing trees.

The application has been accompanied by a topographical survey, which shows the
position and spread of the trees within the site, and indicates that the majority are some
distance from the existing/proposed buildings. The submission has been reviewed by the
Councils Trees and Landscape Officer, who raises no objections to the proposal, subject
to the submission a detailed tree survey, arboricultural impact assessment and tree
protection measures to safeguard the mature oak close to the entrance. This will be
secured by condition and in addition conditions are recommended to ensure a suitable
hard and soft landscaping scheme is approved for the site.

ECOLOGY

Policy EM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (Adopted November
2012) and policy 7.19 of the London Plan states that development proposals should
wherever possible, make a positive contribution to the protection, enhancement, creation
and management of biodiversity.

The site is considered to be of high value and likely to be of interest to protected species as
resting places. The Bat Surveys conducted in March 2014 and May 2015, reported bats in
several of the buildings, and there was evidence found in the farmhouse and barn that
these were used as roost sites. The proposed demolition of the farmhouse and
refurbishment of the barn was acknowledged to impact on the root site and therefore a
licence is required from Natural England before any works commence. Further information

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 109



7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

was also requested under the Habitats Directive and Conservation Regulations. Given the
significant weight afforded to the protection of bats, the applicant was required to
demonstrate that the scheme passed the three derogation tests set out in the Habitats
Directive. The three tests were:

1. That there would be no satisfactory alternative to the plan or project as a whole or in the
way it is implemented,;

2. That the plan or project must be in the interests of preserving public health or public
safety, or for other imperative reasons of overriding public interest, including those of social
or economic nature and beneficial consequences of importance for the environment;

3. That the favourable conservation status of the species affected must be maintained.

An Outline method statement, bat mitigation and compensation statement was received
which addressed the three tests in the Habitat Directive. This information was reviewed by
the Councils Ecology Officer, who was satisfied that all requirements had been met and
the bats present on the site would be sufficiently protected.

Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

With any new building, it is important that surface water is controlled to reduce the flood
risk to the surrounding area. This is vital for the application site as the land is designated as
a Critical Drainage Area and an area which has suffered from flooding recently. Further
there are a number of ditches running through the site. Works to divert the ditch has
already been carried out and reviewed by the Councils Flood Officer. Further information
relating to the ditch is required to be submitted and a condition will ensure such is received.
A SUDs condition is also recommended on any consent.

Noise or Air Quality Issues

There are no noise or air quality issues associated with this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

There are no additional comments to make on the public consultations.
Planning Obligations

Not applicable to the consideration of this application. The development would be liable for
the local and Mayoral Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable.
Other Issues

There are no other issues for consideration.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 110



of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
None

10. CONCLUSION

The proposed replacement dwelling and alterations and conversion of the existing barn and
stables are considered to be of an appropriate design, size, scale and form that would
preserve and not detract from the historic character and setting of the listed building and

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 111



Conservation Area. The proposals are of an appropriate size and scale, and do not result in
disproportionate additions over and above the size of the existing buildings on the site, and
the scheme is therefore not considered to have a greater impact on the openness,
character and setting of the Green Belt.

Given the distance of the site from neighbouring residential properties, the scheme is not
deemed to have a detrimental impact on the amenities of nearby residences. Conditions
will ensure that the ecology and verdant character and nature of the site is maintained.

The scheme complies with the adopted policies and guidance and approval is
recommended.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (2015)

National Planning Policy Framework (2012)

Technical Housing Standards - Nationally described space standards (2015)
Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance - Land Contamination
Council's Supplementary Planning Document - Accessible Hillingdon

The Mayor's Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance

Contact Officer: Charlotte Goff Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 112



@Pond

Ha
L

Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:
Langley Farm

Breakspear Road North
Harefield

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Scale:

Planning Application Ref:
1:1,250

30836/APP/2014/2107

Date:
March 2016

Planning Committee:

North Page 113

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 114



Agenda ltem 12

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LANGLEY FARM BREAKSPEAR ROAD NORTH HAREFIELD

Development: Conversion of existing barn to habitable use to include installation of
mezzanine level, installation of 1 x rooflight to south roof, 1 x rooflight to north
roof installation of new doors and window to south elevation, and new door to
west elevation with associated restoration works (Listed Building Application)

LBH Ref Nos: 30836/APP/2014/2109

Drawing Nos:
Location Plan
Design and Access Statement
Statement of Significance
KDK Historic Building Appraisal
Building Survey Report
1690/1
1690/4 REV D
1690/7 Rev A
1690/6 Rev B
1690/5 REV E
Covering Letter

Date Plans Received: 16/06/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 16/06/2014
Date Application Valid: 26/06/2014 21/10/2015

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1 Site and Locality

Langley Farm is located on the western side of Breakspear Road North and consists of a
disused farmstead consisting of a farmhouse, large barn, small barn, attached stables and
a disused granary store. Whilst the farmhouse is not listed, the small barn to the north
west of the farmhouse, is Grade Il listed.

The existing original farmhouse on this site is a detached two storey building of simple form
with a two storey annexe at the rear. The original building had a single storey annexe to the
South which consisted of stores and sheds which has recently been taken down following
serious fire damage. It is understood that the original farmhouse dates from the later
1800's but is in very poor condition both internally and externally and is not locally or
Statutory Listed.

The detached outbuilding directly opposite the farmhouse consists of two building
elements; a reasonably sized timber frame barn structure and a long single storey annexe.
The Barn structure is believed to date from the mid 1800's and is Grade Il Listed whilst the
annexe is a much more recent addition comprising a mix of timber framing and masonry
with a tiled roof over.

The open ground surrounding the existing buildings lies mainly to the south east and the

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 115



overall site has an area of 0.58ha and consists of a large field area between the buildings
and Breakspear Road North. The southern and eastern boundaries of the site generally
follow the original building lines and are also demarcated with post and rail fences. The
northern boundary runs parallel to the existing access driveway and is also demarcated by
a post and rail fence.

The site is located within the Green Belt, Harefield Conservation Area and the Colne Valley
Regional Park.

1.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks listed building consent for the refurbishment and part rebuilding of
the existing grade |l listed barn and stable, for ancillary residential use.

1.3 Relevant Planning History
30836/APP/2001/207 Langley Farm Breakspear Road North Harefield

RESTORATION OF SINGLE STOREY ATTACHED STABLES, TO FORM PART SINGLE
STOREY FAMILY DWELLINGHOUSE

Decision Date: 22-06-2001 ADH Appeal:
30836/APP/2001/208 Langley Farm Breakspear Road North Harefield

RESTORATION OF ATTACHED SINGLE STOREY STABLES TO FORM A PART SINGLE
STOREY FAMILY DWELLINGHOUSE (APPLICATION FOR LISTED BUILDING CONSENT)

Decision Date: 28-06-2001 NFA Appeal:
30836/APP/2006/1321 Langley Farm Breakspear Road North Harefield

DEMOLITION OF FARMHOUSE AND GARAGE (APPLICATION FOR CONSERVATION AREA
CONSENT).

Decision Date: 06-10-2006 Refused Appeal:
30836/APP/2006/1994 Langley Farm Barn Breakspear Road North Harefield

CONVERSION OF FARM BARN INTO A FOUR-BEDROOM DWELLINGHOUSE, WITH
INSTALLATION OF ENTRANCE DOOR AND WINDOWS AT GROUND AND FIRST FLOOR
LEVELSONALL ELEVATIONS AND WIDENING OF EXISTING VEHICULAR CROSSOVER AND
ACCESS ROAD.

Decision Date: 22-11-2006 Withdrawn Appeal:
30836/APP/2008/129 Langley Farm Breakspear Road North Harefield

DEMOLITION OF FARMHOUSE IN CONNECTION WITH THE ERECTION OF A NEW
DETACHED DWELLINGHOUSE (APPLICATION FOR CONSERVATION AREA CONSENT).

Decision Date: 07-05-2008 Refused Appeal:28-MAY-09 Dismissed
30836/APP/2008/78 Langley Farm Breakspear Road North Harefield

ERECTION OF A FOUR-BEDROOM DETACHED DWELLINGHOUSE WITH ASSOCIATED
GARAGE AND PARKING SPACES (INVOLVING DEMOLITION OF THE EXISTING DWELLIN(
HOUSE AND ATTACHED OUTBUILDINGS).

Decision Date: 07-05-2008 Refused Appeal:28-MAY-09 Dismissed
Comment on Planning History

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 116



The most relevant planning history is listed above. There is an associated planning
application for this site, reference 30836/APP/2014/2107

2. Advertisement and Site Notice
2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

3. Comments on Public Consultations

Neighbours were notified of the application, meeting the minimum consultation
requirements.

EXTERNAL

Harefield Conservation Panel: The Panel was very pleased to see an imminently
appropriate proposal for the rehabilitation of this complex that will re-instate well in
character and scale what would have been a substantial little farmstead in its hey-day.

The Panel had no objections to the applications and hopes that it can proceed quickly to
completion before there is any more vandal damage.

One resident has expressed to support for the scheme and would like to see the buildings
improved.

INTERNAL

CONSERVATION

Following a number of revisions to the submitted scheme, no objection is now raised to the
proposals.

4. UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BES8 Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings

BE9 Listed building consent applications for alterations or extensions

BE10 Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

BE12 Proposals for alternative use (to original historic use) of statutorily listed
buildings

LPP 7.8 (2015) Heritage assets and archaeology

LPP 7.9 (2015) Heritage-led regeneration

NPPF12 NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 117



5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

Policy BE8 of the states that applications for planning permission to alter or extend
statutory listed buildings will normally only be permitted if no damage is caused to historic
structures. Any additions should be in keeping with other parts of the building and any new
external or internal features should harmonise with their surroundings. Policy BE9 states
that in the case of listed buildings, policy BE8 will apply to applications for listed building
consent as well as those for planning permission where, in any particular case, these
matters are related. Policy BE10 states that planning permission or listed building consent
will not normally be granted for proposals which are considered detrimental to the setting of
a listed building.

Policy BE12 states that statutory listed buildings and others of architectural or historic
interest such as those on the local list should, preferably remain in their historic use.
Where planning permission is required, an alternative use will be permitted if it is
appropriate to secure the renovation and subsequent preservation of the building, features
of architectural or historic interest and setting.

Policy 7.8 'Heritage Assets and archaeology' of the London Plan (2015) recommends that
development should identify, value, conserve, restore, re-use and incorporate heritage
assets, where appropriate and development affecting heritage assets and their settings
should conserve their significance, by being sympathetic to their form, scale, materials and
architectural detail.

Policy 7.9 'Heritage Led Regeneration' of the London Plan (2015) explains that the
significance of heritage assets should be assessed when development is proposed and
schemes designed so that the heritage significance is recognised both in their own right
and as catalysts for regeneration. Wherever possible heritage assets (including buildings
at risk) should be repaired, restored and put to a suitable and viable use that is consistent
with their conservation and the establishment and maintenance of sustainable
communities and economic vitality.

Paragraph 134 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2012) stipulates that where a
development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a
designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the
proposal, including securing its optimum viable use.

The first point to bear in mind in this proposal is that whilst the main building is listed, it is
noted that its heritage value has been, to some extent, diminished over time through a
number of later additions. Most notably the 1980's extension attached to the western side
of the building. In addition, the Council's Conservation Officer recognises that internally
whilst the building was very well restored in the 80's, few original decorative features or
joinery elements remain.

The proposals to both the farmhouse, barn and stables have been considered by the
Councils Conservation Officer and revised accordingly in order to ensure that the
proposals are appropriate to the appearance, scale, design, historic character and setting
of the area.

The farmhouse forms part of the wider setting of the farmstead group and listed barn, and
previous schemes have resisted the demolition of this building, due to insufficient
justification being provided as to structural integrity of this building. Whilst the demolition of
the existing farmhouse is regrettable, it is considered that sufficient evidence has been
provided through the building surveys, to demonstrate that the building is in such a severe

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 118



condition, that this is the most viable option to ensure that the historic setting is maintained.
The scheme has been significantly revised to ensure that the proposed replacement
dwelling respects the character, form, design, scale and proportions of the original and
does not detract from the setting of the adjacent listed barn. Overall, the proposals to the
farmhouse are considered acceptable.

In relation to the works to the barn and stables, it is proposed to convert this to ancillary
residential accommodation. A Heritage Statement has been received which discusses the
history and development of the listed building and its significance. Whilst the proposed use
differs to the original, it is considered that this ancillary residential use would enable the
long term preservation of the listed building and farmstead group.

The scheme has been revised in accordance with the Conservation Officers comments,
and given the quality of the revised scheme, the proposed structural and external
alterations to the building are considered appropriate and sensitive to its historic character.

Subject to a range of conditions, the proposed development would safeguard the historic
fabric of the original listed building and its setting, in accordance with Saved Policies BES,
BE9, BE10, and BE12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

6. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 LB1 Time Limit (3 years) - Listd Building Consent

The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the
date of this consent.

REASON

To comply with Section 18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990.

2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 1690/4 REV D;
1690/6 Rev B; 1690/7 Rev A; 1690/5 REV E and shall thereafter be retained/maintained
for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2015).

3 CAG6 Inspection of the buildings

Prior to any alteration or demolition, the buildings should be recorded to English Heritage
Level 1 and following agreement with LBH and where appropriate English Heritage, copies
of the document sent to the Uxbridge Local History Library archive and English Heritage
for inclusion in the London Heritage Environment Record.

REASON

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 119



To safeguard the historic interest of the building in accordance with Policy BE4 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

4 NONSC Phasing of works

Prior to the commencement of any development, a detailed phasing and implementation
plan, including the order and timing of development of individual buildings, landscaped
areas and vehicular access ways, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

Thereafter and prior to occupation of each phase, the scheme shall be completed in strict
accordance with the approved details and thereafter maintained for the life of the
development.

REASON:

To ensure the development proceeds in a satisfactory manner, and to ensure the
preservation of the heritage asset, in accordance with policy HE1 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan Part 1, policies BE8, BE13 and BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012).

5 LB11 Further Details (Listed Buildings)

Detailed drawings, details, cross sections (where relevant) or samples of materials, as
appropriate, in respect of the following parts of the listed barn and stable conversion, shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the relevant
part of the work is begun:

(i) External materials (including colours and finishes)

(i) Windows/frames and external doors (including cross sections)

(iii) Rooflights;

iv) Construction of the new floors;

v) Design of internal joinery, including the mezzanine floor, staircase and balustrade;

vi) Type and installation of insulation and internal wall finishes;

vii) Size and location of vents and flues;

viii) Reuse of the internal metal pulley structure.

REASON
To safeguard the special architectural and historic interest of the building in accordance
with Policy BE8 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

6 LB9 Samples of materials

Prior to the construction of any plinth/walls, a sample panel shall be erected on site for
inspection by the Local Planning Authority, to show the pointing style, colour and texture of
the lime based pointing mix and brick bond. Details of this panel, shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the relevant part of the work is
begun.

REASON
To safeguard the special architectural and historic interest of the building in accordance
with Policy BE8 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

7 LB10 Internal and External Finishes (Listed Buildings)

All new works and works of making good to the retained fabric of the building, whether
internal or external, shall be finished to match the existing fabric with regard to methods
used and to material, colour, texture and profile.

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 120



REASON
To safeguard the special architectural and historic interest of the building in accordance
with Policy BE8 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

8 LB2 Making good of any damage

Any damage caused to the building in execution of the works shall be made good to the
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within 6 months of the works being completed.

REASON
To safeguard the special architectural and historic interest of the building in accordance
with Policy BE8 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

INFORMATIVES

1 The decision to GRANT listed building consent has been taken having regard to
all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

2 The decision to GRANT listed building consent has been taken having regard to
the policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012)
set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant
material considerations, including the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BES8 Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings
BE9 Listed building consent applications for alterations or extensions

BE10 Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

BE12 Proposals for alternative use (to original historic use) of statutorily listed
buildings

LPP 7.8 (2015) Heritage assets and archaeology
LPP 7.9 (2015) Heritage-led regeneration
NPPF12 NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment

3 On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then
London Plan Policies (2015). On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council
agreed the adoption of the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies.
Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the old Unitary
Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

4 In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the
National Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and
proactive way. We have made available detailed advice in the form of our

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 121



statutory policies from the 'Saved' UDP 2007, Local Plan Part 1, Supplementary
Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and other informal written guidance, as well
as offering a full pre-application advice service, in order to ensure that the
applicant has been given every opportunity to submit an application which is likely
to be considered favourably.

Contact Officer: Charlotte Goff Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 122



@Pond

Ha

Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:
Langley Farm

Breakspear Road North
Harefield

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Scale:

Planning Application Ref:
1:1,250

30836/APP/2014/2109

Date:
March 2016

Planning Committee:

North Page 123

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 124



Agenda ltem 13

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 37 THE DRIVE ICKENHAM

Development: Erection of two storey building with habitable roofspace and basement to
create 5 x 2-bed and 1 x 3-bed self contained flats with associated parking
and landscaping works, including a new shed (works involve the demolition of
existing dwelling house)

LBH Ref Nos: 24043/APP/2015/3509

Drawing Nos: 2958-08 Rev.
2958-02 Rev.
2958-05 Rev.
2958-04 Rev.
2958-03 Rev.
2958-01 Rev.
2958-06
2958-07
1:1250 Location Plan
STV/MR/06
SOL/TD/07P
SOL/TD/02P
SOL/TD/03P
Design and Access Statement

>>>>> >

Date Plans Received: 18/09/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 18/09/2015
Date Application Valid: 29/09/2015 29/09/2015
1. SUMMARY

An application for a replacement detached house on this site which was approved at the
North Planning Committee meeting on 11/2/14 (App. No. 24043/APP/2013/1738 refers).
The replacement house had a very similar siting, overall width, height and design to the
currently proposed flatted block, with the main change to the built form being an increase
in the depth of the block so that although it maintains a very similar rear building line and
built form, it would now project further forward on site.

The increase in the overall mass and bulk of the block would not be out of keeping with
this part of The Drive, as it lies within a row of properties (Nos. 33 - 45) where all but the
application site and the adjoining recessed infill bungalow (No. 35A) have been re-
developed to provide larger replacement houses with large crown roofs, many of which
are of a comparable size and bulk, particularly those to the north, including the adjoining
property, No. 39.

The proposed block would not appear unduly conspicuous within the street scene, as
although it would project marginally in front of its immediate neighbours, it would still be
set back from the road by some 45m and there is no defined building line along this part of
The Drive, with the majority of properties set much further forward, including the existing
house on this site.

The front elevation, with a recessed side element, although the main elements of the

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 125



design have previously been approved, the width of the main elevation has been
compressed, but it is considered that the main front elevation maintains good proportion
and would be of an appropriate traditional design.

The Council's 10% guideline, above which the number of flatted redevelopment schemes
can affect the traditional residential character of a road has not been breached. Also, the
proposed front garden would be capable of providing sufficient off-street car parking
spaces whilst still providing a good amount of landscaped green space.

The proposed units would provide a good standard of residential accommodation and
amenity space and the residential amenities of neighbouring properties would not be
adversely affected.

There would be no impact upon existing trees on site.

The scheme is recommended for approval, subject to the recommended conditions.
2. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subiject to the following:

1 RES3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 2958-01 Rev. A,
2958-02 Rev. A, 2958-03 Rev. A, 2958-04 Rev. A, 2958-05 Rev. A, 2958-06, 2958-07 and
2958-08 Rev. A and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development
remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2015).

3 RES7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces,
including details of balconies have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance with
the approved details and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

4 RES8 Tree Protection
No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 126



submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height
of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

5 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping, to include the provision of a private patio area to the rear
of Flat 1.

2.a Cycle parking area(s) to include a minimum of 13 spaces,

2.b Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.c Car Parking Layout (including provision for 2 of the 10 parking spaces to be served by
electrical charging points, with demonstration that a further 2 have adequate capacity to
ensure such provision could be provided in the future),

2.d Hard Surfacing Materials

2.e External Lighting

2.f Other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance
3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.
3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 127



landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

5. Other
5.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
5.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with Policies BE13, BE38 and
AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
Policy 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (March 2015).

6 RES10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan(s) shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged
during (or after) construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying, another tree,
hedge or shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would
leave the new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a
position to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size
and species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in
the first planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of
the buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of
remedial works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or
groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting
should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and
Shrubs' Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

7 RES13 Obscure Glazing

All the side windows and rooflights facing No. 35A and side rooflights facing No. 39 The
Drive shall be glazed with permanently obscured glass and non-opening below a height of
1.8 metres taken from internal finished floor level for so long as the development remains
in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with Policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 128



8 NONSC Lantern Light Details

Details of the design and/or any obscure glazing/screening of the lantern lights on the
orangery type conservatories serving Flats 1 and 3 shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the LPA. The lantern lights shall be retained as approved for so long as the
development remains in existence.

REASON

To safeguard the privacy of the occupiers of these units and of the flats above from
disturbance resulting from light spillage, in accordance with Policies BE19, BE24 and
OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

9 NONSC Restriction of roof use

The roof area of the orangery type conservatory adjoining the side boundary with No. 35a
The Drive shall not be used as a roof garden or other type of amenity space.

REASON

To safeguard the privacy of the occupiers of the adjoining property, in accordance with
Policies BE19 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

10 NONSC Flooding Risk Ground Investigation

Prior to the commencement of development a ground investigation shall be undertaken to
determine the risk of flooding to and from the new development. The investigation must be
accompanied by appropriate mitigation if there is a risk of flooding to or from the proposed
development. The investigation and mitigation details should be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to works commencement. The
development must then proceed in accordance with the approved details unless
otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason
To minimise the risk of flooding to and from the proposed development in accordance with
the NPPF and Policy 5.12 of the London Plan (March 2015).

1 RES15 Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the
development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of
the London Plan and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed to
delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken to
prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development which
shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker
and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 129



v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OES8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
and Policy 5.12 of the London Plan (March 2015).

12 RES22 Parking Allocation

No unit hereby approved shall be occupied until a parking allocation scheme has been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
parking shall remain allocated for the use of the units in accordance with the approved
scheme and remain under this allocation for the life of the development.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (2015).

13 NONSC Level Access

The dwellings hereby approved shall be constructed to meet the standards for a Category
2 M4(2) dwelling, as set out in Approved Document M to the Building Regulations (2010)
2015, and all such provisions shall remain in place for the life of the building.

REASON:
To ensure an appropriate standard of housing stock in accordance with London Plan
Policy 3.8 c, is achieved and maintained.

14 NONSC Soil Testing

Before any part of the development is brought into use, site derived soils and imported
soils shall be independently tested for chemical contamination, and the results of this
testing shall be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All soils
used for gardens and/or landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of contamination.

REASON

To ensure that maintenance workers at the development are not subject to any risks from
soil contamination in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 130



The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

NPPF10 NPPF - Meeting challenge of climate change flooding costal

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2015) Housing Choice

LPP 5.2 (2015) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

LPP 5.3 (2015) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 5.7 (2015) Renewable energy

LPP 5.12 (2015) Flood risk management

LPP 5.13 (2015) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.14 (2015) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure

LPP 5.15 (2015) Water use and supplies

LPP 5.17 (2015) Waste capacity

LPP 6.3 (2015) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

LPP 6.5 (2015) Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport
infrastructure

LPP 6.9 (2015) Cycling

LPP 6.10 (2015) Walking

LPP 6.13 (2015) Parking

LPP 7.1 (2015) Lifetime Neighbourhoods

LPP 7.2 (2015) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.3 (2015) Designing out crime

LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character

LPP 7.6 (2015) Architecture

LPP 7.14 (2015) Improving air quality

LPP 7.15 (2015) Reducing noise and and managing noise, improving and
enhancing the acoustic environment and promoting appropriate
soundscapes.

LPP 7.21 (2015) Trees and woodland

OL5 Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 131



and the local area

OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

H3 Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

H4 Mix of housing units

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

SPG-CS Community Safety by Design, Supplementary Planning Guidance,

adopted July 2004

3 12 Encroachment

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by either
its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will have to
be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results in any
form of encroachment.

4 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least
6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans
must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Residents Services, Building Control, 3N/01 Civic
Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

5 15 Party Walls

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement
from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:

- carry out work to an existing party wall;

- build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

- in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner and
are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. The Building Control
Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements with the
adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as removing
the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further
information and advice is to be found in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory
booklet" published by the ODPM, available free of charge from the Residents Services
Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 132



6 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override property
rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not empower
you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the owner. If
you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

7 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the western side of The Drive, a private shared surface
road that comprises mainly two storey, detached houses of mixed architectural style and
quality set within medium to large plots. More recently, a number of the original houses
have been re-developed, mainly to provide larger houses. No. 37 comprises a traditional
large detached two storey house on an extensive plot, with large single storey rear
extensions/outbuildings and a detached garage at the side served by two vehicular
accesses. The existing property is set forward on its plot compared to the adjoining
properties (Nos. 35A and 39), although it's siting does follow the closer original relationship
of properties on this side of the road to the south of No. 35A.

No. 35A is an infill bungalow development which is sited close to the side boundary of the
rear garden of the application site. No. 39 is a modern re-development, as are adjoining
properties to the north, comprising very large two/three storey houses with large crown
roofs and pastiche classical features which have a similar siting to No. 35A.

The site has an urban fringe location, with the Uxbridge Golf Club adjoining the site to the
west which forms part of the Green Belt and the Colne Valley Regional Park. Ground levels

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 133



fall away at the rear and also from the north to the south, allowing views over the adjoining
golf course through the mature trees which mark the rear boundary. The site has a low
PTAL (Public Transport Accessibility Level) score of 1b (where 6 represents the highest
and 1 the lowest level of accessibility) and is covered by Tree Preservation Order (TPO)
316. It also forms part of the Colne Valley Archaeological Priority Zone.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks permission to demolish the existing property and erect a detached
two storey flatted block, with a basement/lower ground level at the rear and
accommodation in the roof space to provide 5 x 2-bed and 1 x 3-bed flats, together with
associated parking and landscaping works, including a new shed at the bottom of the rear
garden.

The proposed flatted block would be set further back on its plot as compared to the existing
house so that it would be set back approximately 45m from The Drive and occupy a similar
position to that of its immediate neighbours. The building would have a two storey aspect at
the front, and due to the ground levels which slope down towards the rear, a three storey
aspect at the rear with the exposed basement/lower ground floor. The concealed
basement would project beyond the front elevation of the property. With an overall width of
22.2m, the building would maintain minimum gaps of 1.9m and 2.2m to the side
boundaries with Nos. 35a and 39 respectively.

The building would have a main depth of 17.5m, although it incorporates a set back across
4.16m of its width on its southern side, to reduce the main depth by 3.67m to 13.83m. The
main front elevation incorporates 3, 1.37m deep projecting gabled bays and on the rear
elevation, a large centrally sited gable projecting 3.05m from the main rear elevation to give
an overall maximum depth to the house above the lower ground /basement level and
ground floor level of 21.9m. A number of the rooms at the rear would have French doors
and juliette balconies.

The roof would comprise a crown roof with side chimney, and have a maximum height of
10.2m (excluding the chimney) and an eaves height of 5.87m as measured on the front
elevation. The roof would incorporate two small gabled dormers on the front and rear
elevations with a recessed balcony area within the rear gable at roof level.

On the lower ground/ basement floor level at the rear, to the side of the gable adjoining No.
35a would be a single storey orangery type addition with a lantern light which would project
some 2.35m from the main rear elevation of the house (so as not to project beyond the
rear gable) and on the side adjoining No. 39 at this level would be a single storey addition
which would project 6.7m (3.6m beyond the rear gable). On the ground floor above the
lower ground/basement level extension would be a similar orangery type conservatory
structure with a lantern light which would align with the rear elevation of the gable and the
roof of the extension below would be used as a balcony area.

The front garden layout would retain the existing in and out access arrangements with a
semi-circular drive, with a spur accessing 10 parking spaces, 4 of which would be capable
of providing disabled space. Cycle and bin stores would be provided adjacent to the
boundary with No. 35A, adjacent to its detached garage, set back some 16m from the road
frontage. The cycle store would be 3.0m square, with a pyramidal roof, 2.4m high to eaves
and 3.75m high to the apex. The bin store would be 3.1m square and of timber
construction with a flat pergola roof, some 2.4m high. Both structures would be screened
on three sides by landscaping. The garden shed would be 7.5m by 4.0m sited along the

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 134



rear boundary of the rear garden and be of timber construction, 2.25m high to eaves and
3.0m high to the ridge and used for the storage of garden furniture.

The basement/lower ground floor at the rear would involve the installation of retaining walls
within the rear garden to align with the side elevations of the proposed house to maintain
existing ground levels at the sides of the rear garden.

As compared to the previously approved replacement house on the site (App. No.
24043/APP/2013/1738 refers), the main changes to the previously approved built form on
site is that although the siting, overall width, height and design of the flatted block is very
similar to the previously approved building, the depth of the main building has increased,
with the greatest change being on the northern side of the building, increasing from 12.4m
to 17.5m, so that whilst the block maintains an almost identical rear building line and built
form, it does project further forward on site. The basement would also project forward of
the front elevation. The width of the main front elevation has been compressed, with a
recessed side element adjoining No. 35A. A triple garage to be sited in the front garden has
been omitted, with small cycle and bin store enclosures to be provided, together with a
shed along the rear boundary of the rear garden.

The application is supported by the following documents:-
Design and Access Statement:

This provides the background to the statement, describes the site, its planning history and
the policy background. A planning justification for the scheme is provided and aspects of
the proposal assessed. The statement concludes that the scheme fully complies with
planning policy, the residential redevelopment of the site has already been approved and as
the scheme would not result in over 10% of dwellings in the road being converted to flats
and the design of the scheme reflects a large detached house, the character of the road
will not be maintained.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History

The most relevant application to the current proposal for the site's flatted re-development is
the application for a replacement house (App. No. 24043/APP/2013/1738 refers) on this
site, as the approved built form is very similar to the current proposals, with the main
difference being the currently proposed block projects further forward on site.

Prior to this, there have been a number of applications submitted for residential extensions
to the existing house.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.H1 (2012) Housing Growth
PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 135



PT1.EM1 (2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation
PT1.EM6 (2012) Flood Risk Management

PT1.EM8 (2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

)

PT1.CI1 (2012) Community Infrastructure Provision

Part 2 Policies:

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

NPPF10 NPPF - Meeting challenge of climate change flooding costal
LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments
LPP 3.8 (2015) Housing Choice

LPP 5.2 (2015) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

LPP 5.3 (2015) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 5.7 (2015) Renewable energy

LPP 5.12 (2015) Flood risk management

LPP 5.13 (2015) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.14 (2015) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure
LPP 5.15 (2015) Water use and supplies

LPP 5.17 (2015) Waste capacity

LPP 6.3 (2015) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
LPP 6.5 (2015) Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport infrastructure
LPP 6.9 (2015) Cycling

LPP6.10  (2015) Walking
LPP6.13  (2015) Parking

LPP 7.1 (2015) Lifetime Neighbourhoods

LPP 7.2 (2015) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.3 (2015) Designing out crime

LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character

LPP 7.6 (2015) Architecture

LPP 7.14 (2015) Improving air quality

LPP 7.15 (2015) Reducing noise and and managing noise, improving and enhancing the

acoustic environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes.
LPP 7.21 (2015) Trees and woodland
OoL5 Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 136



BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

H3 Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

H4 Mix of housing units

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway

improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities
AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

SPG-CS Community Safety by Design, Supplementary Planning Guidance, adopted July
2004

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- 30th October 2015

6. Consultations
External Consultees

15 neighbouring properties have been consulted, a notice was displayed on site on 8/10/15 with a
closing date of 30/10/15 and the Ickenham Residents' Association (2 groups) and The Residents'
Association of The Drive have been consulted. 11 individual response have been received, raising
numerous objections to the scheme which can be summarized as follows:-

Character of the Area

(i) The Drive is an exclusive quiet private beautiful residential road and the proposed flatted re-
development would be out-of-character with the existing family dwellings in the road and the
surrounding neighbourhood, spoiling ambience of the road. The road, unlike Ducks Hill Road, should

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 137



be retained for single dwellings and Council's 10% flatted development rule of thumb should not
apply to a private drive, particularly given uniqueness of The Drive,

(i) Most of properties in The Drive were built in 1930s and have a pleasant Arts & Craft design.
Object to loss of another character house in a road where the houses over the last ten years are
becoming monstrosities, with a large increased 'bulk’ that has no regard for the original design,

(iif) Footprint of the new property is set much further back than current house, turning front garden
into a car park,

(iv) Proposal represents over-development, with increase in number of households at one address.
Together with other developments at old Blockbuster premises and at no. 51, density of people
would result in overcrowding which is already causing a disruption,

Amenity

(v) Proposal will result in loss of light,

(vi) Additional households will result in reduced privacy for neighbouring properties,

(vii) Increase in noise and traffic especially for adjoining occupiers with so many residents in one
area will be unbearable. Our right to peaceful living will be infringed upon on this quiet road,

(viii) The 6 flats will not have enough recreation space,

Traffic

(ix) Proposal will lead to higher traffic and parking along The Drive as parking for 6 flats of this value
is inadequate. The Drive is narrow with no pavement so more people will walk in road which is
already used as a rat run, detrimental to safety, particularly school children and hinder emergency
vehicles,

(x) Proposal does not allow for ease of access or egress to proposed development or the property
opposite as road is narrow and there are no parking restrictions preventing parking,

Other

(xi) Council's 10% rule has already been exceeded,

(xii) The proposed development will adversely effect property values along The Drive.
(xiii) Proposal would establish a precedence,

(xiv) Council should listed to residents and residents' associations and reject proposal

RESIDENTS' ASSOCIATION OF THE DRIVE:
The Association objects to proposal on following grounds:-

- Will result in diminution of character and appearance of this unique road,

- Result in the loss of the current property which is of unique design and appearance and worthy of
retention,

- Proposal will adversely impact on the capacity of the road junctions from The Drive (congestion
problems have been recognized by the Council in a recent briefing note),

- Additional traffic generated will also have implications for the narrow shared road space with
pedestrians,

- Despite objection, permission granted to convert no. 51 to flats and given its close proximity, this
makes the current proposal unacceptable in terms of policy and effect on residential amenity, with
on-going construction traffic associated with no. 51 parked on the road and time should be given to
assess impact of this development on amenity,

- Proposal would result in further congestion with construction traffic parked on the road,

- Proposal will result in the loss of a large family home,

- Proposal will result in inadequate amenity space and parking when compared to other properties in
the road,

- Proposal will not maintain the quality or diversity of the Borough's housing stock,

- Proposed building, due to its siting, bulk and proximity to other houses, will result in a significant
loss of residential amenity and privacy to nearby houses,

- Size and scale of the new build, when taken in close proximity to no. 51 will harm the character of

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 138



the area and will be over-dominant to adjoining properties, particularly the adjoining bungalow and
will impinge on the private amenity space of other residents,

- Communal use of the front and rear gardens will impinge on the private and residential amenity of
immediate neighbours,

- Cumulative impact of further development of this nature in close proximity to each other is a
material consideration and should be given substantial weight.

ICKENHAM RESIDENTS' ASSOCIATION:

This is another flatted re-development scheme for 6 flats which happens more and more frequently,
following no. 51 had recently received approval for 5 flats and Harefield Place is proposing 25
apartments (12571/APP/2015/3549).

Building Control needs to be maintained over proposed basement developments for safety and
security of adjoining properties.

We are completely in hands of planning department in terms of monitoring the ration of flatted
development in a private road.

A local ward Councillor has requested that the application is considered at committee for the
following reason:-

I am concerned that the conversion of the property into 6 flats may cause parking problems to a
private road which does not have the benefit of the Council being able to put in place parking controls
and street lighting. The road has grass verges which go towards enhancing the street landscaping
and parking especially on these verges to provide adequate road space will detract from the layout of
these verges. Who will take responsibility for their respective maintenance and upkeep of these
verges as the property would move away from being in single ownership. In addition, this is a road
having some degree of character regarding the street scene and the hard landscaping and car
parking will in my opinion have a detrimental affect on the street scene. Also the amenity space that
would need to be provided for multiple use can cause noise and disturbance to adjacent properties
being detrimental to the quality of their living environment.

May | request via this email that my concerns as mentioned above be addressed in the report.

HISTORIC ENGLAND (ARCHAEOLOGY):

Although this application lies within the extensive Colne Valley Archaeological Priority Zone, itis not a
major development nor does it lie close to significant recorded archaeology or in a topographical
location which is likely to have especially well preserved remains.

The proposal is unlikely to have a significant effect on heritage assets of archaeological interest and
therefore no further assessment or conditions are necessary.

Internal Consultees

HIGHWAY ENGINEER:
The site has two existing crossovers, with separate INOUT movements, which will be retained. A
segregated access door is used by pedestrians.

The PTAL output for 2011 (Base year) for this site is 1b, which is described as very poor. Three bus
routes were included when calculating the PTAL score. Those routes are U10;U9;U1, with the bus
stop on Swakeleys Road/Warren Road.

Car parking provision
The London Borough of Hillingdon (LBH) parking standards for the proposed residential flats are:
each flat to provide 1.5 car parking spaces. To comply with these standards a proposal with 6

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 139



residential units should provide 9 car parking spaces. The proposed parking layout is indicated on
drawing ref: 2958-03 showing 10 car parking spaces.

Although the PTAL score is described as very poor in this area, it is considered that car parking
provision is sufficient and is accommodated within the site itself.

To conclude, occupiers are likely to rely on a car as a mode of transport. It is accepted that the
changes from the existing to the proposed are minor in terms of trip generation and impact that
could potentially cause harm.

The highways recommendations are: increase the cycle parking provision for this development to
encourage cycling as a mode of transport, include provide details about the cycle stands. The
approved cycle parking spaces to be retained, thereafter.

Refuse/ recycling
A separate enclosed area is shown for refuse and recycling bins.

Recommendations

Subject to the Council's landscaping condition which should specify 10 car parking spaces and 8
cycle storage spaces are provided and a parking allocation scheme which ensures that the parking
remains allocated for the use of the approved units and remains under this allocation for the life of
the development, this application is recommended for approval on highways grounds.

TREES AND LANDSCAPING OFFICER:
There are no significant trees within the property boundaries but there are protected trees to the
south, the roots of these trees could be affected by construction related activities.

Subject to conditions requiring tree protection, a landscaping scheme and tree retention, the
scheme is acceptable.

WATER AND FLOOD MANAGEMENT OFFICER:
The flood team made comments on the previous application 24043/APP/2013/1738 and they are still
relevant.

ACCESS OFFICER:
It is stated within the Design & Access Statement the proposal is to comply with the requirements of
Lifetime Home Standards and the London Plan Policy.

It is proposed level access is provided to the site at ground floor level from the parking area and
residential entrance with lift access provided within the development providing access to all the
floors.

In assessing this application, reference has been made to London Plan, Policy 3.8 (Housing Choice)
and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document "Accessible Hillingdon" adopted May 2013.
Compliance with all 16 Lifetime Home standards (as relevant) should be shown on plan.

The following access observations are provided:

1. Level access should be achieved. Entry to the proposed dwelling appears to be stepped, which
would be contrary to the above policy requirement. Should it not be possible, due to topographical
constraints, to achieve level access, it would be preferable to gently slope (maximum gradient 1:21)
the pathway leading to the ground floor entrance door.

2. Details of level access to and into the proposed dwelling should be submitted. A fall of 1:60 in the

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 140



areas local to the principal entrance and rear entrance should be incorporated to prevent rain and
surface water ingress. In addition to a levels plan showing internal and external levels, a section
drawing of the level access threshold substructure, and water bar to be installed, including any
necessary drainage, should be submitted.

3. The scheme does not include provision of a downstairs WC compliant with the Lifetime Home
requirements. To this end, a minimum of 700 mm should be provided to one side of the toilet pan,
with 1100 mm in front to any obstruction opposite.

4. A minimum of one bathroom on the first floor should be designed in accordance with Lifetime
Home standards. At least 700mm should be provided to one side of the WC, with 1100 mm provided
between the front edge of the toilet pan and a door or wall opposite.

5. To allow the entrance level WC and first floor bathroom to be used as a wet room in future, plans
should indicate floor gulley drainage.

6. The plans should indicate the location of a future 'through the ceiling' wheelchair lift.

Conclusion: acceptable, subject to a suitable planning conditions attached to any approval
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The NPPF (March 2012) states that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable
development (paragraph 14), but stresses that this does not change the statutory status of
the development plan in that planning decisions must be made in accordance with the
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise (paragraph 11). It also
stresses the need to boost significantly the supply of housing (paragraph 47).

The application site forms part of the 'developed area' as defined with the Hillingdon Local
Plan and the proposal is for the flatted redevelopment of an existing residential plot within
an established residential area. As such, there is no objection in principle to the
development, subject to normal development control criteria.

Specifically, Policy H3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) advises that the loss of residential accommodation will only be permitted
if it is replaced within the boundary of the site and ideally, an increase in the residential
accommodation will be sought if not contrary to other policies in the plan. Policies BE13
and BE19 seek to safeguard the layout and appearance of the street scene and the
amenity and the character of residential areas respectively.

The Council's HDAS Supplementary Planning Document 'Residential Layouts' July 2006 at
paragraph 3.3 generally acknowledges that large plots currently used for single dwellings,
through their careful and sensitive design, can be successfully redeveloped to provide flats.
The paragraph goes on to add a note of caution in that it advises:-

"The redevelopment of large numbers of sites in close proximity to each other is unlikely to
be acceptable including large numbers of redevelopments on any one street. The
redevelopment of more than 10% of properties on a residential street is unlikely to be
acceptable, including the houses which have been converted into flats or other forms of
housing. On residential streets longer than 1km the proposed redevelopment site should
be taken as the midpoint of a 1km length of road to be assessed.'

Taking a 1km length of The Drive with No. 37 being the midpoint, this would total some 75

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 141



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

properties with only 2 (No. 51 and Harefield Place) having been granted permission for
flatted conversion/ redevelopment. Together with this scheme, if all these schemes were
implemented, this would account for 4% of the total number of properties. Even with
Harefield Place, a case could be made that this should not be considered as it does not
have a road frontage, being set well back from the road, behind a densely wooded frontage
and therefore does not significantly influence its character. The proposal would not breach
the Councils 10% rule.

In terms of the loss of the existing building, it has not been statutorily or locally listed as
being of historical or architectural significance and the acceptability of its demolition has
already been established with the granting of the permission for its replacement (App. No.
24043/APP/2013/1738 refers). The issue of 'garden grabbing' does also not arise as
although the new block would be sited further back on its plot into the rear garden, the area
at the front of the house would be freed up so that there would be no significant loss as
compare to the current situation. Again, the acceptance of this principle has largely been
established with the granting of the previous permission.

Density of the proposed development

The Mayor's density guidance is of only limited value when considering schemes with less
than 10 units. Nevertheless, this scheme would have unit and habitable room densities per
hectare of 19 u/ha and 88 hr/ha respectively, which compares to the London Plan guidance
of 35-55 u/ha and 150-200hr/ha for units of this size on a suburban site with a low PTAL
score of 1b. However, it is considered that the low density of development would not be
sufficient justification to refuse the application, having regard to the low density of
surrounding residential development and the fact that this site represents an urban fringe
location, which adjoins the Green Belt.

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The only heritage asset that this development would possibly affect is the Colne Valley
Archaeological Priority Area within which the site is situated.

GLAAS advise that this is not a major development and the site is not close to significant
recorded archaeology or in a topographical location which is likely to have well preserved
remains so that the proposal is unlikely to have a significant effect on heritage assets of
archaeological interest and therefore no further assessment or conditions are necessary.
Airport safeguarding

There are no airport safeguarding issues raised by this application.
Impact on the green belt

Although the scale and height of the building on site would be increased and it would be
sited further back on its plot, the flatted block at its nearest point would still maintain a
separation distance of over 45m to the rear Green Belt boundary so that there would be
minimal impact upon its openness, particularly as this boundary has good planting, which
would be enhanced by an appropriate landscaping scheme, which would be controlled by
condition. For similar reasons, the proposed shed on this boundary, given its modest
domestic size and timber construction, would not have any significant wider impacts upon
the openness of the Green Belt.

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

As previously advised on the replacement house application, there would be no objection to
siting the building further back on its plot in terms of the street scene as this would replicate
the similar siting of the immediately adjoining properties.

The block would maintain undeveloped gaps of 2.0 to 3.1m and 2.4 to 2.75m to the side

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 142



boundaries adjoining Nos. 35A and 39 respectively, which would satisfy Policy BE22 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan - Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and is comparable
to the set back distances of surrounding properties.

In terms of the street scene, although the main front elevation of the building has been
brought forward slightly, being still set back some 45m from the road, this would have
minimal impact upon the street scene, particularly as there is no defined building line along
this part of The Drive, with the majority of properties set much further forward on their plots,
including the existing house on this site.

The main design of the front elevation of the building was previously approved as part of the
replacement house application so that the building would maintain the built character of a
single family house. Although the main front elevation of the block has been narrowed with
a recessed element added, the front facade would remain well proportioned with a fairly
traditional appearance. The spacing of the projecting gables and bay windows would assist
with the breaking up of the frontage of the property. Furthermore, crown roofs and front
dormer windows are characteristic on this part of The Drive.

The rear elevation of the property, as previously advised to committee, does appear
somewhat unwieldy, mainly due to its three storey height and the level of fenestration.
However, part of the lower ground/basement level would be below the adjoining ground
level so that it would not appear unduly conspicuous. The Council's Conservation/Urban
Design Officer considered that the previous scheme was acceptable on design grounds.

Although a large parking area would be provided in the front garden area, this would be set
back from the road with extensive landscaping in front. Furthermore, extensive
hardstanding areas in front gardens are common features on The Drive.

The proposal therefore accords with Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan -
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).
7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) seek to protect the amenities of surrounding residential
properties from new development in relation to loss of sunlight, dominance and loss of
privacy respectively. The Council's Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential
Layouts provides further clarification in that it advises that buildings of two or more storeys
should maintain at least a 15m separation distance from adjoining properties to avoid
appearing overdominant and a 21m distance between facing habitable room windows and
private amenity space (considered to be a 3m deep 'patio’ area adjoining the rear elevation
of a property) should be maintained to safeguard privacy.

The only residential properties that would potentially be materially affected by the built form
of the proposed scheme are the two adjoining properties. The current proposal does not
materially alter its impacts on the sides and at the rear of these properties as this scheme
only adds additional built form at the front of the previously approved replacement house.

In terms of the previous application for the replacement house, the previous report advised
that in terms of the adjoining bungalow at No. 35A:-

'this property is sited on lower ground and extends along a 35m depth of the side boundary.
The front elevation of the proposed house would be sited approximately 4m forward of its
front elevation. The nearest windows to the shared side boundary in the front elevation of

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 143



the adjoining property serve a living room. The proposed siting of the new house would
allow for a 45 degree line of sight to be maintained from this window. On the side elevation
of No. 35a are a number of windows. The forwardmost side window facing the application
site serves a wc, with the next openings being a door and window serving the laundry area.
These are all obscure glazed and would have the main bulk of the new house immediately
adjacent. The next openings along are two clear glazed windows which are the only
external windows serving a dining room. These windows would be sited to the rear of the
main rear elevation of the proposed house. The outlook from this habitable room is
currently restricted, being within 1m of a 1.8m high boundary fence. It is considered that the
outlook from this habitable room would not be made significantly worse to justify a refusal
of permission, particularly as this room benefits from having internal glazed french doors
and windows which open up the room into the rest of the open plan bungalow. The next
window along is clear glazed and serves a gymnasium area and the main bulk of the new
house would have less of an impact upon the outlook from this room. This room also has a
projecting skylight above. Next is a porthole window and two other windows, all of which
are obscure glazed which serve a bathroom.

As regards privacy, the proposed house does not contain any main habitable room
windows in its side elevation facing No. 35A. A condition is recommended to ensure the
rearmost ground floor side window serving a drawing room and a first floor en-suite
window would be obscure glazed and non-opening. A condition is also required to ensure
that the roof above the orangery type conservatory on this boundary is not used as a roof
garden/amenity space. The first floor balcony area would also be entirely enclosed by the
gable and would not permit any greater overlooking of adjoining properties than a traditional
window.

As regards the impact upon No. 39, this property towards the rear is sited on slightly higher
ground as compared to the application property. The side elevation of the proposed new
house would not contain any side windows above ground floor level and be set slightly
behind the front elevation of No. 39 with the main rear elevation of the house aligning with
that of No. 39. The neighbouring property only contains non-habitable room windows above
ground floor level in its side elevation which are obscure glazed and secondary windows at
ground floor which face the boundary fence. As the ground floor orangery type
conservatory on this boundary would only project some 3.1m from the main rear elevation
of the house and the basement/lower ground floor pool enclosure which although it would
project further into the rear garden, would only have a height of some 1.25m above existing
ground levels, these elements of the proposal would not breach a 45 degree angle of sight
from the nearest rear facing windows on the neighbouring property. A condition would
ensure that the roof area of the ground floor orangery type conservatory would not be used
as a roof garden/amenity area.’

In terms of the additional impacts of the current proposal, in terms of No. 35A, the
recessed side element would result in the nearest part of the flatted block projecting further
forward of the front elevation of No. 35A by some 4.9m, which would be separated from the
side elevation of No. 35A by some 4.3m. Furthermore, the 45 degree line of sight taken
from the nearest front window in No. 35A which serves the living room would not be
breached.

In terms of No. 39, the flatted block would project beyond its front elevation by some 2.8m,
but at this point, the properties would be separated by a distance of some 6.8m.

The only change in terms of the fenestration is that 4 rooflights would be added on each

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 144



side elevation facing Nos. 35A and No.39 and 3 ground floor windows facing No. 39 have
now been omitted. The rooflights, together with the side windows facing No. 35A would be
conditioned to be non-opening and obscure glazed (below a 1.8m height of finished floor
level).

As regards loss of sunlight, it is only No. 39 being to the north that would be overshadowed,
but given the relationship between this and the proposed block, it is only its side elevation
which would mainly be affected, but this does not contain any main habitable room
windows. As such, the impact was considered to be acceptable and the additional built
form projecting forward of the house now proposed would not result in any significant
impact.

In terms of the new cycle and bin stores in the front garden, the nearest part of the
structure would be sited more than 18m from the front elevation of No. 35A, a greater
distance than its own garage/ outbuilding which is directly in front of the living room
window. The new shed in the rear garden would also be sited at the bottom of the rear
garden, far removed from adjoining properties.

The proposal is therefore considered to comply with Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and relevant
design guidance.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Internal Layout

The proposed two-bedroomed, four person flats would have internal floor areas ranging
from 153sgm in Flat 5 to 371sgm in Flat 1 and the three bedroom, 6 person flat in the roof
space would have an overall floor area of 296sqm. The units would therefore comfortably
satisfy the minimum floor space standards of the national technical standards which came
into force on 1/10/15 of 70sgm for a 2 bedroom, 4 person flat and 95sgm for a three
bedroom, 6 person flat. Furthermore, the flats would all have a reasonable standard of
outlook and natural light to their habitable rooms. Although Flat 1 at basement/ lower
ground floor level would have a rear facing single aspect, the habitable rooms are all sited
at the rear, where they would benefit from having wide windowed frontages facing onto the
rear garden. Some of the habitable rooms in the other units are also deep, such as the
main lounge/ dining/ kitchen room in Flat 5, but again, this has been arranged so the more
usable areas are close to the wide rear frontage and its windows. The outlook and natural
light from to some of the habitable rooms in the roof space unit (Flat 6) would also be
restricted, but all the habitable rooms would be served by at least one dormer window, with
the only exception being one of the bedrooms that would have two rooflight windows.
Outlook and light levels would be also be enhanced to the unit by secondary rooflights and
sun vents in the crown roof.

The proposed lantern lights to the orangery type structures at the rear would provide
potential for a small degree of overlooking to part of the rooms they would serve from the
windows of neighbouring flats above and also could cause possible disturbance to the
units above from light spillage. A condition has been added requiring details of the lantern
lights to be submitted so that these amenity concerns can be mitigated.

The proposed site layout would incorporate good depth of planting areas at the front of the
house to ensure that the privacy of the ground floor units is safeguarded and at the rear,
stone and grass patio areas are shown, enclosed by a 1m high hedge from the rest of the
amenity area. Although not specified on the plan, it is assumed that this patio area would

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 145



be for the private use of Flat 1 which would safeguard the ground floor habitable rooms
from overlooking from the shared amenity space. This has been conditioned as part of the
landscaping scheme.

External Amenity Space

The proposed rear garden would provide some 1,236sqm of shared amenity space which
would easily satisfy the 155sgm of shared amenity space required by Council standards.
7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The proposal would utilize the existing 'in' and 'out' vehicle access arrangements and a
separate pedestrian access for the existing house. The Council's Highway Engineer raises
no objections to this and advises that any additional traffic generation associated with the
use of the site as 6 flats as compared to a single dwellinghouse would not be significant
given existing traffic volumes on this and surrounding roads.

The Highway Engineer goes on to advise that the London Borough of Hillingdon (LBH)
parking standards for the proposed residential flats are for each flat to provide 1.5 car
parking spaces. To comply with these standards a proposal for 6 residential units should
provide a total of 9 car parking spaces, whereas the proposed parking layout is for 10 car
parking spaces. The engineer considers that as the PTAL score is described as very poor
in this area and occupiers are likely to rely on the car as a mode of transport, no objections
are raised to the excess provision and it is considered that car parking provision is
sufficient, subject to an allocation scheme which has been conditioned.

The London Plan (March 2015) also encourages the uptake of electric vehicles and
requires that 20% of the parking spaces serving new residential development should
provide charging points, with a further 20% passive provision. This has been conditioned
as part of the landscaping scheme.

The Highway Engineer does advise that there should be an increase in the cycle parking
provision for this development to encourage cycling as a mode of transport. In terms of
cycle parking, the London Plan (March 2015) advises that 2 'long stay' spaces should be
provided for all dwellings with 2 bedrooms or more, together with 1 'short stay' space per
40 units, giving a total requirement of 13 spaces. The submitted plan shows the provision
of a cycle store in the front garden, but only 8 indicative spaces are shown so that
additional provision would be needed. This has been conditioned as part of the landscaping
scheme.

In terms of waste/ recycling storage, provision for bin storage has been made within a
screened enclosure within the front garden. However, this may need to be emptied and
refuse bags moved closer to the road on collection days.

7.11 Urban design, access and security

The design issues are addressed within the relevant section of this report.
Issues of access are addressed within the Disabled Access section of this report.

In relation to security, for the fabric of the building this will now be dealt with under Part Q of
the Building regulations.The application would maintain secure boundary treatments with
neighbouring properties and it is not considered that there are any security concerns
intrinsic to the design.

7.12 Disabled access

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 146



London Plan Policy 3.8 requires all new housing to be built to Lifetime Homes Standards.
The Council's SPD HDAS: Accessible Hillingdon also requires all new housing to be built to
Lifetime Homes Standards. The Council's Access Officer has assessed the application
and advises that the proposal is acceptable from an accessibility standpoint, subject to a
suitable planning condition to secure level access to and into the proposed dwellings.
However, Lifetime Homes standards have now been abolished and the requirement now is
to meet Part M2 of the Building Regulations.
7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable, given the scale of development.
7.14 Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

There are no existing trees that would be affected on the site, although the Council's Trees
and Landscaping Officer advises that off-site trees to the south of the site could be affected
by construction related activity.

The proposal involves a flatted block sited further back on its plot which would allow ample
space for an appropriate landscaping scheme in the front garden to enhance the street
scene.

The Council's Tree and Landscaping Officer recommends that the scheme is acceptable
in terms of its tree impacts and landscaping, subject to condition to require the submission
of details regarding tree protection, a landscaping scheme and tree retention.

The site has negligible importance for ecology.
7.15 Sustainable waste management

Policy 5.17 of the London Plan requires that all new development provide adequate facilities
for the storage of waste and recycling.

This scheme provides a bin/ recycling waste store in the front garden. It is sited discretely
in the front garden, set back from the road by some 32m so it is likely to require refuse
being moved to the edge of the road on collection days if the refuse vehicle does not enter
the site. This will be a matter for the management company of the flats.

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Since the abolition of the Code for Sustainable Homes, energy efficiency would now be
covered by the Building Regulations.
717 Flooding or Drainage Issues

On the previous application, the Council's Flood and Water Management Officer advised
that the site is in an area that is deemed to have a low probability of groundwater flooding.
However, any basement development has inherent implications for and from sub surface
flooding problems and ground conditions.

With regards to planning, the Council needs to consider the probability of the flooding
impact alongside the ability for a basement to be constructed in a manner that would
withstand groundwater flooding.

The Council accepts that it is entirely reasonable to believe there is a solution for this
development given the relatively low probability of groundwater flooding. However, there is
still a need to ensure that future occupiers of the dwelling are not exposed to a poorly
designed development that does not adequately consider the flood risk. The officer
recommended conditions requiring a ground investigation and sustainable urban drainage
techniques to be employed. These conditions form part of the officer's recommendation.

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 147



7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

It is considered that the layout of the proposed development, which would benefit from
being on a large plot with large front and rear gardens being retained, would not result in
such an increase in activity, noise, vibration and/or general disturbance so as to result in
being detrimental to the amenities of surrounding properties. It would therefore comply with
Policies OE1 and OE3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

The scheme is not considered to be of a scale which would result in any significant
impacts on local air quality.
7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

As regards the individual responses received, point (i), this issue has mainly been dealt
with in the officer's report. The fact that this is a private road is not a significant material
consideration in terms of whether planning policies and guidance should apply. Points (ii) to
(ix) have been dealt with in the officer's report. As regards point (x), this proposal does not
alter the existing access arrangements to the site and therefore no objections can be
raised. In terms of point (xi), as advised in the report, this is not correct. Furthermore, the
impact of development on property values is not a material planning consideration (point
(xi)) and as regards points (xiii) and (xiv) all applications have to be considered on their
individual merits, having regard to the development plan.

The comments raising material planning objections received from the Ickenham Residents'
Association and the Residents' Association of The Drive have also been dealt with in the
officer's report.

7.20 Planning Obligations

The scale and nature of the development does not give rise to a requirement for a S106
contribution.

The scheme is Mayoral and Council CiL liable.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

There are no enforcement issues raised by this proposal or the site.
7.22 Other Issues

Soil Testing

A condition is recommended to ensure that any site derived soils or imported soil to the site
is clean and suitable for residential use.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 148



applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

This scheme is very similar to a previous permission for a replacement house on this site.
Although this scheme results in additional bulk at the front of the property, this does not
result in harm to the street scene nor does it adversely impacts upon neighbouring
properties. The Drive has not breached the Council's 10% guidance figure for flatted
redevelopment of sites in a road and it is considered that the proposed parking is
acceptable.

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 149



The scheme would make a valuable contribution towards providing much needed additional
housing that satisfies all relevant standards.

The proposal is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

NPPF (March 2012)

London Plan (March 2015)

Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012)
HDAS: Residential Layouts

HDAS: Accessible Hillingdon

Contact Officer: Richard Phillips Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 150



Course

le Golf Course
Notes: Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
For identification purposes only. ICkenham Planning Section
This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the . . . . . 4
Copyright. Designs and Paterts Planning Application Ref: Scale:
Act 1988 (the Act). 24043/APP/2015/3509 1:1,250
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date:
© Crown copyright and database | NT 7 TN A N
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey North Page 151 March 2016 TYILLINGDON
100019283 CUNDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 152



Agenda ltem 14

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted

Page 153



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 160



Agenda ltem 15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted

Page 161



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 168



Agenda Annex

Plans for
North Applications
Planning Committee

Thursday 3rd March
2016

THILLINGDON

OOOOOO

www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 81 FIELD END ROAD EASTCOTE PINNER

Development: Erection of three storey, detached building to contain doctors surgery and
pharmacy at ground floor level with associated parking and 6 x 2-bed and 3 x
1-bed self contained flats over the three floors with associated parking in
basement and installation of vehicular crossover to front

LBH Ref Nos: 363/APP/2015/3827

Date Plans Received: 14/10/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 14/10/0015
Date Application Valid: 28/10/2015

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 170



............ hould request
o previde

wm Wen . (
Tram drawings, all dimensis

dimensions wh
ol satimate dimensians
sheaked am

ere nene

zite

Map Licensed by Find (www findmaps.co.uk).
Find's OS Partner licence Number is 100047514

avod oN3 0134

Site Location Plan
1:1250

Page 171

revislon changes

date

date of Issue

October 2015

scale

1:1250

paper sire

A4

81 Field End Road
Site Location Plan

area

tob number |drawing numbesy

239 239 : 00

revision




‘:_:_

FEFE ST S ESE RS RSN NN RN EDEENN RN RN

_ i
: §
1010

TA © 6EC oquinu 199Ys
M3IA |BLIDY :abew]

(Ajuo aniedIpul ‘pasodoud) suonesijensia ;JuaWwnloq m m — m
pedy pu3i plei4 18 :303fo.d

adnjosjiyade ; jusiluclInuS : SSOo4 Madpue




LA DN AN el

9N - 6EC “equinu Jeaus 24dN}oa3}ijyode | jJuslulUuodIAUuS : SSOJ4 Madpue
uopunl wouy yoeosdde — peoy Uo.D) aueaq :obewy

(Ajuo aaedipul ‘pasodoud) suonesijensip ;Juswnooqg m m — m
peoy pu3 pled 18 :3o0load




LN

o
e S

Sl

LA+ BEC e i 24njo3}iyode  JUS2LUUoAIAUD © SSO0d Madpue
MB3IA RARSPIIQ — PROY YOID aueaq pbewy -

(Ajuo aanedipur ‘pasodoud) suonesiensip :JuaWINd0Q m m — m
:3o9foid

peoy pu3 pled 18



SA * 6EC HEguanEARas aidnjoallydde : JUSWUoIIAUS : SSO4 Malpue
ssodde yied Jed — peoy YoID) aueaq :obewy

(Ajuo aAnedIpul ‘pasodoid) suoijesijensia uawndog m m - m
peoy pu3 pieid 18 1309load




Visualisations (proposed, indicative only)

81 Field End Road

whed
5
EE
._,a
-]
oo

SIESTS

andrew ross

Deane Croft Road — view from across the street

239 :v8

Sheet number

Image

architecture

=

t

environmen

"




_a S OREE Sy
|

A
)
/

P "

m.> : QMN ul-UH—E—J: me-.—m L 1199] B2 : JUUWUOIIAUL : SSOd Mm2dpu
MBIIA 2A3SPIIQ — peoY pul plaid :abewr ’ ;
(Ajuo 2ARRDIPUI ‘pasodoid) SUOReSIeNSIA ;JuaWIND0Qg m —
peoy pu3l pjeld 18 :399fo4d




A * 6EC

yoeoidde |eijuspisal — peoy puj pi4
(Ajuo aaneoipul ‘pasodold) suoiesiensia
peoy pu3l plei4 18

2quinu 1a3ys
:obewg
1uawnlog
:32alo.ad

JUSWIUOAIAUS § SSO4 Malpue

e



A - 6EC

20ULRIIUD [BIUDPISSL — pRoY pul piaid
(Ajuo aaeaipul ‘pasodoad) suoiiesiensin
pecy pud pl=eid 18

:Jaquinu J99ys
:obewt
uawndog
:309fo4d




1 6ET 662 |8 3 &
iadunu Buiwein| iagwes gel| @ | O
. seary | §
eaJe pue sweibelp Jnoke) | =
peoy pu3 pjaid 18
€| SIN| 5107 equandes
o] ) — R
STOTLE —— vipg 0|0
simp aaBurgs  woiwiass
b
K4
g
| €
|7
oL g
| g
L
=1
1 m
'8
- 10z 04
[bL
zk

jooy

Isiid

puodas

puno.n

puno.in Jom

o
(c'e]
—
()
(@)
&




. e
| 11 :6ET BET m.. = w
PrILr T irqune Buimeop| ssquan qof| B | O
pasodold | §
esue uelg Jnoke ays | =
pEOY pu3 pEid 18
£Y | 00T1 510z 35nbny
azype awawdl @ mywan amur) jo aiep
STOT LT | wapsmmmons vy sy v 0lo
mywp| Enluwys OIS
STITvL lﬂtfiilx m
b
= z
S
13 €
= ¥
=01 g
= g
- L
Gl
. o1
r 6
= 1020
= L}
= Zl




|2 {=
g 10 : 652 6z |8 |3 o
aspzinas isgwny Bwineip)| isamas goi| @ | O |
pasodoid %
eaue Ueld [BAa Jusiaseg | =
peoy pul piRld 18
€| 0011 | SI0Z equaidas .@
suzaagisle mmn LRSEN T8omuTe .
(&) i - ommmmremesmeeme | V|00
P safuwya]  woiRiass
SUEUVT | o s s o | o
op safumga.  woinpass
b “ .
4
g o
|
£ o
5 a
u
=104 §
9
L
Sl
g
6 == =
=102/ 01 ~
L
ick

Page 182




S —
v 70 : 652 6z (g |2l a

isuuni Guimers aguwns a0l @ | O

pasodoid m
eaJe ugld 100l punoig | =
peoy pu3p@d 18| | |
€| 00T | S10Z Rquadag
srorze T ¥ip 00
rl LT e

13
4

G
£
i
= 0L §
g
L

1
g
6
- 0Z/0L
(31
2k

Page 183




4 b
€0 6EZ 662 |0 | = tn =
o
_____________ P o Yy
pasodoid | § ®
eaJe Ueld JOo 354 | & P
peoypuap@d I8 | | | 7
€Y | 0OTT | SEOZ ;Rquendes z

Leneantadle.  me LTS A

olo

LY E— ) MR

3

[
g

€

¥

- 0L S

9

L
S

g

-

8

- 0201

LL

=
\ ® =
R e
ck

Page 184




| || =22
W ¥0 ¢ 6ET 6T |§ 3 @
........ ingiena Tuinsip| ivgmae gatl D | €3
pasodod .m.
eaJe Ueld 004 puodss | =
peodpuappEH IRl | |
€Y 00UT| §10Z equandas |
| egeoandad|®.  mpman L il LM | —1
sTorz | Vg 00
saep| wsBumya|  uoinass)

St

- 0Z|01

Page 185




area

datn of lnaue acale @ |papes wiza
September 2015 | 1:100 | A3
81 Field End Road

« | Roof Level Plai

2| Proposed
b sember :ﬂr«lh’v‘ﬂ number
39 239

T ;ue_as
& 2 g ) o 0obih
o = =] @ o ~ o T - ] o - =} 051

Page 186 % /




T T T T T T T 1 ; _ 1 124 308
..... [ o o 5 o | | emu

)
SR JOIERAS I
P S1a)aG o | DOEE | SH0C squdes |
POOH PO P 18 | v seansis  eannd

Zl 11 ai B g 4 2] 5 ¥ £ Z 3 o 05l

0021
peoy Jol) aueaq SSOIOe U0IIeS

N~
[o0]

T oozt
co_um.au_mvmomv:mo_"_
a

o

00e-1
peoy puj pjal4 SSOIJE UOIRS

00z'1
uoIEAl|3 PROY 01D 2ueaq



South (Deane Croft Road) Elevation

1:100

SURGERY

Nrth West (Field End Road) Elevation

1:180

(o]
[e¢]

(A A

[
S

RS

(ATt

[T
(AR

(T
55

I
TR

81 Field End Road
Elevations

|

B [maner vize

1:100 | A3

F

area

South and Nerth West

o8 Swmber [ATRWIAY numbat

239

September 2015

239:06

12

1

15

1:50
1:100

Scale bar




West Elevation

1:100

PHARMALDCY

ion

st Elevat

area

® [saper size | sl-Fl-el-d Ena"R' '1'

1:100 | A3 Elevations
| West and East

[ate o1 in8
September 2015

Tiab mamber [Arowing numbar

239:07

239

£
o™ -
o

H -

: - |7
(=HE=N
- N
(s3] -
{=s] -

w0
P =
wl |4
0 2=
a| |4
[y} P
w
(3] -
= |3
D|D'

e

©

o
(=R ]
= Sle
B 28
<|=|d




6A : 6EZ RquInu }99ys
Aemyjjem paJanod pue souenua Asbing :abewy
(Ajuo anijeoipul ‘pasodold) suonesiensia :juawndoqg
peoy pug pleid 18 1399foad




va S102/60/ST v 0SIS - £00Td o
pay23uD aeg e on Bug ajeas
Sl bert ot0 o Asnung oiydesbodo
SR SHIANION AL B WHALINHLS | PY pu3 pleld 18
Q3LIWT m mm m i dnoto Ajuno) s
; ——" A5

pappy

swbey abpry el

sul| glax
biay ane3 S99k
|12A3] Jods
By =841
by ysng s
13A070) BaIABS fajoyue)y =
yied
aoeds Buiyied
ubis a1y4e.
eale 55819

EETTN

ysng

llem >aug
aInuany 193415
aur peoy

[ul| aneg

aul| abpry

aulq buiping

auj| 3oua4

CAIN

P
~ abuoq ysjeny -~ STETR

+

EIlTT o]

130

*S@IEUIPI00D pue |aaa Aeadns eaueupiQ 03 uanb sjuiod |1y

Adeigry
2307 3583

0G£S

880N
wrocuns o

+ +

M
S40321105
diysiauieq
Was aylL

T 4 + - ur'taoas

98'0N
wiey
pu3 piaid

83°09

Field End Road

+ + - e

e——

WIS LON 0T

PASY 180030 NI 1

Page 191




r tors should request dimensions whare nene
on previded : do not satimatle dimeansion s
awings. all dimensisns to he shesked sa xite

revisian changes date

date of Issue scale @ [paper sire

December 2015 1:1250 | A4

81 Field End Road
Urban Grain S0es

Local Area

lob number [drawing numbes revision

Page 192 29 |239:21

lamdrew roas ribe: B Kilawall way radiefl Berls wdl Thn
| andrewarna-sesign.cauk BTE4E TERISD

1




area

=
=
S
wm
N
™ i
E
o : g
m
ﬁ % .nW e
: O
0 3
N |2l &
= SmEl
8 15638
o0z
E @ c 5|t
g |L88) ¢
0 |83 o

Page 193




% i i
i g

7

v_‘_ma 105 Fw._.w\._/n_gmw,_.\m ".-Wn_—.—.__._-.._ﬂum@w—”_-m 24N} iIYJde © JUS2UIUOIIALS I SSO4 MIAPUE

(Ajuo aaieaipur ‘pasodosd) suonesijensia ;uaWINd0q m m — -
DEOM DU3 DIB TR 1103044 -




4 4
i s Bt
\\‘\ »
v War i
i ' Memorfal', )
s . -
e ey

Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

81 Field End Road

Eastcote
Pinner

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref:
363/APP/2015/3827

Scale:

1:1,250

Planning Committee:

North Page 195

Date:
March 2016

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 12A NORTHWOOD ROAD HAREFIELD

Development: Change of use from Use Class C3 (Dwelling House) to Use Class D1 (Non-
Residential Institutions) for use as a Dentist Clinic

LBH Ref Nos: 45363/APP/2015/3363

Date Plans Received: 07/09/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 04/02/2016

North Planning Committee - Thursday 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 196



Pavilion

This Plan includes the following Licensed Data: OS5 MasterMap Colour PDF
Location Plan by the Ordnance Survey National Geographic Database and Om 20m 40m G0m 80m 100m
incorporating surveyed revision available at the date of production.

Reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited without the prior permission of

Ordnance Survey. The representation of a road, track or path is no evidence of Scale: 1:1250, paper size: Ad

a right of way. The representation of features, as lines is no evidence of a

property boundary, @ Crown copyright and database rights, 2015. Ordnance

Survey 0100031673 UB9 6PL

"' plans ahead ., emapsite

Prepared by: Ipek Guler, 04-09-2015



:4

This Plan includes the following Licensed Data: OS MasterMap Colour PDF
Location Plan by the Ordnance Survey National Geographic Database and
incarporating surveyed revision available at the date of production.
Reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited without the prior permission of
Ordnance Survey. The representation of a road, track or path is no evidence of
a right of way. The representation of features, as lines is no evidence of a
property boundary, @ Crown copyright and database rights, 2015. Ordnance
Survey 0100031673

Om 5m 10m 15m 20m

Scale: 1:500, paper size: A4

25m

30m

35m 40m

"' plans ahead ., emapsit

Prepared by: Ipek Guler, 04-09-2015



£V © 05:L: 3jeas $102 Jeqwalag: aieg

Td 8D X3 sWwen g0 A9y UNLITLIHINY
; : LSINVENN
L0d* ON Mdg 68N Mmdsoedn: 43y
NOLWVOIINdd ¥ NOISSIWEId DNINNY 1d abpugxn | | sn-or'ainiaiydieisiueqIn@oyul B D
0] pasedald 24U 353U L 01 Bunemq 316uis €3 Jo asn Jo abueyn PpeOYy PoOMYIION BZ | 8/8/ €6/ €020 D
STIVL3a 133HS ADM 1v¥S0d0dd IHL 40 NOILdI¥D53d $s534aav 3Lis AL 34NLOILIHOYY LSINYEYN
wg wg wi 0

N¥1d 40074 ONNOYD DNILSIXT

wbsoL
{ woolpag

wbsy¢
. 9]Ins-ug

Page 199

wbsy
uaydIy

wbs/g
wooy buiuiq

wbsg'gl

Jaubisap ayl 01 pauages ag ol bumelp
Sl wely fouedansip o uonewnap Auy '

wooy uoindanay

wbs;'g
"suoiedyads w OOW_ H MMLM mmh m
pue sDUIMEID JUBA3TA JDYI0 [|B pUe SO Yitm
uerpuniuod W peald 3q 0] s Dumelp siyi v

syiom Bunuawio
0BG BYS U0 PAIAYD 3 07 SUDISUIWIP | £

"398 Nem Aied
pue suoienbay Buipjing au Jo suBwalnbas
ajgeandde j|e yim fdwod 3snw iom buipyng 7

‘RO BE [BIBLILOT
-Uop. Jo) sanpoidsd o) pajuelf uoissiuuad ‘| T el i wee S e B e




£V ® 00L:L: 3)eas $10Z Jeqwadag: aieg
Td7HD ¥d © BWen £0d: A9y 3HN1IILIHIEY

: : 1SINVaHNn
20d:  ON s GH Mmdosan: 43y

NOLLYDITdd ¥ NOISSIINEId DNINNY T abpugxn | | sn‘or'ainiasiiyielsiueqn@olul & D
1104 pasedald U0 351USQ Lg 03 Buliama 31BUIS £3 Jo 8sn Jo abuey) peOY pooOMyION BZ | 8181 €61 €020
S1IWL3Aa 133HS AN IYSOd0dd 3HL 40 NOILdI¥D53d S534aay aLis QL1 3¥NLD3LIHOEY LSINVEYN

wol wy wz 0

f O mmuouh uesapad Joy
f Biined )qeauniad

fiabing 03
BIURIIUT ISI14 >

= —wl
m a N ._
Jaubisap 843 03 PaJiajal aq 0] GUMelp
Sh) Woly Aauedansip Jo Uonenap Auy S 5131035N2 puE
ssahojdwa Joj sxdey 3PAD

subeIyirads
pue SOUIMEID JUBAD|A] JBUI0 [|B PUB ST LM
uenauniuea w peal agq o] s Buimelp syl v

syiom Bunuawio
BU0JDG S U0 PHAIBYD 3G 07 SUDISUIWIP | 'E

"398 e Aieg
pue suoienBay Bulpling a3 Jo sjuawalnbas
ajgeandde jje g fdwod Jsnw jiom buipyng 7

UG FSN) [PIMBLIOD
-UON J0y sonposdal 0] pajueld uoissiuad ‘L

NY1d 40074 NNOYD 0350d0Hd

= .

AYMIAIEA DNENnd

> NN\

......
_

wbsg'g
| Asabing =

wbsgz
ealy Buniem

whsg IMm
3|qIssNY

wbsg I whsg o
M i =
# 2z fuabing /

/ <= fuabing 0]
“Bauenu3 puodas

A570mm

6u _.u.mmm.ym..wj:u_gg

e 200

N

!




£V @ 0S:L: 3)ess
Id 1SL X3: awen

5107 Jaquadag: aieg

£0d:  AsY JHNLIILIHONY
* . 1SINVadn
£0d:  ON a8 g Mdoean: 43y
NOLLYOIMdd NOISSIWEId DNINNY Td abpugxn | | jynor‘ainiaaniydseIsiueqIn@oyul & D
1104 pasedald IUD 351USQ L 03 Buliama 31BUIS £3 Jo &sn Jo abuey) peoy poomylioN ez | 8181 €61 €020
STIvi3a 133HS AN 1vSOd0dd IHL 40 NOILdI¥DS3d ss3yaay ILs QL7 3UNLO3LIHOYY LSINVEEN
wg wg wi 0

Jaubisap ayl 01 pauages ag ol bumelp
Sl wely fouedansip o uonewnap Auy '

"suoiedyads
pue SGUMEIR TUBAS[AI J2UI0 jjB pUe Sy Yl
Lorunfuos W peal 3q o) s Bumelp Syl b

syiom Bunuawio
2U0Jag 315 U0 PIYIYD 3 0F SUCISUBWID |y 'E

“33E e Aqieg
pue suoienbay Buipjing au Jo suBwalnbas
ajgeandde j|e yim fdwod 3snw iom buipyng 7

EUE T T SETT
-UoN Joy sonpoidsd o] pajueld uossiuad ‘L

NY1d 40074 1541 DNILSIXI

wbsz9
wooJyieg

wbszy
| woolpag

wbsoL
Z woolpag

wbsg'g
€ wooipag

Page 201



€V @ 0S:L: 2jeds
1d71SL ¥d : sweN

5107 Jaquadag: aieg

£0d:  AsY JHNLIILIHONY
* . 1SINVadn
v0d:  ©ON a8 g Mdoean: 43y
NOLLYOIMdd NOISSIWEId DNINNY Td abpugxn | | jynor‘ainiaaniydseIsiueqIn@oyul & D
1104 pasedald IUD 351USQ L 03 Buliama 31BUIS £3 Jo &sn Jo abuey) peoy poomylioN ez | 8181 €61 €020
STIvi3a 133HS AN 1vSOd0¥d IHL 40 NOILdI¥DS3d ss3yaay ILs QL7 3UNLO3LIHOYY LSINVEEN
wg wg wi 0

Jaubisap ayl 01 pauages ag ol bumelp
Sl wely fouedansip o uonewnap Auy '

"suoiedyads
pue SGUMEIR TUBAS[AI J2UI0 jjB pUe Sy Yl
Lorunfuos W peal 3q o) s Bumelp Syl b

syiom Bunuawio
2U0Jag 315 U0 PIYIYD 3 0F SUCISUBWID |y 'E

“33E e Aqieg
pue suoienbay Buipjing au Jo suBwalnbas
ajgeandde j|e yim fdwod 3snw iom buipyng 7

EUE T T SETT
-UoN Joy sonpoidsd o] pajueld uossiuad ‘L

Nv1d 400 1Sd1d 0350d04¥d

wbsz9
wooy jJjeis

wbsz'y
Z uodaqg

wbsy wbss'g
vy A1abing ¢ A1abing

Page 202



£V @ 0S:L: 3)ess
NERER-ERE BTN

5107 Jaquadag: aieg

£0d: A3y JUNLIILIHINY
: : LSINVEEN
S0d: ON Mdg 68N Mmdsossgan: 43y
NOLLYOIMdd NOISSIWEId DNINNY Td abpugxn | | jynor‘ainiaaniydseIsiueqIn@oyul & D
0] pasedald 24U 353U L 01 Bunemq 316uis €3 Jo asn Jo abueyn PpeOYy PoOMYIION BZ | 9/BL €6/ €070 D
STIVL3d 133HS AT I¥SOd0¥d IHL 30 NOILdI¥IS3d ss3¥aav Lis 411 3¥N1O3LIHOEY LSINVEYN
wg wz wi 0

Jaubisap ayl 01 pauages ag ol bumelp
Sl wely fouedansip o uonewnap Auy '

"suoiedyads
pue SGUMEIR TUBAS[AI J2UI0 jjB pUe Sy Yl
uorpunfuod W peal 3q o1 5 Dumelp Sy p

syiom Bunuawio
0BG BYS U0 PAIAYD 3 07 SUDISUIWIP | £

"398 Nem Aied
pue suoienbay Buipjing au Jo suBwalnbas
ajgeandde j|e yim fdwod 3snw iom buipyng 7

EUE T T SETT
-UoN Joy sonpoidsd o] pajueld uossiuad ‘L

NOILVAITI INOY4 DNILSIKI

Page 203



€V @ 0S:L: 2jeds
AF1T 84 dd : dweN

5107 Jaquadag: aieg

£0d:  AsY JHNLIILIHONY
* . 1SINVadn
90d: ©ON a8 g Mdoean: 43y
NOLLYOIMdd NOISSIWEId DNINNY Td abpugxn | | jynor‘ainiaaniydseIsiueqIn@oyul & D
1104 pasedald IUD 351USQ L 03 Buliama 31BUIS £3 Jo &sn Jo abuey) peoy poomylioN ez | 8181 €61 €020
STIvi3a 133HS AN 1vSOd0¥d IHL 40 NOILdI¥DS3d ss3yaay ILs QL7 3UNLO3LIHOYY LSINVEEN
wg wz wi 0

Jaubisap ayl 01 pauages ag ol bumelp
Sl wely fouedansip o uonewnap Auy '

"suoiedyads
pue SGUMEIR TUBAS[AI J2UI0 jjB pUe Sy Yl
Lorunfuos W peal 3q o) s Bumelp Syl b

syiom Bunuawio
2U0Jag 315 U0 PIYIYD 3 0F SUCISUBWID |y 'E

“33E e Aqieg
pue suoienbay Buipjing au Jo suBwalnbas
ajgeandde j|e yim fdwod 3snw iom buipyng 7

EUE T T SETT
-UoN Joy sonpoidsd o] pajueld uossiuad ‘L

NOILVAZT LNOY4 03S0d0Yd

Page 204



£ @ 00LiL: 2jeds
AFT3IS X3 BweN

510z Jaquadag: 83eq

oM. A9 IHNLIZLIHONY
I © 3 1SINVasn
L0d N g8 cai Mdoean: 43y
NOLLYOIMdd NOISSIWEId DNINNY Td abpugxn | | jynor‘ainiaaniydseIsiueqIn@oyul & D
0] pasedald 24U 353U L 01 Bunemq 316uis €3 Jo asn Jo abueyn PpeOYy PoOMYIION BZ | 8/8/ €6/ €020 D
STUVL30 133HS A3 1YSOd0¥dd 3IHL 40 NOILdI¥D53d SS3¥Aay LS A1 3¥NLOILHOYY LSINVEHN
wol wy wz (]

Jaubisap ayl 01 pauages ag ol bumelp
Sl wely fouedansip o uonewnap Auy '

‘sugpieIyads
pue SGUMEIR TUBAS[AI J2UI0 jjB pUe Sy Yl
uerpuniuod W peald 3q 0] s Dumelp siyi v

syiom Bunuawio
0BG BYS U0 PAIAYD 3 07 SUDISUIWIP | £

"398 M Aieg
pue suoienbay Buipjing au Jo suBwalnbas
ajgeandde j|e yim fdwod 3snw iom buipyng 7

EUE T T SETT
-UON. Jo) sanpoids) o) pajueld uoissiuuad L

NOIIYAZT3 30IS DNILSIXT

Bupuad uapien

Bupuay jerew

Page 205



Ao L e
AT IS dd: awen

510z Jaquadag: 83eq

£0Y:  hay
I R
80d N Md9 6an Mmdosan: 434
NOLIVOINddV NOISSIWgE3d DNINNY I abpugxn N od'ainIIsliydielsiueqIn@ogu) &
Aoy vm._mn_m._n_ 2uDsnueg Lg o m“,.___._w;_:n_ mwmc_m £2 40 =sn JO wmcmzu PEOY POOMUIION BZ L BIBL €61 E0Z0 D
STIVI3d 133HS AN 1v¥SOd0¥d FHL 40 NOILdI¥353a SS3¥aav ILis Q11 FHNLITLHOYY LSINVEYEN
wot wy 0

NOILYATT3 30IS 03504 04d

sa3eb J3snode Buipls jenue
|

Jaubisap ayl 01 pauages ag ol bumelp
Sl wely fouedansip o uonewnap Auy '

‘sugpieIyads
pue SGUMEIR TUBAS[AI J2UI0 jjB pUe Sy Yl
uerpuniuod W peald 3q 0] s Dumelp siyi v

syiom Bunuawio
2U0Jag 315 U0 PIYIYD 3 0F SUCISUBWID |y 'E

P Em Ay
pue suoienbay Buipjing au Jo suBwalnbas
ajgeandde j|e yim fdwod 3snw iom buipyng 7

EUE T T SETT
-UOK Jo) Fanposdal o paluell uoissiuiad ')

JyBiay wz 4o Ja73wnad KIepunog punose BUDUSL JaLIEE JIISNOY

Page 206



£V © 0Z:L: 3)eas $102 Jeqwalag: aieg
1307N3d Hd © swen £0u:  Aly FHNLIZLIHINY

: : LSINVEEN
60d * ON Mdg 68N Mmdsossgan: 43y

NOLLYOIMdd NOISSIWEId DNINNY Td abpugxn | | jynor‘ainiaaniydseIsiueqIn@oyul & D
1104 pasedald IUD 351USQ L 03 Buliama 31BUIS £3 Jo &sn Jo abuey) peoy poomylioN ez | 8181 €61 €020
STIVL3d 133HS AT I¥SOd0¥d IHL 30 NOILdI¥IS3d ss3¥aav Lis 411 3¥N1O3LIHOEY LSINVEYN

wz 0

TIVII0 DNIDNIS 4314EvE JILSN0JY 03S040dd

Page 207

Jaubisap ayl 01 pauages ag ol bumelp
Sl wely fouedansip o uonewnap Auy '

"suoiedyads
pue SGUMEIR TUBAS[AI J2UI0 jjB pUe Sy Yl
uorpunfuod W peal 3q o1 5 Dumelp Sy p

syiom Bunuawio
0BG BYS U0 PAIAYD 3 07 SUDISUIWIP | £

"398 Nem Aied
pue suoienbay Buipjing au Jo suBwalnbas
ajgeandde j|e yim fdwod 3snw iom buipyng 7

EUE T T SETT
-UoN Joy sonpoidsd o] pajueld uossiuad ‘L




Little
Hammonds

Motes:

Site boundary

Fer identification purposes only

This copy has been made by or with
the suthority of the Head of Commities
Services pwrsuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Aot 1888 {the Act)

Unless the Act provides s relevant
exception o copyright.

& Crown copyright and database
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey
100018283

Site Address:

12a Northwood Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Harefield : -
Planning Section
Give Cenre, Lhbridge, Middx UB2 1UW
Telephone MNo.; Uiwidge 250111
Flanning Application Ref: Scale:
45363/APP/2015/3363 1:1,000

Flanning Committee: Date:

North Page 208 | March 2016 | 1 ON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LAND AT JUNCTION OF WARREN ROAD SWAKELEYS DRIVE ICKENHAN

Development: Installation of a 12.5m monopole supporting 6 shrouded antennas (Applicatior
under Part 16 of schedule 2 to the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 for determination as to whethe
prior approval is required for siting and appearance)

LBH Ref Nos: 65862/APP/2016/261

Date Plans Received: 22/01/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 22/01/2016

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 209



YR r B0 8
Q R PR ] -
— £y L2
] B W0uS PUSug g podanng
004
oguiny Ouyeas) |
ONINNY1d
.!m‘
Sdvit NOUMIOT ALS
”-E,P.EEQ
HS8 018N
300ExN

JNINANI 13THIS ARG SATTIVAS
SIEIo PBILOY / SSaIppY SIS

S629L ¥09¥¥0 £800S1

T EETY %)
ON QI 18D
- JHNLINGNA EI% 3NYE SATTIMS
1do BLIEN |80
LD

85222 SEVIIG) vt R ZGLZ2TSSRII0N AL
SIB 0L - IUIHSHILEAMNTT - ATTHON - ATA YOM

Aiiplolie
.:w.-\“_.__ D

A8 NOUYIIHTON

3iva

T

=

INBS STIES ST
Buluusyy 0

anz Nyr z z

QsAlza3y

UOPBUNIH Jo ySna, g us

2007

‘S3LON

‘GyYoH

SATTINVMS OL NOLLINNM JHL HOWONd
NOA SY 301S ONYH LHOIE 3HL NO 38 TIM
3US 3HL ONY OVOM N3MMVM OLINO 1HOM
NHML NIHL ONY L9+8/0V0H SATTINVMS
QINO LIX3 ISt 3HL 3¥vl '(1n0BvYaNNCY
SATIINYMS) LNOSVONNOY 3HL L¥
WYHNINOI/ dMSING/ 0 T3L434YH/3001HEXN
OUYMOL
UX3 £9VE IHL 3L NIHL OFV/INNIAVY
NY3IS3M OL NO 3NNILMOD N3ML
aNy | LIX3 ONYMOL O¥N JHL NO ISV3 Qv3H
NS 0L SNOLLI3NIG

o | Q3uN03¥ NOISSIONDD

914681 ‘N Z1690§ 3 ﬂ.m.u.z

ISMMIHLO OJUON SSTINA WAL M 36V SNOSNING TV

S3YL3W NI SNOISN3WMIO TV 0SZ1:L ~ £V 1V JWIS TVNIORO

r | I I I I I T |
osi 0ol 0s 0 0s

6+¥0Z000L "ON @ousan
-Wybukdos umos
soyj0 Ksuonois s fisaloy oy
JO J2j04U0D By} jo uoissiIad U} Yiim
yobsxe dow Kamng souopups) uodn pasog
(0521:4 8jeag)

NOILYJOT3LIS d31Iv.i3d

%0L0¢
0690

NN/ AN

00 /68!

/8N

NOLLYOOTT 3Ls —— sy 390y = e P

55300y 25 = mm

ybufdos umoun
LB¥YEZO00LO "ON ®Juaan
20130 Aisuoyois s Aiselop Jay
J0 Jejjonuod 3y} Jo uossiuued ey} ypm
seuss dow Jabupipuo uodn pasoq
Ponxe dow faang aoubupiQ
(0000g:1 sjeog)

NOILLYDO1T LIS




= | JUNUNENG 13341S 3NNO SATTINVMS

1d0

BWEN (8D

LD
B5233T SOPLI01 p0 Y ZALTTT SR IO i 8L
2T 0137 - IHIHGHILSIOG T - ATTHONI - AZAIOM

AlipJiojije
l_.u\n\*.__ D

83 Siliepise
Bujuue)y .

apr NYI z2 2

aza1z

‘SILON
o | a3sinbas NOiSS3ONDD
91/G81 N Z1690S 3 [¥ON

ANINGIND3  NOISSINSNYML

DG 807 % 60N/1ZN M/D 35VB 3IUWONOD - 4
NO (v) I3NISVO H3ALSVONVT

Wwz | Wi [ Aseuiing 20ue|diiod GHINDI. 6000NGS 2 B000NAS p U0DEag TLLD UM 9URPI020R U] PauBisaq
9 gl teso sl o SIULINMTIN NI SNOISNINIQ TV 001i1 — £ I¥ JWOS TYNIONO ‘souyap|nB dyINO| PIEPUEIS-UON uooeag 1112 UM Ajdwod sBumesp sy
[ | SRS A g :Ag pakpang I T T T T T T ]

pre 00001 0005 0 0005
soquey) Buesg |
ONINNY1d o (L HY]
MYId AUS G3S0d0Nd
) e e e w oddlls AIS0d0N R
158 Otan T e N Nl e gl L 4 & ow E m " . i 2 R G BB e T
390H4EXN 3 [ o e Pty s St e " 2 g Sl n & o = " 5 il ok
PVHNIN! 2 . ot e T R N . 4 i i B0 &

NOLLONAP QYOM NINNVI/INN0 SATTIHVAS » .S PRy e i A B i A

TUUININ 133HIS AR SATTIAVHS i T ) A e . , L . Rl T

SIE19Q 108IU00 / SSaIppY ol e & i . T T M%M\‘. = = = = % = e kA

g, | Wi | W | R RS SRR R R R R e e e e v o ek e ks s e & RGO LSO

& o W W o e & s 3 am\\o = T > - s W, T &

= EE 7 T e gk P SR e w}\.wﬁﬂjj/&f " " o W = R B

ON @l 19D * ez = IwmioN) N o quvsonn ® © ° 7 @K y o A LS
HOO 'STINCON @ —~ . " o

< \Zf 1S0ddivT
*  HOH WE' ONSIKGFT—=] & J

- - -

ISWHIHIO QILON SSTINN WA M Tdv SHOSNIMD TV




e r PRTLL
9 meg|  sowes somg

EY
iy s WS RSO
00t

ONINNYId

VATT3 3US (3SO40¥d
i o) Duwg

HSg 0180
390RExNN
PVHNIA
NOLLONAP OWOM NIUNVM/3ANO SATTINVAS
FHNUNENG L33UIS NN SATTDIVMS

S|[E1aq WBIU0Y ] SSaIpPY OIS
G629L ¥09¥¥0 £80061
4h 331 LD
oN al 118D

= | unuNing 13341S 3AN0 SATTIHVAS
4o ENETIES)

SIHLINMTIN NI SNOISN3WIG TV

Jurwwing esuedwod JYINDIL 6000NAS ¥ S000NAS *5)
*SauljapING JYIND| PIEPUEIS-UON UOOEDg TILD UM a_ae o sbu Eeu oﬁ

00L:1 = €Y iv JIVOS TVNIDINO

00004 000S

| 1 I I T 1
0 000S

{001:1)

NOILYAZT3 3LS 0d3S0d0yd

-Ajuo sasodind uojjewIOUL JOJ UMOYS J3UIGED

‘S3LON

o | c3wino3y NOISS3IZNOD

914581 N Z1690§ 3 [¥ON

ISWUTHIO OFUON SSTINA UAL NI 3HV SHOISMIMG T

T

-

?3« uas._eoﬁ_uxuuuﬂp&eﬂz_a
ININCINDI NOISSINSNYML ‘SMINIBNCD ‘STINAON
Eds._aoo:\a:;\ougwﬁzgo

NO (¥) 13NIGVD MIUISVONVT a3S0d0¥d
/)J . . B

._u.__s_mq + VNNINY Q3SOd0Nd 40 /N <=

.E.__Eund Enﬂo&ﬁ 40 1/n ==

d«&w$§nﬁo&e¢%¢2b =
Jov WOS'B+ YNNIINY G3ISOdONd 40 S/N v

@ffcw&

VNNILNY 03S040dd 40 /2 <=
d.__sénﬁ ggguouﬁb J&.dtsﬂﬁ NAMIOO (3S0<0Yd 40 dOlL
AJ

%H/\a VQQ “Ajuo 3jod 104 3y8n R_ Aoiddy Joud

A

dv 0V WOD's IHOEH 3341




QLOZ/LOM0E  L'Z'€800E) LD -@ouaiaay J18ayg IAW

P BuiBieun AW @

91/10/0Z - B1eq

‘usasb painojod "ybiy wg'L X Wy o X WE'L Oul sjeuIgeD P11 BuiBew) AW :sydesBojoyd

o d B spnoJys uigim ESJUOD ||
R ¥ S.M.m._uﬂh E“‘W..u w_...__. ﬂ.w..w.._:_m«cw .“uo_wu_uwu._h oh_“_. z5 ‘uibua| |es0y wwgg Bumes erawen
“19V Wg'g S/N Je SEUUSJUE OUg :Dadg BUUSIUY wog @ :9oUelsIP BUUBJUE O} BIBIUED

-uaaib paunojoo ‘ajod 199RS [[BIOA0 WG'ZL [2IMONIS aAlQg sAsjeyems wol jsamypioN BupjooT Juiodmain

uondang

uofea0
s B UoNEDT
:s&.@r BJBWED

pasodoid se smo

§ 9LLSBL NZL690S 3 HON
- N@“@ HS8 0LaN

abBpugxn

ys abejuowojoyd siyl

weyueya|
SUCJDPOA peoy usuep g aauq shajayems

JO UCHIUNE uopesod eng o g : PR = 3
' £800SL TILD BUS |90 m-.-_uw_X¢ Se SMOoYys —.—ﬁﬂ.-mcuo_._n_ SiylL




SLOZ/LO/LE  'P'ES0DEL LD -90usiejely 198YS IAW

gt
oI Bueus A @ ules. ..w._w.“CGU
oo ey ROwbeus epes yew 3 -

as.._...siluwz__ 91L/10/0Z : 9leQ =
Y BusPous A “u3asb p2inojoa ‘YBiY Wwg'L X WE'D X WE'L OUl SIsUIgeED pv7 BuiBeus AW sydeBojoyd -
SE0AaE = — _'Imanns sy Jo doj 3y} J& SPNOIYS JHO URRLM Pajeacuod |je : fe00) wwge umes eiawen
Onieg mhcmb_wmm 19V WS SM = BUUSUE 10}055-113 OU| Zs ‘b Se
mc._._._.cﬂn ) 19V Wa'g $M e SeuusjuE oug -0adsg BUUBJUY wo D :90UBISIP BUUSIUE O} BIOWED
" usaif paincioo ‘ejod Jeans ||BI9A0 W'Z} SIMONNS Peoy |IlyuIoy ] wouyjsampnos Bupjoo Juiodmain
~
\ (L} Ky 77 r./.

ﬁ i Kpo sesoding aanesisny|) 10} sj eBejuowiojoyd siylL

YObug
e i S — o e

HOpBuy,

pasodoud se smoys afiejuowojoyd syl

91LS81L NT1690S 3 "HON
111 vonuafa)a, et
> aBpugxn
Weyuaya]

SUOJDPOA PEOY UsLIEN B SALQ SAB|BNEMS

40 UOHOUNE yopeso eyg N X
E ' £80051 LD ‘SUS 19D Bupsixa se smoys ydeibojoyd syl



910Z/LGA0Z 1L EBDOEL "ILD =:Bouaiajay 18aus 1AW

0T on I Ger alen e
OOE B1OY
SL/LOMOZ * B1eq

P BuaBeug A G o
L}IEBA|BO0L)

.:aw“m painojos ‘ybiy wg'| X wg'Q X WE'L oup Ssjauigen i T A S b

ay} jo doj ayj Je SPTOIYS dUD UIYIIM PajEaIUOD jiB ,

OV WS g SN e BUUSUE JOJDas-11} Oul Zs :pibuay ooy Wwge Bumss eleweD
19V Wwg's S/N je SEUUJUE oug Dedg BuLBIUY wigy @ :90UR]SIP BUUBJUE O} BIBWED

w7 NYf 7 2

'uaaifi painojos ‘ajod J3a18 [|RISAO WG'ZL (BIMINNIS aapq shejayems wouy yseaynog Bupnoo Juodmeip,

02n303y
1iPYENgag uapuoq

LopBugy.

snj|| 4o} s| sBejuocwojoyd syl

jup sasoding aAines)
. ' . 'y .,I-.... 44 B ;0’*.. . o N

Uopaeng
® uofjeao]
EJBWED

pasodoid se smoys abejuowojoyd siyyL

§ 9LLSBL N Z1690S 3 “HON . R &
. \N Hsg olan T A
abipruqgxn :
WEyuayo|
SUOJDPOA peoy uauep 7 aaug shajeyems
O UoRduUNe yopesoT g
‘ £80051 TILD NS 19D Bunsixa se smoys ydeabojoyd siyl




The Clump

Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Land at Warren Road & Swakeleys Road

Ickenham

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref:
65862/APP/2016/261

Scale:

1:1,000

Planning Committee:

North Page 216

Date:
March 2016

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 11 SANDY LODGE WAY NORTHWOOD

Development: Two x two storey, 4-bed, detached dwellings to include habitable roofspace
and basement and single storey double garage to rear with associate parking
and amenity space and installation of 2 x vehicular crossovers

LBH Ref Nos: 16948/APP/2015/4658

Date Plans Received: 21/12/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 22/12/0015
Date Application Valid: 23/12/2015

North Planning Committee - Thursday 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 217



e B
[
/i 7
I3 ,r’r /
~IL
T
o=
A ] ]z
/
11 | f
il / /o
a— S 7
/ ] f | o
{ ok S |~
| & 8 1
=y 0 [
e ]
=k ]
e =
| ]

Scale: 1/1250

HA6 2AH

11 SANDY LODGE WAY, MIDDLESEX.

o
U

Y
J
[T

Page 218



i e 0 T T T [ |ddv-3dd HO4| i
QP Y ML PEos S 023 NOGSNITIIH NOGONITIIH| NOGONITIH v D SNV1d 3LIS 03S040%d ONY ONILSIX3
19811YsIy paJsiIeyD LGl ONINNYTd OL oz_zzqﬁwm wz_zzﬁp%wm. i oog:t | 4 L0
_ | | 03S0d0¥d ANV ONILSIX3 HYZ 9YH ‘QOOMHLNON ‘AVM 39007 AGNYS L1
‘P31 @4N3}0331YdIVY Hd | 3LLNGNS  Q3LLWENS| Q3LLIGNS | . N —
‘ON 103r0¥d,| 4 | ol0zz09id| sL0zZi'9i3| L0z80LL0) Wviad, 3os| ‘ONOMad| 153roud
— | [ —
@ === Ue|d 93IS pasodold @ == Ueld 91IS buiisixg
____ — ..___. [ = ]
R | —f = L ___ L —
feoe = = ____ — L e ____ ;
g ~T7 P
L, [ __..__ :
| e :
| > | | | b
| — | F
L S - 5
Sl L w il | ] [ w (o3}
_ _ < | ~C sonosson —
] gl | | r~ 0" Py
= 1 o 13805500 — _|r_. |‘_ | = W Se (oY
. O bunsia o= = o . e <
o VIT (N &y [ £ o
m _ m
1aN0SS0UD f
M pasodosd L / M
¥ sasnoy mau /
> a1t . pasodoug / >
< il = <
; % .__.... ___T.r o
Ty []] =~
OQ ._.w.\_.ﬁ., ..rr.....__. al
.m\_o aa11 yeo pBeIED | o
QO O ....__ __q 9led
: __... ..__.
_____..\.. .... ..__ T —
/ Se T VA
y s . / 5 s
f i / g
/ s / Ve 3y
m_a Py H._m /= ~ / x_..u. /
. i ) / / L N / /
p____,.r ____ .____..__ ..____.___ .__ ___... . .N, ! | ____ ___. ____.r.,.f.
) ~/ B S / __q__. ___ ﬁdﬂ.. s ~/ = = ...__.__. / ,_\”_ﬁ.; ) /




FOEZ LSE BOSO -lL
Ory LYH MU PECY Jaulld 0ZL
19911yoly palelieyn mer
PHIANIOBIIYDIIY U

wol

NY1d 4004

Y ¥ Y
/ ~J

NOILVA3ITE dv3d

wbssg V19

| NOGONITUH
'1d30 A2
ONINNY T SNOLLYAZTE 00L:L
oL ONY SNY1d ONILSIXT :
l _ QG31LN8ns R
8 ¥ l0zzhel RAET
TR
4 ..,
L—
AV
1401
i
o0l m w
§

<
@)
o
LL
>
O
oZ
O

NOILVA313 3dIS

NOILVAZ13 LINOHYAd

AR SSO0T AONVS 11ON

GV AR v_f\

| ¥

NOILVA313 34IS

‘i3 punoag T
O Qak
d ; 8311 RO

14 pUnGIg T

=

3W2S ‘ONOmMa

NY1d 400174 ANNOYD

JSNOH DNILSIX3

HVZ 9VH "GOOMHLYON ‘AVM 39007 AGNVS L}
103royd

Page 220



FOEZ L9E BOZ0 1oL
QY LYH MALEH ‘PRGY Muuld 0ZL

19811ydiy peielieyd

‘P31 94N3}0831YDIY M d

£¥908

=
H
B
)
El
=
-

LE'GL

[ON LO3rOMNd

a3singd DNIMYHA

L. LNOAY] O3ANINY

ddv-34d HO4
NOGSNITIH  NOGONITIH
1d3a 1430
Q3M3IMSNY  ONINNYIS ONINNYId OL
__S3M3ND OLO3LLNENS  O3LLNSNs.
SLOZTHEZH  SLOZZL9Lr | §L0Z80LL3
WDSG'Z1T VIO

=l

| ueyd 400}4 punoig

OdlL
2311 ¥20

7 asnoy uapieb Jeay

1 @snoy uapieb teay

NY1d 40074 ONNOHD
ANV LNIW3SYe

vi3a

©
covt| 120 |

3W0S ‘ONoma

L.E..nomra.e..ux_..._._

S3SNOH M3N € 0350d0CHd

HVZ 9YH ‘TOOMHLEON ‘'A¥M 39007 AGNYS b
103roMd

wbspg VIO
juswaseg

KD S001] PURGIS) j0 W)

g
Page 221

oz




FEZ £5T 5020 oL . . . i | dd¥-3Hd HOd

QY LyH MaEH peDy 1St 2L NOGONIMTIH - NOTONITIH. ) )] S3SNOH M3N ¢ 0350d0dd
LR UL PRSI Legl Q3sIAIY  0IUIMSNY ONINNYIY ONNNYIG OL 400Y ONY 1407180074 .pz%m__m oo 1€0 HVZ 9YH "GOOMHLYNON ‘AVM 39007 AGNYS LI
‘P 24N3od3IYdIY Hd o | [ Afodn — SIHit ol @lliNens] galanens) !
: [ON LO3rOoNd | 9L02z0°9L | SHOZELEZH  SLOZZVOLE  SLOZR0LL3 RLTEL] 3WoS ONOMa 103roMd
gy g g
d J wbs g7 VIO
< Yk e = 40014 3814
| AYM 39007 AANYS _
o — N — :
_ | (Bunsixa se awes) R |
JFADSS04D
_ . b mulisa i Bunsix3 _
_ g _
_ _
_ _
|| 3
N _ g
||| | 3
e |
(I |
] _
| | _ S
| 2 ‘ oSt N |
ietaal = s B R S 8 = B SSO S| al
1aA0ssoJ40 pasodoud jo |1;3eg o s N
)
0054 o
@
o
. wbsQg VIO
ue|d ooy
5 % 2
& Ny
Ny e
A . ]
- vl wid
ey
L)
7 i
\\ i) i
108




43 04

m

O o s e i L NOGONITIH ~ NOGONITIH WO 'S3SNOH M3N Z A3S0d0ud
AR LE'SL iy o oor:s HYO _ .
EAHMLY PRIBLIEND Q3YIMSNY  ONINNYId ONINNYIH OL vy NOILD3S ONY SNOILYAZTE HVZ 9VH "GOOMHLYON ‘AVM 39007 AGNVS L}
‘P11 84N32331Y2ayY ¥4 S3NEAND OLU3LUNENS  Q3LLINENS. AR
'ON Lo3roNd | SL0ZZVEZH  SW0ZZLOMT| SL0ZEOLLT Avi3a] FWOS ONOMA 103roMd
woL g g
NOLLYATTS MY (AVM 39007 AGNVS VIT) Z NOLLYAZT3 3QIS
“lpuneis I uapaen ooy ' punaig | ATANTNASND GF0NYH
._ EE DIDD LN8 IS THL J\ TIM E NOLYATTS 305
: AMM IDA0T AONYS BLL LYHL 10N I8VI Y
_.ZEEJ._ e o - Hmh ey F L S —
) il - [0
w1 9./ \\% o't e 9 \
N _D > Ny 0 #
gy — 7 . %f.. p
&
NOLLYAZT3 INOYS
OOH IADED K ¥ SO ADNVE BLEON V_A VM 3DC0T AONYVE Vi1 ON vﬁA M FDO0T ANVE BTON v_ ™
| (AYM 39007 AGNYS VIT) T NOLLYAST3 34IS %
. 7 T 1 Py
0 [0 2
]
| . Tl

'ALLNSHFAH0 O3ANYH
1NEIWYS IHL 38 TIM L NOLLYATTS 3015
Adih D007 AGNYS 811 LyHL AEON ASVET




FORZ L9 BO20 ‘AL

ddv-3d HOA
DRI e Ao NOGONITIH  NOGONITIH v ® SASNOH L1407 + AFHOLS T MAN
LE'GL 1430 ‘1d30 ONRNOFHDIAN ANY 3SNOH 00L:L VS0
S A ONINNY1d OL SNINNYId OL - 9NILSIX3 40 SHdYHOO0LO0H ' HVZ 9VH "GOOMHLYON ‘AVM 39007 AGNYS L1
I 24Nn3123831 Y24V o4l g3LUNENS  g3Llinans | | :
: [ON LO3rO¥d 4 3 a 2 8 SLZZLOLY  SLOZE0LL ¥13a IWOS ONOma 103roxd
N3IAQHVYO LNOYd
NIAEVD Hv3d
<
Al
Al
)
()]
Q)
o
NOILVAZT3 13341S

NOILVYAZT3 34IS




(z uosod) uogansued
Ul jo uonaiduiod Jeye - WL wg
Bujauay uspaajosd o uopE0d

wmmmeotam (7] SN e st
nkicaen @ .

Bany
uohIsold g kicbees @ N

| floboies @

fiobaey

w hioBojes @
ey

3 (ITINR e ,. ................
.ﬁ. u ﬁ) o s o sy |

uelg uooR|tug @l apL Bumeig

v @ooz-1 poomyuon “fe 08007 Apues L1 eus

0D IBWOYEDSUIMEBL UOWI S ([IBWS
¥PEGLE vBLL0 [QOW 9ETLP9 £SL10 8L
MXE 2718 's¥ong 'Aepabipan 'peoy fuoBain ‘poomaiain

$90IAI9S AoUB)NSUOD

|EAN}NOLIOQ.Y POOMBISIN
V10V N SUDIMEH UOWIS

T asnoH uapieb Jeay

Page 225




Sandy Lodge

Motes:

Site boundary

Fer identification purposes only

This copy has been made by or with
the suthority of the Head of Commities
Services pwrsuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1888 {the Act),

Unless the Act provides s relevant
exception o copyright.

& Crown copyright and database
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey
100018283

Site Address:
11 Sandy Lodge Way

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services
Planning Section
Give Cenre, Lhbridge, Middx UB2 1UW
Telephone No.; Uxiwidge 25011

Northwood
Flanning Application Ref: Scale:
16948/APP/2015/4658 1:1,250
Flanning Committee: Date:
North Page 226 | March 2016

LOKDOR




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 51 HILLIARD ROAD NORTHWOOD

Development: Change of use from a 3-bed end of terrace dwelling to 1 x 1-bed and 1 x 2 bec
self contained flats with associated parking and amenity space

LBH Ref Nos: 70450/APP/2015/4598

Date Plans Received: 16/12/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 16/12/2015

Norifi Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 227



Scale: 1:1250

Page 228



NCALWAZTE
A53M HEBHON

NOUVATTE
LSVIHINOS

OO

s

Vo

_-_'_'_"ﬂﬁ

e

!BL@ mﬂ\NOWM__._”xa :N.”_% £EE 992 QOTO 19 MIT SYH XOSPIPPIN JRUULY $OHSET PO POoH YBIM | RN | L _— TH— ¢
BUEE YN e LIS AN M BRIV d@ e s Lo s b tz1o| ISLIYHAOOMHLYON ‘GYOY QHVITIH LS
_.smz.m#ammm o1 o 6 dIHSYINLYVA QOITOVA LIITND 3HL e — Jeg ajeos
SNOILVYATTE ® SNV1d ONILSIX3
NOLVATTE
153N HLNOS TS OB,
s
m WY id 4004 WY id HOOT4 1407 MYl OO0 1SHI4 NV Td BOOTS ONNOHEHD

Page 229

SLZLTE CERWID BV 0} DA0RVHS
WSOUGTA HOOTH GHNICHE N ORI

b It HO
E-«SW._NEEWZ.(.—&

SANIWONIHY




_© MY g umoig
g

ST/80/9T  eiea ARTH TSR TR A S ST R S I | m,< @ OON !
GUEST e ASID s vhoL % sonemy pmnts  f) |ty rst 9¥H AOOMHLYON ‘AV0Y QYVITTIH LS
| /08827 S1-on ‘8iq IHSYANLYVA QOITOVA LLIITNO 3HL Lesy

INILSAS / /

J9VYNIVHQ / /

Page 230




@ MY Ag umpag

53133
s|oag AW

e P Y En 'St 9YH AOOMHLHON ‘av0d QHVITIIH LS
\ocusy| 0v/0882/ ST -on ‘8 dIHSYINLYVA QOITOVA LIFTTD 3HL

S1/20/ST  wiea TEE1 899 BOZO 'Mi MIZ GVH KSSIDPIN Jeulld SooiED3 PIO PooH WSHH | m/m\ @ QONF\
00Z:1 sjupjjnsuo) Bujuup|d UMO] % SjoBlYody peJelDY) .@

NVId 3LIS / /

/

QN
o)
T
S
$

© o,
184 Joj BuypAsas / uig a
alpaym a4l Mvw @

uaoelpe yajew

Q 03 umre.q pajuied
v y 20U J8qLui]
Jel4 40} BuysAdal// Eml"a ybiy wg*
afjeaym a.3f7 ore
Aptadoud
\ ‘ uazelpe yajew
\ 03 umo.g pajuied

Buippe)d Jegu;
3G 07 84035 3240

- L \ __
\\ % \ . 83842U0
\ Emumﬁ\wtﬁwuﬂwgh
/ i o _

Page 231




MY ig umed(
P FEEL 898 BOTO 1M MIT SYH XOSCIPRIN SRl BenEed PO POod 4BIH |

ST/Z0/€T  sioa

sa.1l e e e
BOEL "ol s WIS SHEER AR TR d@ ot 6 s . s s s cz1 o ISLIYHAOOMHLYON ‘QVON QHVITIIH LS
o F9/0882/ 51 on g JIHSYINLYVA QOTTOVA LLITIIO 3HL oilinass Jeg o[eos

SNOILVAZT3 ® SNV1d d3S0d0dd

NOUYAZTE
ASAM HLNOS PTES MOAN,

NV Td BOOTS ONNOHEHD

_ WY id 4004 _ WY id HOOT4 1407 _ WY 30074 15HI4
] 1

NCALWAZTE
A53M HEBHON

Page 232

NOUVATTE
LSVIHINOS

OO

STRED U310 JHH0T
NOLYATTI ONY SNY Id

SANIWONIHY




)ON

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGD

ON

NG D

ILLI

o
1
o (=]
o o
=
T | B
-
.. m
(k]
i G 2 =
g ) a
e O 0
=] (= =] al
o o
B3 @ | 9
S £ < <
=0 Lnl.e._.—.u o
L = ot = o
o SN ¢
2Lk |2 o
S |E =2
% =i, § =
. = =]
& L 9 |
= o B |5
E=) .mm =
M E M~ |E
] ] m
[43] [l [
[i1]
si£
; E T i
S 2 afve 30
9 & plczd u 2¥
E 9 gEEd w35
L] m..:.:m =.IEE
0 5 mHms EHaod
(8 — =
x e wmm.mmmwwm
1 2Bl ol ES
¥ £ 2gaceiafe
a MPMﬁWBW.En%
Bl |2 338588 %¢y
- WLl
= rm_m ﬁwnﬂana@r




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LANGLEY FARM BREAKSPEAR ROAD NORTH HAREFIELD

Development: Two storey, 4-bed, detached dwelling with car port to side and alterations to
site entrance to include gates, involving demolition of existing farmhouse.
Single storey outbuilding for ancillary use involving part demolition of existing
outbuilding and conversion of existing barn to habitable use to include
installation of mezzanine level, alterations to elevations and associated
restoration works.

LBH Ref Nos: 30836/APP/2014/2107

Date Plans Received: 16/06/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 12/10/2015

Date Application Valid: 26/06/2014 16/06/2014
21/10/2015

North Planning Committee -Thursday 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 234



LUOOBQGE

|90000m

Langley Farm

13990&:\ l

wog Lgo;
woﬂggo‘a‘

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 80
mm |1

m

Langley Farm, UB9 6NB

0S5 Mastermap
16 November 2012, ID: CM-00190405
www.centremapslive.co.uk

1:1250 scale print at A4, Centre: 505783 E, 189955 N
CENTREMAPS/ive®

www.centremapslive.co.uk

Mappi O
el WS 0o

©Crown Copyright. Licence no. 1000P%f o 235




L u / VIV 00LL[00SH | M0z AVM
| | | |8{¥ A Nmvea | FWOS 3lva

9 |os9t NOILYD01 ¥ LNOAYI 3LIS
‘ON 9HG 1VS0d08d NOIS3D 3L
0131334VH HIYON OVOY YV3dSHYIUE o SRR NS 08!

WUV4 AJIONV]  (103r0ud

= - 00S:L  NVId LNOAV] 3LiS
9934 9 uuW JAN3MO

ERNEEDL . i Y
W » WD pia|jaeySuBiaaiuoy mmm a

oD ple|jareySuBdaLIOU@N IR 13
A v o310 1

N3 68N *ASDPIN “PIaHBIBK ‘Il YNUD ‘SUBDIBE) YNy

sue|dawoy

‘L ANVHING LIS Ol NOIL

) g

—

00kL 3INVHLNI 3LIS OL NVid

24ob paty sequiy Joa !u
s1210 %dig ybiy %w.N

sajeuayob - papuswo uojd jooy 2P0V uge

Page 236

y4dou




Ml Fg WAV 001 ) 2102 HVH
30 5 ¥ T wwa ANIS I .
5loesl SNORYAFIE 7 SNV HOOH 4
0N B8O ONMIMG NIYW TYSOa(hd NOISI0  Tuu .
TU31438VH ' HISON OVO8 Bv3dSwase —t
WHYS ATIONYT  L03%0ud pr eyt s . st T gt e LR
BE3IM 9 4W UNAND - o s 0 ) g et a8 i g ) SR R
e WO RN ATLSURTIRWOY MM A -
s e B I
W e e
P e aged paRa) el
(ICS BN XOLSDDIA DI ik UM “SUBMIRE) Y
4 ey A stk i .
o
e o

sue|daswoy

RINOS M3IA O3

SO SUCISIAR Uy
Ppan Jeg
papuast wfisag

P mdn J0aY
papuaze ubsag

am

B

i)

9L wor
SIE vy
W ®g
9@
s102 Ao

T

e
NV BOD  ONNOES




| 3 5 WV o-| €102 1433 .
33ayv| ™ INMYHO AWSE Alva

e 4 4 AL L WO D e, -
1 l0891 HOUMT T D14 MO0 R e =t

0N B40 ONIOIINGLNG § 2NN WShddd NOISI0 UL

OTH43UVH * HIBON OVOY HV3JSIVILE
Hivd AFTONV]  HD300Md

Wia 13AT OhnGan

=1, B - ) NSNS

NG5 BAN YEESHDOIN "PIRIBRN Uik YLD "SRRy UIENED

sue|dawoy

4V,

e
il
B BE W

—
=
) 29 e e g o e
" - WYV S
By s, Rares v 3 g e b,
g ey g e e g o e esbes) sl
= .
-y o
e
o o
.
D | gy Y . A ] % R (i o 0 PPN
- et
-
o o et o s 3 s =y 4 s
p s f e tp it
T

SHOU - SURTABI S0U (TR o
WouRT SUEHIAD 9 w3

mpuawe ubinag | 0 ]

paypwo sbiniog iow v
Aum (G -l




¥ ot e
ety

Migdlesax VB3 60U

it

e i

homeplans

Chuich Gacgens, Chaech HilL, Hambeld,

W: wwi. hamenlenaaratield com
t R G WEBB

E: paliick@homeptansharelisid.com

T: 01895 822488

REAR VIEW -DUTB LILOMNG

- '__;I : F‘:\I
@ ; L
ek ]
g L]




ML A ST O3 DG TV
...... 1) v Iy 5= wioZ anr A sl By A0S O SOl
¥ NGO WIS Alva R T e T ) O el 8 A
_____ ]
| osst NISHIAND NBYE TIVHS iR
{ON BHO IVS0d0Ed  TVED SUiL

01363VH "H 0N OVO0H 8Y3dSHVINe
WEYd AZIONY]  10370dd

98IM 0 UKW BLE

e
e

NYld 0350d0d Wid OMISIX3

o 03 Pl | QUL ST DUAO MMM
.!4 — “_. WO DR S SMLOEA R 13 L T oo oo

BEPIIE GERI0 °L

N9 SE AOSDIPENN "PilBTH it WINUD BURRTD YOI

sue|dawoy

8- ¥V NOILIS | o
1 | nuuu L]

g
*|
@
=
L3
-
o
=
=
= g oy o g ey e e e ® S
| i
| ) i
il g ¥l
i |
' 11
i

_ : ﬂ. ||.|nr--.:m"! é..Ju.wW
% B h L - Wm 4—, uabo_— sz aa | h d : ﬁ mﬂ
m _111 i |
| | | i | A
N 7 ] . G ] o = |
| = I
| = o
(qV]
)]

gy gy g Q)
VTR G 3 VRGN
e b —_—
oty wmeys a1 wwepl aml o seewerphde paw s g P sy gres pee Spbisg A AT, pSp— |
oy el ma S ] S o Sompend i ) i) &
- “ e o e monis By e rpen g smAe e = ey Ay AR P N R
iy - — [
i 5 e pus assne |RIR
Bepnareyey eyl pvs pren s—yw— g e e oaeys e g s s poy— . Supondien
irnd -y bk oy oy = Fupmay Begeny
Fm—
. i s dhemais plgems asm P e g o eveabs acptia moe Beiy sy s o e )
— danymen Sacpmris g
il g e e v elnbenig e i e ] % Baisnl jaeis pesed men spinsg Ll rllh Baimias o e g1 n _.7
bevainte vyl Prasn dbermg P e e "
iy Barpeie s el pired Wlie Baiipn SRRNISLA S0 w0 smemy jene) o dege g pua seseede | potssn i P i Bempiy Supbduin sy a3 ame )
— 2 oy s
e e by e g Siia e ey g Pl me] N Baws 6 Py — .
I e e ey ) oy LR
iy vy v Bupne i
g3
P ]
B g e -
- — —_— R A TTRORON TR
PR sagoy HRg ¥




efasine Bup|ing painsesw pue pueT
‘P11 sAenung Aaupon |9BUdIW

s omgm oA i o g s
s o e S e et

o o v i o b s e

et 5 s e T e 5 e e T

s ma a3 s s s e i S

e S e e ot P Semin s e
e s e e Rt M S s §

oy ety b b e S0 ok
e G o o w0 G
g P oy sl Vol (o5
e e s
A oy oy Pl
T
£ g




@Pond

Ha
L

Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:
Langley Farm

Breakspear Road North

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Harefield
Planning Application Ref: Scale:
30836/APP/2014/2107 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
North Page 242 | March 2016

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LANGLEY FARM BREAKSPEAR ROAD NORTH HAREFIELD

Development: Conversion of existing barn to habitable use to include installation of mezzanir
level, installation of 1 x rooflight to south roof, 1 x rooflight to north roof
installation of new doors and window to south elevation, and new door to west
elevation with associated restoration works (Listed Building Application)

LBH Ref Nos: 30836/APP/2014/2109

Date Plans Received: 16/06/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 16/06/2014

Date Application Valid: 26/06/2014 26/06/2014
21/10/2015

North Planning Committee - 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 243



woo ) Gos
| “eeggGes

1900\)0»1
Langley Farm
|59900m ’v 159900411
8 3
w (4]
~I (o]
§ g

Langley Farm, UB9 6NB

0OS Mastermap
16 November 2012, ID: CM-00190405
www.centremapslive.co.uk

1:1250 scale print at A4, Centre: 505783 E, 189955 N

—— Gl WSS Qe | % CENTREMAPS ive”
@Crown Copyright. Licence no. 100%@9 244 www.centremapslive.co.uk




L u / VIV 00LL[00SH | M0z AVM
| | | |8{¥ A Nmvea | FWOS 3lva

9 |os9t NOILYD01 ¥ LNOAYI 3LIS
‘ON 9HG 1VS0d08d NOIS3D 3L
0131334VH HIYON OVOY YV3dSHYIUE o SRR NS 08!

WUV4 AJIONV]  (103r0ud

= - 00S:L  NVId LNOAV] 3LiS
9934 9 uuW JAN3MO

ERNEEDL . i Y
W » WD pia|jaeySuBiaaiuoy mmm a

oD ple|jareySuBdaLIOU@N IR 13
A v o310 1

N3 68N *ASDPIN “PIaHBIBK ‘Il YNUD ‘SUBDIBE) YNy

sue|dawoy

‘L ANVHING LIS Ol NOIL

) g

—

00kL 3INVHLNI 3LIS OL NVid

24ob paty sequiy Joa !u
s1210 %dig ybiy %w.N

sajeuayob - papuswo uojd jooy 2P0V uge

Page 245

y4dou




o) Fg WAV Wk Y107 HYH
30 5 ¥ T wwa AMOS 30 A
sjol SNOYATIZ 7 SNVId HOOW L
ON E60 ONM3MG NivW TvSOs(id WNOIS30 33Ul ==
T131438VH ' HIHON OVOH HY3JSNVILE el s g g o 304 s e g 5 g
WHYS ATIONY]  LO370Md 0 W e s s By g i 8 A 4 g Xy
g83M 9 W NI e s g i e s s i iy oy o) SR
i WO RN ATLSURTIRWOY MM A -
B W00 PR AL OGN NPT -3 o e g ¢ 1 2
hﬁ., PRFEIR SESI0 L T o O S e

(S BEN XeBemDIN RIS ik T “SUSLEE) Y2

sue|daswoy

s M3in 0n3

I [ g Ay

. P Sy et s
o

SO SUCISIAR Uy
Ppune S
papuasn ufisag

PapudED mdn Dy
papuaze ubsag

am

B

i)

9L wor
SIE vy
W ®g
9@
s102 Ao

T

e
NV BOD  ONNOES




| 3 5 WV o-| €102 1433 .
33ayv| ™ INMYHO AWSE Alva

e 4 4 AL L WO D e, -
1 l0891 HOUMT T D14 MO0 R e =t

0N B40 ONIOIINGLNG § 2NN WShddd NOISI0 UL

OTH43UVH * HIBON OVOY HV3JSIVILE
Hivd AFTONV]  HD300Md

Wia 13AT OhnGan

=1, B - ) NSNS

NG5 BAN YEESHDOIN "PIRIBRN Uik YLD "SRRy UIENED

sue|dawoy

4V,

e
il
B BE W

—
=
) 29 e e g o e
" - WYV S
By s, Rares v 3 g e b,
g ey g e e g o e esbes) sl
= .
-y o
e
o o
.
D | gy Y . A ] % R (i o 0 PPN
- et
-
o o et o s 3 s =y 4 s
p s f e tp it
T

SHOU - SURTABI S0U (TR o
WouRT SUEHIAD 9 w3

mpuawe ubinag | 0 ]

paypwo sbiniog iow v
Aum (G -l




¥ ot e
ety

Migdlesax VB3 60U

it

e i

homeplans

Chuich Gacgens, Chaech HilL, Hambeld,

W: wwi. hamenlenaaratield com
t R G WEBB

E: paliick@homeptansharelisid.com

T: 01895 822488

REAR VIEW -DUTB LILOMNG

- '__;I : F‘:\I
@ ; L
ek ]
g L]

Page 248




AT . MG T
...... 1) W Iy 5= ez anr e 3 O TP O
i NAWHG IWwos Alvd v s B el 0 AL T
| osst MRRRREAVRS. e
ON BHO IWS0diEd MV Fui
OTILUINH "W 0N OV0Y BY3dSHYINe
WHYS ATIONYY  AD3M0Md i TRET
dd
98IM 0 UKW ANIND NYld 035040
ey O e | DLV 0WIO M
VgL WO DR S SMLOEA R 13 L o x5
Bavzt GEal0 oL L
. 5 -
N9 SE AOSDIPENN "PilBTH it WINUD BURRTD YOI " _ =
sue|dawoy “_ :
9 -
g e AR —— i s e e .w-.. -
i
i
. V.V NOILIS |
[] 1 Y-V KOIL3S nuu_“.g !
L JH0LS 1y
I}
_— YUV g . L i m
n — i
_ P —————— B oo S e e .i!nm|||l..
| _ ; ﬂ. j i i
1! 1 I i I
— = k ] h
_" na_aa_ k.-BuB 4 _ |
_ | fee { _ i H it]
| | : i
= . | K | I
X 7 | X { i
. . i |
| T i
e— (o)}
# ; " <
g (a\]
()]
——
PR o
o
T M O AIIA TTREIIN
e b —_—
mppeds sz w o gl aml o seewvpble pie npes i) P Sy e pee dpbing A AT, pSp— |
o ey e S ey o Sare ] S o Somgnd i ) ) 5
- “ o o e i By s oy S S o 4 W P 0 2 ey
drbany - I
i 4 s o o covsnm 1]
Sepnrieeyey eyl pus s syE— g ! o S — -y o s prs o e o—
irnd -y bk oy oy = Fupmay Begeny
. i e shrmabe pylgene wem pee [h (P b Bermmb mepdin mos By iy s o s
wpur Syt Bapers g
il g el e pe o adplsncy gna s P ) Betiaial paays passsed mse o eig - rll.n P sy _.7
L] Ll
hevainte s fannsn Py P, i -
iy Bayperia e slloi perd giie Baiipy SpEyiELsy sim e ssemy payssa) 6o Jugn I‘-i!tlll‘lilllll'l!
_.I_I...Illul.l.l-.lll—ll.—’.lluﬂ.lulll.ll‘- S - e e ey
I e e ey ) oy LR
by e Supss i
-,
W) e — -
- - — TERGE #0 TR TSI
o sagoy 219 ¥




@Pond

Ha

Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:
Langley Farm

Breakspear Road North

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Harefield
Planning Application Ref: Scale:
30836/APP/2014/2109 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
North Page 250 | March 2016

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 37 THE DRIVE ICKENHAM

Development: Erection of two storey building with habitable roofspace and basement to
create 5 x 2-bed and 1 x 3-bed self contained flats with associated parking an«
amenity space involving demolition of existing dwelling house

LBH Ref Nos: 24043/APP/2015/3509

Date Plans Received: 18/09/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 18/09/2015
Date Application Valid: 29/09/2015 29/09/2015

North Planning Committee - Thursday 3rd March 2016
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 251



QQTP\%Q'}

LON BORO OF HILLINGDOt
RECEIVED

01 JUL 203 f
|

PLANNING & TRANSPOETATIC

S
(4]
=
c
Q
s
&=
)
e
—
(]
4]
W o
=
N~
(e,

Location Plan
1:1250 scale

Page 252



LO—BSHZ o 9w

o4 20|18
Burysixg
XTI}

LUoyusyo|
8AUQ BYl [Ty

=




ZeHeTg ¢eglo
14918 SeRI0  ¥vd
- g £
I BHA XAOIN pioisivy

LR SAL [0 pravaaey
SHLVIDOSSY SHEMOL
S
T
LT e OGE - L TWE
a3 L0—8GHZ = o
up|d yooig
pescdoig
FiLiL
Loyusma|
g Byl [

M | v | a3

ctlos say so6 el Mol




Tl
wed
e - aan 4 bl +
PRLELISE P jaIRy

SHLVIDOSEY SHIMOL
T T

gmo3n
3w

T OGE - L TWE

¥ oam C0—8SBZ o vug

S24Mj2ni1S MaN PUD BIO
ubj4 Moo pasodoad
FiLEL

Loyusys|
8AUQ BYl [Ty

MILIJIATEE |

YSEIN

B

Lo I

parowal 39 93
e e S - Bupying

i

paKowss 59 0}
| Buping

2

e

L et

Ry s e

WOE




SWIMMING FOOL

|

Fh FAMILY ROOM
BAR
L
DRAWING ROOM
Ll
F"J 2

ﬁ— PLOT BOUNDARY

s
a7 S
&
.Qs\‘ X
SO
&l 8P oo,
O 5y
©
S
r(’-

By

Gnry

ol KITCHEN
DINING
ROOM

HALL

LOBBY COATS

DRIVE / PARKING

EXISTING GROUND FLOOR

Page 256

COURT YARD

—

i

i

i

!

//‘Ji i

i

i

i

i

i

|

;

GARDEN STORE i
i

§

WORKSHOP {
5

i

i

GARAGE .
i

?
\ prore \/\JJ [

AND TWO BEDROOMS WITH ATTAGHED
BATHROOMS. ;
\ 1
ST 57THE DRIVE, ICKENHAM, } i
MIDDX, UBIO BAF \ L
TTLE: -\ |
STING GROUND FLOOR. /\ i
[
AL M
1 MaRcH 2005 \ {Yi]!
DRA . \
WING NO \ A ‘ RV, |y
X
i hY
AY



[ 228218 G610 |
. "5esp1g geuin o

et P o o ey

SHLVIDOSSY SHHMOL

WE s

EL - L T

] S0—8CSBZ o oug

ynofoT] Jeoy punciy ®

jugwasog pesodoig
FiLH

Loyusys|
8AUQ BYl [Ty

MILIEEE v | a3

J0O[4 punol

jusluasog

A

1
TITL

([THHA

LLUH




‘I» BEDROOM 4

=i

|

BATHROOM

==

r

‘MASTER L

BEDROOM 1

——PLOT BOUNDARY

EXISTING FIRST FLOOR

Page 258

ROOF OVE!
WORKSHOH AND STORE

R GARAGE,

% prOPOSED Gmawmaor*mﬁ STORE
ON GROUND FLOOR FIRST FLOOR NEW( LINK.
AND TWC BEDROOMS WITH ATTACHED

BATHROOMS. \
ST 57 THE DRIVE, ICKENHAM, \ i
MIDDX, UBIO 8AF \ E
EXISTING FIRST FLOOR. Vi

. o

100 MARCH 2005 \\ o

ORAVING NO. 1\ e

S S0LTD/0ZP m 9

\ w




nmv.:m mmm.a o
Zc aan PRIy
haTh m-n oh i PrapaTey

mm.ﬁiuuomg SHEMOL

QEL - L T

] LO—8SEZ o oy

sinofio| jooy »® only
‘18414 pesodoig

XTI}
Loyusya|

g Byl hmﬁ

MILISIATEE U

INOADT Jooy 400} 1844

O
O

T




gereTy gesro

FOBVIR GRATD  wvd

L BHD | XAIN ity
P JATE LA (i pratoae)

SHILVIDOSSY SHEMOL
g A

pals uapipg men

———— i 0oL: 39

21035 99Ag % ug

OGE Lowm
¥O—BSHBZ = 2u

suoisod MODUM @ Joog ou|
ynedo ayg pesodoig
T
LD LYusy3|
BAlG BY| [Cn

UHIEARE B0IS s g RSRE Tey

e R

1] 1 T 5 e e e

I

@AY punoig

[ne punoay semer)

g T, T R !
iy,
R

beodae sauy son alipen wey

! (ol il en el way F :
| - S




. |8
g - =
Lﬂ e T e Ty fllli_{il ] I!II[IIII I IHI' ; § g % % ﬁ § -
e;w uey MMM - Bl |t g
- p"'v - """‘Y’- @ : ’:3% % §§
. - BIIER]
2 Ei’ ‘_Eg :_gg
5 5 |8 E § 152 |8
E ONITHNG ONRINOGHSIEN K timmm e
‘ = £ [—
B
=5
R | E=Tm—
== [—]
- !EEI[_____:I ﬁ:
|
1
== | ]}
| ,[_
P S
: f W
ﬂ | e | -
ey R [ C
i B | ¢ |
n L=
u | |== R

-

|
|

FYET| von mmm
T
AR

T

(1R MEEE)

EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION .

IO
ONITNNG ONIENOGHDIBN

Page 261

7z




L ST
oo

__: ______z___________ ___.__:_ _________ ____ ____ ____ ____ ____ _____ ____ il ____ =__ i ____ ____ ____ ____ ____ ____ ____ ____ 1]l _______LE.______ I ____ __._ __= ____ ____ ____ it ____ i ____ i
e a1 ds

i — MONL0G -
G00E HIWVIN 001!
va RIWVOG
1l
AL SNIMYEA __
. Y@ OIN XAaIW L M &
WYHNTO BARA BHLLE 0 “ & !
25
"GHO0AHLYE __ hQ
GAHOVILY HLIM SWOO303E OML aNY h | il
SN MEN H00 1G311" 3007 ANNOND NO 1 ! &
HAOLS ANV AOHEIAOWIDVIVD GIC040Hd  1gop i | '
@
I NS
* . _ —
AIVINO NG SN N “ il _ g
] | | =z
i | ©
! |
|
| |
| Py
I I ©
LNINONIY ava | »ags “ AdYaNNod 1074 IIW" Al
[ )]
“ . e
I | ®©
“ -
——— KVANNOZ 104 . : !
“ i
_ i
! I
| ;



S2HE18 SeBT0
VasPIE SERID W
e YOOI Blaleauy
L R UHLIEL 1 PIApeaRy

SHILVIDOSEV SHHMOL
= T

23030
e Wit (0 W
L v 0L LW

v A% BO—8G6Z o )

SUOIIDAS |3
pesoedoig
FiLEL
Woyusys|
g Byl [E

MILIJIATEE 3w | w3

UOI1DAS([T 1UOU 4

Uoll1bAL| 4 2pIS

D

@ M m i

UOCI1DAB|T 2pIS UOINDAS|] UD8Y

N e P

B -
e

B i T
L i e

i s
S




]
SHILVIDOSESY SHEMOL

ST

At )

AT

50—-856Z o )

sUoi1o0eg ayg
pasoedoig
JiLEL

LUDYUEYD|
BAG BYL [T

MILISIATEE v | w3

-

uolyoAsl3 2pIS

Lo DAB|T Juca4

5

4®__ __®.4\

uoiDAS[Y Joay

il

uoljCAs|] BpIS

Page 264




Course

le Golf Course
Notes: Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
For identification purposes only. ICkenham Planning Section
This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the . . . . . 4
Copyright. Designs and Paterts Planning Application Ref: Scale:
Act 1988 (the Act). 24043/APP/2015/3509 1:1,250
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date:
© Crown copyright and database | NT 7 TN A N
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey North Page 265 March 2016 TYILLINGDON
100019283 CUNDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 266



	Agenda
	3 To sign and receive the minutes of the meetings held 5 January 2016 and 20 January 2016
	Minutes 20 Jan 2016

	6 81 Field End Road, Eastcote, Pinner - 363/APP/2015/3827
	7 12A Northwood Road, Harefield - 45363/APP/2015/3363
	8 Land at junction of Warren Road & Swakeleys Drive, Ickenham - 65862/APP/2016/261
	9 11 Sandy Lodge Way, Northwood - 16948/APP/2015/4658
	10 51 Hilliard Road, Northwood - 70450/APP/2015/4598
	11 Langley Farm, Breakspear Road North, Harefield - 30836/APP/2014/2107
	12 Langley Farm, Breakspear Road North, Harefield - 30836/APP/2014/2109
	13 37 The Drive, Ickenham - 24043/APP/2015/3509
	14 ENFORCEMENT REPORT
	15 ENFORCEMENT REPORT
	PART I - Plans for North Planning Committee

